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MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT made and entered into at the City and District of Montreal,
Provinee of Quebec

BETWEEN McGill UNIVERSITY, a University duly constituted by charter, having its principal
office at 845 Sherbrooke Street West, in the C ity and District of Montreal, Province
of Quebec,

(Hereinafter referred to as the "University™)

AND THE McGILL LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION INC./ L'ASSOCIATION
DES ETUDIANTS ET ETUDIANTES EN DROIT DE L'UNIVERSITE
MeGILL INC. Having a place of business at 3644 Peel Street in the City and

District of Montreal, Province of Quebec,

{Hereinafter referred to as "the Association™)
WHEREAS the University recognizes that the Association is the exclusive representative of the undergraduate
student body at its Faculty of Law; and
WHEREAS the University and the Association wish to enter into an agreement respecting various matters
including the assessment and collection of fees from students and the operation of University accounts for such

fees; and

WHEREAS the Association is a non-profit organization whose main purpose is to organize and support
activities, offer and manage services and represent the interests of law students; and

WHEREAS a referendum of members of the Association approved the collection of fees for its operating
expenses and the support of its activities; and

WHERFEAS, on the basis of said referendum, the Board of Governors of McGill University approved the
collection of fees from members of the Association for said purposes; and

WHEREAS the Association was incorporated in 1993 by Letters Patent issued pursuant to Part IIT of the
Companies Act (Quebec) [NEQ: 1148672802]; and

WHEREAS the University and the Association wish to enter into a new agreement in replacement of the
previous agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, THE PRESENT AGREEMENT WITNESSES:
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1. COLLECTION OF ASSOCIATION FEES

1.1

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Subject to the approval of the Board of Governors of the University, the University shall
collect in each of the fall and winter sessions during the term of the present Agreement all
fees from students duly registered at the University and assessed by the Association, such fees
(the "Association Fees") to be used by the Association for its operating expenses and the
support of the Association. The current Association Fee Schedule appears as Appendix A
hereto.

The Association Fees shall be included in the total student fee assessed by the University in
respect of students and all University regulations pertaining to the assessment and collection
of fees shall apply thereto.

The Association Fees shall be distributed yearly as follows:

e The first distribution of the Association Fees shall be paid to the Association on
September 15 and shall reflect fee assessments from June 1 to August 31st.

¢ The second distribution of the Association Fees shall be paid on November 15th
and shall reflect the balance of the Fall Term assessments as at October 31st. There
shall be no holdback of fees for either of these remittances.

¢ The third distribution of the Association Fees shall be paid on February 15th and
shall reflect the Winter Term fee assessments as at January 31st. An amount equal to
10% of the amount to be paid as the third distribution shall be held back by the
University to account for changes in student registration occurring from February 1st
to May 31st.

¢  The final distribution of Association Fees shall be paid on June 15 and shall reflect
the assessment as at May 31st, less the 1% fee for bad debt charges (in accordance
with section 1.4), the Annual Administrative Fee (in accordance with section 1 4yand
any other amounts owed to the University as at May 31st.

No charges shall be levied by the University for the collection of the Association F ees;
however, the University shall be entitled to receive 1% of the total fees assessed in each term
as relief for the collection of bad debts. At the request of the Association, the University shall
provide the Association with information on the level of bad debt resulting from its members.

Upon prior written agreement of the parties, Association Fees may be credited to an internal
account of the University,

No adjustments to the Association Fees shall be applied e#, collected or distributed by the
University unless they are consistent with all University procedures and regulations pertaining
to the assessment, collection and distribution of fees, and the Deputy Provost (Student Life
and Learning) has confirmed in writing that the formalities required, by the Association’s
constitution for fee adjustments, by the University and by applicable law, have been followed.
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All requests for new fees or fee changes must be sent in writing to the Deputy Provost
(Student Life and Learning) by April 1 for implementation in the Fall term and by
November 20 for implementation in the Winter term.

2. ACCOUNTING SERVICES

21

2.

2.

2
e

2

3

The University shall provide certain accounting services to the Association for an Annual
Administrative Fee in accordance with the schedule contained in Appendix B. This fee is
subject to an annual review by the University. The services to be provided on Minerva will
include the following:

2.1.1 Monthly trust fund statements indicating fee revenues, distributions and expenses
resulting in year to date totals.

2.1.2 Provision of regular lists on the Association's membership on a scheduled basis;
weekly in August/September and monthly the remaining months.

The Association shall request security access at the beginning of their mandate to access
Minerva reports. The President of the Association must authorize all requests for access, and
should the President require access, then two vice-presidents of the Association must
authorize his/her request. Security authorization to Minerva reports shall terminate each year
on June 15" Employees of the Association who have been given access may keep their access
upon confirmation by the current year’s President.

Should the Association require any other lists, data sets or any other type of information on
their membership or its trust fund statements not already provided for in article 2.1 above or
clsewhere in this Memorandum of Agreement, the University shall give effect to the request
to the extent allowed by law and subject to the payment of an appropriate fee, and upon
reasonable prior notice of at least three (3) calendar weeks sent to the Director, Student
Accounts Office. This fee will be identified prior to fulfilling the request. The University is
subject to the provisions of the Québec Act Respecting Access to Documents held by Public
Bodies and the Protection of Personal Information and therefore reserves the right to refuse
to give effect to a request.

Notwithstanding article 2.1, should any programming changes be required to be performed by
the University's Network Communications Services (“NCS”) at the request of the Association,
the University reserves the right to charge the Association the established hourly rate for the
work to be performed.

The University will not draw any funds from the account maintained by the University for the
use of the Association or from the fees collected by the University for the Association without
the Association's prior written approval, unless exercised as a remedy pursuant to article 8.1
hereto.




3 LOANS AND GRANTS

The Association may apply to the University from time to time for loans and grants in aid of activities
or projects, the granting of which shall be in the sole discretion of the University.

4. INSURANCE

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

The Association shall ensure that its officers and employees are covered under the terms of an
Employee Dishonesty Policy with a reputable licensed insurer, to maintain such policy in
force at all times during the term of the present Agreement, and to provide the University each
year with a copy of such policy.

The Association shall be solely responsible for obtaining appropriate insurance necessary to
conduct its activities, including and without limitation, comprehensive general liability
insurance including but not limited to libel, slander, defamation of character, loss of property
damages and personal damages, and shall name the University as Additional Insured.

The Association shall provide evidence of coverage upon execution of the Agreement and
annually thereafterto the McGill Risk Management and Insurance Office. Evidence shall take
the form of true copies of the relevant insurance policy or renewal certificate, as the case may
be.

The Association shall hold harmless the University, its officers, employees and agents of and
from any and all suits, claims or demands, and reasonable costs and expenses that may arise
by reason of the operation of activities of the Association, or any act, neglect, omission of the
Association, its directors, officers, employees, agents or persons engaged or retained by it.

5. MAINTENANCE AND AUDITING OF ACCOUNTS

5.1

5.2

53

5.4

All financial records, books and accounts of the Association shall be maintained in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied.

The Association shall provide the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning) with a copy of
its annual audited financial statements within 120 calendar days of each financial year end.
The Association’s financial year end is April 30,

Upon reasonable notice from the University, and upon reasonable cause, the Association shall
make available for audit at no cost to the Association all documents relating to:

{a) current contracts and expenditures;
by projected contracts and expenditures; and
{c} books, records and accounts.

The Association shall engage the services of a reputable auditing firm or chartered accountant
in good standing with the Order of Chartered Accountants of Québec to prepare the
Association’s annual financial statement. The Association shall advise the University of the
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name of the auditing firm or chartered accountant. In the event the University does not find
that firm or the chartered accountant acceptable, the Association shall appoint another firm or
chartered accountant acceptable to the University.

6. USE OF THE MCGILL NAME OR EMBLEM

6.1 The Association recognizes that the University is the owner of the intellectual property in the
word "McGill" and the McGill trademarks which are duly protected by the Trademarks Act.

6.2 On a nonexclusive basis and solely in connection with its activities related to its role as a
student association and in accordance with this Agreement, the University hereby grants the
Association the right to use the word "McGill" in its name "THE McGILL LAW
STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION INC. / L'ASSOCIATION DES ETUDIANTS ET
ETUDIANTES EN DROIT DE L'UNIVERSITE McGILL INC.".

The present grant is not assignable.

6.3 The University's trademarks and emblems may not be used in connection with the
Association's name or logo which shall be distinct from that of the University’s.

A copy of the Association’s approved logo and trademark appears in Appendix D. Any
change to the Association’s approved logo or trademark shall be submitted in advance for
confirmation by the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning) that the proposed new logo
or trademark conforms to the terms and conditions set out in this section. The Deputy
Provost (Student Life and Learning) shall provide a written responsc following the
Association’s submission. Approval shall form an amendment to this agreement.

6.4 On a non-exclusive basis, for the term of this Agreement and in accordance with its
conditions, the University hereby grants approval of the names of the Association’s groups,
clubs or services (“the Groups™) as they appear in Appendix G and subject to the following
conditions:

(i) The Association and its Groups shall respect the rights of the University as owner of
the trade name and trade mark "McGill" and shall comply to the conditions set out in
this agreement;

(ii) The Groups shall use the names as they appear in Appendix G and shall adhere to
the conditions set out in Section 6 and the Recitals of Appendix G;

(ii) Where permission to use the McGill name is granted, McGill may withdraw such
permission at any time and for whatever reason, subject to notice and discussion with
the Association.

(iii) In all of their activities, advertisemnents and websites, the Association and Groups
shall include the following notice prominently on advertisements and websites and
shall identify themselves or their activity as either:
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6.5

6.6

6.7

A [e.g club, service, activity] of the LSA (Law Students’ Association)”, an
undergraduate students’ association at McGill University "

or
“Operated by the LSA (Law Students’ Association), an undergraduate students’
association at McGill University.

Neither the Association, nor any of'its Groups, shall use or integrate the name, logo, emblems
or trademarks of the University with the name, emblems or trademarks of the Association or
Groups.

For event-specific permission to use the name, emblems or trademarks of the University, the
Association shall obtain express prior written permission from the Secretary-General of the
University in accordance with this Agreement. Permission shall be granted at the University’s
discretion and, where granted, is time-limited and not assignable. McGill reserves the right to
withdraw such permission at any time and for whatever reason.

The Association shall provide the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning) with an
updated List of Groups.

Notwithstanding, any change to the List of Groups appearing in Appendix G (including any
additions or deletions, or changes to a Group’s name or to its described activity) shall be
brought to the attention of the Office of the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning). The
change shall be confirmed by the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning) after receiving
the notice of change

The Association acknowledges and accepts that going forward (effective June 1, 2013) any
new Group of the Association shall adopt a name in one of the Approved Forms for Group
Names, as set out in the category of activity in accordance with the Recitals in Appendix G,
and approved by the University

CONTRACTS AND LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

7.1

7.2

7.4

Any acts, contracts, and legal proceedings involving either party shall be the exclusive
responsibility of that party.

Neither party shall enter into nor execute any cheques, contracts, documents, mstruments,
receipts, leases or other agreements in the name of the other party or in any way engage the
liability of the other party thereon by any other means.

The Association shall not solicit or receive any gift, grant or bequest in the name of the
University without the prior written consent of the University.

Should any legal proceedings or claims be taken or made against one party as a result of an
act of the other, the said legal proceeding or claims shall be immediately referred to the other
party, which shall deal with it in a timely manner and at its own expense. Any costs or
expenses incurred by the party for such legal proceedings or claim including, inter alia, any
legal fees, condemnation, order, settlement, interest, judicial and extra judicial fees and costs,
shall be entirely at the charge of the other party.




7.5

Either party shall have the option of engaging its own legal counsel to intervene in any legal
proceedings in respect of the other party where its interests are involved. In such a case, all
expenses, extra judicial fees and disbursements shall be borne exclusively by the party which
has invoked this eption.

RIGHT TO SET OFF

8.1 Should the University, following due notice to the Association, be required to pay any of the
charges, costs, expenses, debts and claims which are by these presents to be borne exclusively
by the Association, or should the Association be in any way indebted to the University, the
University is authorized to collect or set off the said amount against the funds paid or payable
to the Association hereunder.

8.2 In accordance with the present Agreement:

a) The University must provide the Association with a written notice of the charges,
costs, expenses, debts and claims providing complete details and documents relating
thereto.

b) The Association shall have thirty (30) working days (or 60 calendar days between
period May 1st and August 31 st) after the receipt of such notice in which to resolve
and/or remedy the matter.

) The University shall exercise its best effort to inform the Association as soon as
possible within the same budget year (defined as the period June 1% to May 31 *y of
any charges, costs, €Xpenses, debts and claims on the part of the Association under
this clause.

LIQUOR PERMITS

The Association shall apply for and maintain in its name necessary liquor permits for any event, itand
any of its clubs or groups, may hold from time to time for its own purposes.

9.1

The Association recognizes and reaffirms its commitment to respect article 39 of the Québec
Act Respecting Liquor Permits (chapter P-9.1) that specifies the Association may only hold
reunion class liquor permits, as defined in article 33 of the Québec Act Respecting Liquor
Permits (chapter P-9.1), for events held within University buildings or anywhere on
University property. The hosting of such events is subject to prior express approval of the
University and to such other conditions as set by the University from time to time.

The Association shall exercise its permits in accordance with all laws, municipal and
government regulations and well as all internal requirements and policies of the University
and appropriate standards of conduct, that include, but are not limited to, those relating to:

(a) hosting on campus events only in approved University locations;
L)) advertising these campus events, and the cost of alcohol, in accordance with the law;
{c) purchasing, storing (as applicable) and serving the alcoholic beverages at these events

in accordance with the law;




10.

| LSAMOA]

9.4

(d)

adhering to all requirements with respect to building, fire, security and room capacity,
and other legal requirements and University regulations as well as appropriate
standards of conduct.

For greater clarity, the Association:

ii.
1.

iv.

may not extend the Association’s reunion permits granted for events within the
Association designated premises to events occurring in other University buildings or
on other University premises;

may not serve beer from kegs;

may not serve beer and other alcoholic beverages in cans or bottles but in plastic
cups; and

shall comply with such other conditions as set by the University from time to time.

The Association shall ensure that the events hosted by the Association include activities that
allow members to socialize without requiring the purchase or consumption of alcohol for
participation in the activity or event.

The Association shall hold harmless the University for any and all claims, fees or fines arising
from its exercise or omission to exercise its rights and duties under such permits and as host
of these events.

REPRESENTATIONS OF THE ASSOCIATION

10.1

The Association represents warrants and covenants that:

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.1.3

10.1.4

the charter documents, constitution and by-laws of the Association consist entirely of the
documents remitted to the University concurrently with the execution of the present
Agreement and which appear as Appendix C. The Constitution and By-laws of the
Corporation are provided for reference purposes. The parties agree that no clause in the

Constitution or By-laws shall modify or supersede this Agreement.

a referendum of the Association members has been duly held in accordance with its
constitution approving the existing Association Fees and such referendum continues
to bind the Association and its members:

it has amended its policies and procedures to provide for conflict of interest
provisions respecting the hiring of employees, contracts with related parties and the
administration of its affairs;

it is and shall maintain its status as a corporation under Part III of the Quebec
Companies Act whose membership is limited to persons enrolled in the
undergraduate law program of the University including those registered as full-time,
part-time, visiting and exchange students:
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10.1.5 undergraduate students registered at the University are entitled to membership butno
member may act as Director or Officer of the Association while subject to any
disciplinary measure under the Handbook of Students Rights and Responsibilities
that has the effect of removing the student status.

10.1.6 all financial records, books and accounts of the Association shall be maintained in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied.

102 The Association shall provide the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning) annually with:

1. a copy of the Association's annual Declaration of Incorporation as proof that the
Association has maintained its incorporated status;

it. a copy of the Association’s annual audited Financial Statements prepared in
accordance with Article 5 herein;

tii. a copy of the annual Certificate of Insurance obtained in accordance with Article
4 herein;
1v. a copy of a complete up-to date Appendix G as at September 30th, listing all

Association, clubs and services for the following academic year in accordance with
Article 6 herein and the Recitals appearing in Appendix G by Sept 30" and

v. any changes to the documents remitted to the University concurrently with the
execution of the present Agreement, within 30 days of the change.

i1, EVENT OF DEFAULT

11.1  Each of the following shall be considered an event of default:

11.1.1 when ecither the Association or the University breaches a term or condition of the
present agreement or of any other agreement between the Association and the
University;

11.1.2 when the Association violates its charter, constitution or by-laws, or any duly
approved regulations, rules or policies of the University some of which appear at
www.megill.ca and in particular those in the University Administrative Handbook
located at http://www.mcgill.ca/adminhandbook/;

11.1.3 when, in the course of or subsequent to an audit, the Association’s auditor reports on
material fraud, error or misstatement of the books or financial records of the
Association;

11.1.4 when the Association ceases {0 operate, dissolves, modifies its status, makes any
general assignment for the benefit of the creditors, takes the benefit of any insolvency
or bankruptcy act or if a receiver or trustee be appointed for the property of the
Association or any part thereof.
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12.

13.

11.2

11.4

11

Lh

11.6

In the event of default, either party shall be entitled to written notice of default and upon
receipt of such notice, shall have 30 working days (or 60 calendar days between the period
May Ist and August 31st) within which to remedy such default. .

In the event of a dispute over the existence of a default, either party shall be entitled to submit
the dispute to arbitration by giving the other party written notice no later than 90 calendar
days from the date of the notice referred to in Section 11.2. Such notice shall suspend the
delay granted to remedy the default referred to in Section 11.2.

Submission to arbitration shall be made in accordance with the provisions of the Quebec Code
of Civil Procedures (Sections 940 and following) to one arbitrator chosen by the parties. The
fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be shared equally between the parties.

* Any condition of default shall be subject to a prescription period of three (3) vears.

The parties agree that it is in their best interest to resolve any dispute amicably. The parties
agree to engage in an open and respectful dialogue between the Deputy Provost (Student Life
and Learning) and the President of the Association with the aim of arriving at an amicable
resolution of the dispute.

REMEDIES

12.1

12.2

o
bod
Lad

Upon the confirmation of the occurrence of a default by either party, in accordance with
section 11, the present Agreement may be resiliated forthwith upon written notice to the
defaulting party.

Upon the confirmation of the occurrence of an event of default by the Association, in
accordance with section 11, the parties agree that funds assessed by the University for the
Association shall be allocated to an interim trust fund ("Trust Fund") in the name of the
Association. The Trust Fund shall be administered by the University and overseen by a
committee of five (5) individuals comprising of two University representatives, two
Association representatives and chaired by a person selected by agreement of the parties. The
Committee shall oversee the administration of the Trust Fund until such time as the
Association has been restructured and reinstated, or the default corrected.

It is expressly agreed that such resiliation shall be in addition and without prejudice to all
other rights as provided by law or herein.

STUDENT PUBLICATIONS

13.1

13.2

The University recognizes that the Association's role as a representative body of students may
necessitate the publication of newspapers, newsletters and periodicals directed toward its
members and distributed on main campus. Thus, the Association may distribute, at no cost,
publications ("Publications"), including but not limited to the Quid Novi

For each Publication, whether in print or in electronic form, the following shall apply




1321 The Association shall display on the title page of the Quid Novi, the Association’s
logo and the name of the Publication with the following notice appearing immediately
below the Publication’s name:

“Published by the McGill Law Students' Association 7

13.2.2 The Quid Novi shall also contain the following notice on the second page
in at least 9-point font:

“Quid Novi is published by the McGill Law Students’
Association, a student society of McGill University. The
content of this publication is the sole responsibility of the
MeGill Law Students' Association and does not necessarily
represent the views of McGill University. "

13.2.1 The Publications may not display the McGill name, crest or logo in its masthead or
integrated in any way with the name or logo of the Publication.

13.3  The parties recognise that the editorial, reporting and advertising content of the Publication is
the sole and exclusive responsibility of the Association. For greater certainty, the parties
acknowledge that the University shall not be responsible or liable for the editorial, reporting
or advertising content of the Publications.

13.4  The Association may distribute the Publication as follows:

13.4.1 The list of Approved Campus Locations appears in Appendix E.
13.42 The list of Approved Off-Campus Locations appears in Appendix E.

13.4.3 Off-campus distribution of the Publication is permitted under the following

conditions:

(a) no off-campus distribution is permitted without the prior written
permission of the manager of those off-campus locations and the
authorization from the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning);

(b) no off-campus distribution shall be permitted in public places
including sidewalk boxes;

(c) authorization of the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning) is

revocable upon demand.

13.44 No changes shall be made to the list appearing as Appendix E without the prior
approval and authorization of the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning).

135  The Association shall notify the Deputy Provost (Student Life and [ earning), in writing, of any
change to the Locations listed in Appendix E. Such notification must occur prior to
distribution. Any violation of these terms may be considered an event of default.

13.6  Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, the permission granted to the Association
under this A the distribution of commercial flyers and
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advertisements for third parties, either placed loosely within the Publication or distributed
with the Publication (whether or not placed on the newsstands), which is strictly prohibited.

137 Itis understood that subject to the provisions in this Agreement, the Association is permitted
to produce and distribute to its members at no cost, Association brochures and agendas.

14. BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The following are the general principles governing the business activities of the Association:

14.1  The Association is permitted to engage in the revenue-generating activities on the University
premises as listed in Appendix F.

14.2 The Association must receive the University’s prior written approval for changes in the use of
University space for revenue-generating activities as listed in Appendix F.

143 The Association must have the University's prior written agreement in signing any contracts
or agreements with external parties, for Association's business purposes that lead to the use of
University space and/or facilities by such external parties.

14.4 When University space and/or facilities are used for business activities, the University must
be reimbursed appropriately for the costs associated with the use of such space and/or
facilities; these may include but not be limited to the payment of electricity, janitorial and
maintenance charges. The University shall provide the Association details and documents of
such charges, upon request.

145 Any University space or facilities used for business activities may be subject to a lease
arrangement which may include the payment of rent.

14.6  The University and the Association will undertake to discuss contracts or agreements with
external third parties regarding certain business activities which may lead to the recovery
of costs for the University as well as generate sufficient income to the benefit of both the
University and the Association.

14.7 All costs, taxes and fees associated with the use of the space and/or facilities by the
Association that may become due is the responsibility of the Association.

i5. LOCATION

15.1  In accordance with its status as a student association, the University shall provide the
Association with a room at no charge which shall constitute an office from which to conduct
its activities. The location of this room shall be on or around the Faculty of Law and shall
constitute the Association's principal premises.

152 The University further grants to the Association the use of the University space and/or
facilities which appears in Appendix F at no charge for the term of this Agreement and for




the stated purpose. No change may be made to the use of the space and/or facilities without
the express prior approval of the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning).

15.3  Any request for additional space shall be made to the Deputy Provost (Student Life and
Learning) and shall be subject to availability and may be evidenced by a separate lease
agreement between the parties. All such space shall be confirmed in writing by the Deputy
Provost (Student Life and Learning) whose confirmation shall constitute an amendment to
this Agreement.

15.4  The University reserves the right to bill the Association for any extraordinary cleaning or
repair necessitated as a result of an Association-sponsored activity in University premises

listed in Appendix F.

15.5  All costs, taxes and fees associated with the use of the space and/or facilities by the
Association that may become due is the responsibility of the Association.

i6. FOOD SERVICES

For the term of this agreement the Association shall not operate nor manage, whether directly or under
contract, vending machines and/or food counters. It is the University’s intention to continue operation
of a food counter in the Faculty of Law for the duration of the present agreement, and shall consult
with the Association on any change to the food provider or to any of the services to be rendered.

17. TELEPHONE, MAIL AND E-MAIL

As long as the Association is located in a University building, the Association shall be entitled

17.1  to purchase telephone services from the University, including the "398" exchange number,
long distance services, internal switching and University directory listings. No equipment
other than that provided by McGill Network and Communications services may be attached to
lines provided by McGill.

17.2  to purchase backbone connectivity and Internet access for their computers. This does not
include a right to web casting. This may be subject to a separate agreement.

173 to use the University's e-mail system subject to the Association, its employees, officers and
volunteers, respecting University policies, including but not limited to, the Policy on
Responsible Use of McGill Information Technology Resources.

17.4  use the University's mailing system, including internal delivery. The Association shall pay for
all costs associated with the use, including but not limited to, the cost of external mail sent
through the University mailing system.

17.5  subject to the conditions set out in Articles 6 and 13, the University grants the Association the
right to use “McGill” within its domain name hitp://www.lsa.megill.ca/ within the
Associations” own independent interactive website.
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18.

19.

20.

19.

20.

21.

LSA MOA June 1 2014-May 31 2019

17.6  The Association shall pay for all costs associated with the integration and the use of these
systems, as well as wireless internet service, as set from time to time.

177 Integration in these University systems is a privilege, which may be revoked, should the
University reasonably believe that the Association has used any system in a manner
contravening McGill’s policy. The University shall provide the Association with such
reasonable notice, as deemed to be appropriate, prior to revoking any of these systems.

STAFF STATUS

All staff hired by the Association shall have exclusive Association employment status. The working
conditions, including payroll, of the Associations staff shall be determined solely by the Association.

TEXTBOOKS AND CASEBOOKS

The Association shall not be entitled to sell new or second-hand textbooks or casebooks or other
course material unless authorized by the University Bookstore,

TERM AND REVIEW

The term of the present agreement is five () years beginning on June 1°', 2014 and ending on May
31", 2019. Nine (9) months prior to the expiration of the term, the parties shall review in good faith
the terms and conditions with a view to renew on a mutually agreeable basis. In the event the parties
are unable to agree on the terms of renewal, the terms of the present agreement shall end on May 31,
2019.

NOTICE

Any notice to be given by the present Agreement shall be given to the University at its above-
mentioned address to the attention of the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning), and to the
Association to the attention of its President or any available officer should the President not be
available.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This present Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties pertaining to the subject
matter hereof and supersedes and replaces all prior agreements, undertakings, negotiations and
discussions of the parties.

LANGUAGE

The parties to the present Agreement have requested that the present Agreement and all documents
and notices related therewith be drafted in the English language. Les parties ¢ lu présente ont
demandé que la présente convention et tout document ou avis y afférent soit rédigés dans la lan gue
anglaise.




AND THE PARTIES HAVE SIGNED:

McGILL LAW STUDENTS ASSOCIATION INC.

g L

Eloise Gaigﬁé /
President

Per: } me

Gajan'S athananthan
Vice-President (Finance)

McGill UNIVERSITY 5;

Per: va
Professor Ollivie Dygns
Deputy Provos¥(Student Life and Learning)

S \
Per: g A

Professor Danicl-Jutras
Dean of Law ./

date




APPENDIX A

Association Fee Schedule
in accordance with Article 1 of this Agreement

2013-2014

[ Fund Charge Code Amt  Purpose
802851 LSAS 28.61  Law Students’ Association
151300 LSAP 45.25  Law Career & Placement Office
802851 LSAR 10 Law Computer Research Facility
151300 LSAC 15 Law Computing Fee
802851 LSIS 5.72  Int'l Jmal Sustain. Dev. Law ;
802851 LSIM 5 LSA - Innocence McGill
802851 LSHI 3.5 LSA Human Rights Internship Fund
802851 LSIH 5.5 McGill Journal of Law and Health
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APPENDIX B

Annual Administrative Fee Schedule
in accordance with Article 2 of this Agreement

Amount of Association 2014-2015 2015-2016 20162017 2017-2018 2018-2019
Fees Collected

Less than $400 $450 $£500 $550 8600
$99,999

$100,000- $750 $800 $850 $900 K950
$149 999

$150,000- $875 $925 $1000 $1125 (51250
$199 999 .

$200,000- $1150 $1200 $1250 $1300 51365
$249,999

$250,000 or more 1 $1750 $1850 $1950 $2100 2200

W
e R R e e ]
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APPENDIX C

Charter documents, Constitution and By-laws of the Association
in accordance with Article 10 of this Agreement

Includes:

i Association Constitution and By-laws

1. Copy of the Annual Declaration of Incorporation
iii. Copy of the Insurance Certificate

iv. Copy of the Audited Financial Statements

LSA MOA fune 1 2014-May 31 2019 Page 20
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ASSOCIATION DES ETUDIANTS ET ETUDIANTES
EN DROIT DE L'UNIVERSITE McGILL
LAW STUDENTS’ ASSOCIATION OF MCGILL UNIVERSITY
CONSTITUTION
Established March 12, 1912
Revised March 19, 1999
Revised March 23, 2006
Re-enacted March 28, 2008
Revised & Consolidated March 2011
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PURPOSE

The purpose of the Law Students’ Association is to represent, inform, and develop the educational, cultural,
political, and social interests of its members.

DEFINITIONS

“Corporation” means the LSA and is used to emphasize the corporate nature of the LSA for added clarity in
individual sections;

"Faculty" means the Faculty of Law of McGill University,

“LSA” means the corporate body of the students of the Faculty of Law of McGill University, also known as the
Law Students’ Association of McGill University (LSA)

“LSA Council’ means the LSA Executive, the Class Presidents, the Student Members (at Large) of Faculty
Council and the Law Senator(s);

“LSA Executive” means consist of the President, the Vice-President Academic, the Vice-President
Administration, the Vice-President Clubs and Services, the Vice-President External, the Vice-President Finance,
the Vice-Presidents Internal, the Vice-President Public Relations;

"LSA Groups" means all committees, activities and other groups whose funds are administered by the LSA,
either according the Constitution and By-Laws or by mutual agreement.

PART I: AMENDING THE CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS

1. (1) The LSA may amend the constitution subject to approval of the LSA members in a referendum with
a two-thirds (2/3) majority and in which at least ten percent (10%) of LSA members vote;

(2) The LSA may amend the By-Laws subject to a simple majority vote of LSA Coungcil or a majority
vote of LSA members at an Annual General Meeting, Special General Meeting or referendum.

PART Il: EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NON-DISCRIMINATION

2. The LSA Council adopts these statements of equal opportunity, believing them to be an accurate reflection of
the character of its members. They help define the LSA as a cosmopolitan association, in which a diversity of
people can learn, participate, and work together.

3. The LSA Council adopts the following statement of equal opportunity:

a. The LSA affirms that everyone has a right to equal treatment and equal access to services, goods,
facilities, accommodation, participation and employment without harassment or unlawful discrimination;

b. The LSA recognizes that excellence can flourish only in an environment in which its members can
work, study and participate free from harassment and unlawful discrimination.;

¢. The LSA affirms the necessity of providing all of its members with equal rights and
opportunities;

d. The LSA obliges itself as a provider of services to ensure, where possible, that all its services are
available and accessible to all members;

e. The LSA recognizes its responsibility for removing barriers that may be presented by
organizational complexity, language differences, political differences, cultural insensitivity,
racial intolerance, citizenship, and discriminatory attitudes and practices;

f The LSA will not tolerate harassment or any unlawful discrimination on any basis, including but not
fimited to race, creed, colour, national origin, language, political or religious affiliations, sex, sexual orientation,
age, class, marital status, family refationship, gender identity, or disability.

LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION ASSOCIATION DES ETUDIANT(E)S EN DROIT
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4. The LSA Constitution and By-Laws are to be interpreted and applied in a manner that is consistent with the
aforementioned declarations.

5. (1) Any allegation of violations under Part Ii of this Constitution shall be directed, at first instance, to the
President. If the allegations are against the President, they should be addressed directly to the Judicial Board.

(2) The President, in conjunction with two Vice-Presidents (selected by the President), shall address
the allegation and take appropriate action, in consideration of the wishes of the complainant. Such allegations
shall be dealt with in consultation with both parties, and a report presented to the LSA Executive.

PART lli: LANGUAGE RIGHTS

6. English and French are the official languages of the LSA.

7. At all meetings of the LSA members may use either official language.

8. The Speaker of LSA Council must be able to conduct meetings in both official languages.
9. Resolutions of the LSA may be adopted in either or both official languages.

10. Official notices pertaining to elections, referenda, budgets of the LSA, nominations and applications as well
as any other official notices addressed to the student body at large shall include both official languages.

11. The Constitution and By-Laws of the LSA must be available and shall be equally authoritative in both official
languages.

PART IV: MEMBERSHIP

12. (1) The membership of the LSA shall consist of all persons enrolled in the undergraduate law program
of the McGill University Faculty of Law. This includes full time and part-time students.
(2) Visiting and exchange students are associate members for the length of their time at McGill.

13. Only members, and not associate members, can hold office or vote in any LSA election, referendum,
Annual General Meeting, or Special General Meeting.

14. (1) Any member may withdraw from the Corporation by delivering to the Vice-President Administration
a written resignation.
(2) No fees will be reimbursed to individuals who withdraw from the LSA.

PART V: MEETINGS OF MEMBERS
15. The LSA shall hold at least one Annual General Meeting per academic year.

16. (1) The LSA Council shall decide the date of the Annual General Meeting.

(2) Each member of the LSA shall be given written notice of the Annual General Meeting and its
preliminary agenda not less than ten (10) calendar days before the meeting by email through the use of
electronic listserv.

17. The Annual General Meeting shall consist of:

LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION ASSOCIATION DES ETUDIANT(E)S EN DROIT
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a. receiving the annual report of each member of the LSA Executive;
b. reviewing the financial status of the Corporation, including but not limited to the

balance sheet, general statement of income, and expenditures of the Corporation and all LSA Committees;
c. reviewing the report of the auditor or auditors of the Corporation.

18. (1) The Annual General Meeting shall have a quorum of five percent (5%) of all members. Each
member of the LSA is allowed only one vote on each issue. No proxy voting is allowed.

(2) Motions to adopt, repeal or amend By-Laws or resolutions at an Annual General Meeting require a
special quorum of ten percent (10%) of all members.

(3) Any substantive motions must be given at least 48 hours prior to the meeting to the Vice-President
Administration

(4) The Speaker of the LSA Council shall preside over the Annual General Meeting. The Speaker shall
not vote at the Annual General Meeting. If o speaker is available, then a member of Judicial Board shall
preside.

19. (1) Any item in section 18 that requires approval and does not gain approval at the meeting shall be
tabled to a supplementary Annual General Meeting to be held within ten (10) days of the original meeting.

(2) The members may, if they suspect financial mismanagement, appoint an auditor or auditors for the
purpose of auditing and verifying the accounts of the Corporation. The Auditor shall notbe a director or an
officer of the Corporation.

20. (1) A Special General Meeting may be called at any time during the academic year so long as the
Special General Meeting has a predetermined objective.

(2) A Special General Meeting may be called by the President, two Vice-Presidents, a two-thirds
majority of LSA Council or upon written request of not less than ten per cent (10%) of the members of the LSA
addressed to LSA Council.

(3) Within ten (10) days of receiving the Special General Meeting request, a meeting shall be called by
the President.

(4) Each member of the LSA shalf be given written notice of the Special General Meeting not less than
ten (10) days before the meeting by email through the use of electronic listserv.

(5) Special General Meetings shall have a quorum of five percent (5%) of ali members. Each member
of the LSA is allowed only one vote. No proxy voting is allowed.

(6) Motions to adopt, repeal or amend By-Laws or policies at a Special General Meeting require a
special quorum of ten percent (10%) of all members. ~

(7) The Speaker of the LSA Council shall preside over the Special General Meeting. The Speaker shall
not vote at Special General Meetings. If no speaker, then a member of Judicial Board shall preside.

21. Votes taken at an Annual General Meeting or Special General Meeting shall not compel the disbursement of
LSA funds or bring about the impeachment of a member of LSA Council.

/
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PART VI: THE LSA EXECUTIVE

22. The LSA Executive shall manage the daily affairs of the Corporation, may hold their meetings in camera, as
well as fulfill their responsibilities as set out in the By-Laws.

23. The LSA Executive shall be the President, Vice-President Academic, Vice-President Administration, Vice-
President Clubs and Services, Vice-President External, Vice-President Finance, Vice-Presidents Internal, and
the Vice-President Public Relations.

24. The Signing Officers of the Corporation shall be the President, Vice-President Finance and the Vice-
President Public Relations, any two of which shall be required to sign any given instrument of the Corporation.

25. The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation and shall be responsible for managing
and supervising the LSA Executive.

26. The LSA Executive shall be the Board of Directors of the Corporation for the purposes of the Régie des
Entreprises.

27. The LSA Executive shall have full power and authority to administer and manage the affairs of the
Corporation subject to the results of any referendum. It may from time to time appoint committees and sub-
committees from amongst its membership or the members at large and may delegate to or vest the same with
such powers as may be deemed advisable.

28. Without prejudice to the general powers set out in the Constitution and By-Laws and the powers conferred
by statute, it is hereby expressly provided that the LSA Executive shall have the following powers and when
applicable, the following responsibilities:

a. To purchase or otherwise acquire for the Corporation any property, rights, privileges, or securities
which the Corporation is authorized to acquire, at such price or consideration and generally on such terms and
conditions as they think fit;

b. To borrow money upon the credit of the Corporation;

i. To issue bonds or debentures and pledge or sell the same for such sums and at such prices
as may be deemed expedient;

i. To hypothecate immovable and moveable property or otherwise affect the moveable
property of the Corporation;

c. To sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any property, real or personal assets, interests or effects of the
Corporation for such price or consideration and generally on such terms and conditions as the LSA Executive
may think fit;

d. To appoint any person or corporation to accept and hold in trust any property belonging to the
Corporation or in which it is interested or for any other purpose, and to execute and do all such deeds and
things as may be requisite in relation to any such trust;

e. To ratify any appointment made by the LSA Executive, at the first meeting following such
appointment. In the event that such an appointment is not so ratified, the matter shall be referred back to the
LSA Executive, with the reasons for non-ratification clearly stated;

f. To adopt a preliminary budget of the Corporation for the academic year before October 30th;

g. To exercise a supervisory function over the student members of Faculty Council Committees, LSA
Groups, the Chief and Deputy Retuming Officers. In this supervisory role, the LSA Executive shall have the
authority to remove any of these individuals from their office. Such removal may only be undertaken for the non-
performance of duties or misfeasance in office and is subject to ratification by a majority resolution of three-
fourths (%) of LSA Council in order to take effect:
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h. To determine the membership fee of each member of the Corporation subiject to ratification by the
membership in a referendum.

PART VII: INDEMNIFICATION OF LSA EXECUTIVE

29. Every LSA Executive his or her heirs, legatees, liquidators, assigns, mandataries and other legal
representatives, estate and effect, respectively, shall at all times be indemnified and saved harmiess out of the
funds of the Corporation from and against:

a. all costs, charges and expenses whatsoever which such director or officer sustains or incurs in or
about any action, suit or proceeding which is brought, commenced, or prosecuted against him or her, for or in
respect of any act, deed, matter or thing whatsoever made, done or permitted by him or her, in or about the
execution of the duties of his or her office; and

b. all other costs, charges and expenses which he or she sustains or incurs in or about or in relation to
the affairs, thereof, except such costs, charges or expenses as are occasioned by his or her wilful neglect or
default.

PART Viil: LSA COUNCIL

30. LSA Council shall consist of the President, the Vice-President Academic, the Vice-President Administration,
the Vice-President Clubs and Services, the Vice-President External, the Vice-President Finance, the Vice-
President Internals, the Vice-President Public Relations, the Student Members (at Large) of Faculty Council, the
Class Presidents, and the Law Senator.

31. (1) LSA Council shall invite a Graduate Student Representative Liaison to be present at Councit
meetings.

(2) The Graduate Student Representative shall have full speaking rights but shall not have voting rights,
and shall not be counted for quorum.

32. Meetings of LSA Council may be called by order of the Council, by the President or by two (2) Vice-
Presidents of the LSA on five (5) academic days' notice. Each member of the LSA Council shall be given written
notice of any such meeting.

33. (1) LSA Council shall meet at least once between the beginning of classes in the Fall Term and
October 15th, and thereafter at least once every two weeks during the period while classes are in session.

(2) A meeting may only be delayed once by a week by a motion with a two-thirds (2/3) majority of LSA
Council.

(3) If it is clear that quorum will not be reached, the President and the Vice-President Administration
may delay the meeting by one week.

34. (1) Members of the LSA Council who will be absent from a meeting of the LSA Council shall give
advance notice to the Vice-President Administration, except in circumstances where this is not possible.

(2) Members of LSA Council who are absent from three (3) or more LSA Council meetings during the
academic year shall forfeit their positions unless the reasons for such absences are accepted by motion by a
majority of LSA Council.

(3) Where a member of LSA Council fails to be present at two (2) meetings of LSA Council, the Vice
President Administration shall send that member a notice, without prejudice, alerting him or her that one (1)
additional absence may give rise to removal from office pursuant to section 34(2).

(4) Where a member of LSA Council fails to be present at three (3) meetings of LSA Council, the Vice

President Administration shall send a notice to this party, without prejudice, alerting them to the number of
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absences and of the ensuing Council procedures.
35. Quorum shall be two-thirds (2/3) of the voting members of the Board.

36. Resolutions require a simple majority vote of LSA Council. Amendments to the Constitution or By-Laws may
be made according to the procedure in section 1 of the Constitution.

37. During the period from May 1st until the first meeting of the newly elected Board of Directors, the powers of
LSA Council shall be exercised by the Executive, as is reasonably necessary.

38. In the Winter Term, following the election of the new LSA Council, if possible there shall be a joint meeting
between the incoming LSA Council and the retiring LSA Council. At that meeting, the outgoing LSA Executive
members shall present their year-end reports.

39. If the office of a member of the LSA Council becomes vacant, the VP Administration shall notify the Chief
Returning Officer to initiate a by-election. If there is insufficient time remaining in the Winter Term to warrant the
holding of a by-election, the LSA Council shall, by majority vote, appoint a member of the LSA to fill the vacancy
on an interim basis, until the next election is held.

PART IX: TERM OF OFFICE OF LSA COUNCIL MEMBERS

40. The following members of the LSA Council shall be elected in the Winter Term for a period of one year
beginning on May 1 of each year and ending on April 30 in the following calendar year:

a. the members of the Executive; and

b. subject to section 41, the Class Presidents.

41. The Class Presidents for the first year class and the Student Members (at Large) of Faculty Council shall be
elected in the Fall Term for a period beginning on the date of their election and ending on April 30 of the
following calendar year.

42. Outgoing LSA Executives shall maintain those residual powers necessary to facilitate a transition between
executives during the month of May.

43. The representative of the LSA to the University Senate shall be the student Senator of the Faculty who is a
member of the LSA Council for terms correlative to their elected terms.

PART X: LSA COUNCIL SPEAKER AND RULES OF PROCEDURE

44, (1) The Speaker shall be elected by LSA Council. The election shall be by secret ballot and take place
no later than the 15th of October.

(2) The Speaker shall not hold any other position on LSA Council, shall not have voting rights at
meetings of the LSA Council, and is not a member of LSA Council.

(3) If no speaker presents, Council may appoint a temporary speaker on a meeting-by-meeting basis.
This person shall not vote on any motion, but shall be counted for quorum. LSA Council shall continue to make
reasonable efforts to recruit a Speaker as soon as possible.

(4) Up to two (2) deputy speakers may be elected from among those candidates who presented their
candidacy but were not elected to the post of speaker. This election shall take place immediately following the
election of the Speaker and shall follow the same procedure. :

W
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45. The Speaker presides at all meetings of LSA Council. If the Speaker is not present, the Deputy Speaker
shall be interim Speaker.

46. To the extent judged necessary by the Speaker, the rules of procedure contained in the most recent edition
of Robert's Rules of Order shall be adopted for meetings of LSA Council.

PART XI: THE LSA JUDICIAL BOARD

47. The Judicial Board shall:
a. consist of a Chair and two (2) other members, all of whom are members of the LSA;
b. be independent of LSA Council;
¢. be the final arbiter in matters relating to:
i. the interpretation and application of the Constitution of the LSA; and
ii. the interpretation and application of all rules and regulations relating to elections, referenda,
Annual General Meetings and Special General Meetings of the LSA.
iii. The Judicial Board shall resolve disputes and answer questions according to the
Constitution and bylaws of the LSA, and any other rules governing the LSA.

48. The Judicial Board shalt:
a. follow the principles of natural justice;
b. provide written reasons for its decisions within a reasonable time; and
c. if necessary, establish its own rules of practice and procedure.

49. (1) The decisions of the Judicial Board are final and binding subject to sections 49(2) and 49(3).

(2) The LSA Executive may stay all or part of a judgement of the Judicial Board until the next LSA
Council meeting, but only for a serious reason. The LSA Executive shall publicize the serious reason in the Quid
Novi and on the LSA website. Council may approve the stay until the next Special General Meeting with a two-
thirds majority. If the stay is approved, a Special General Meeting on the topic shall be held at the next possible
opportunity.

(3) A judgement of the Judicial Board may be overturned subject to section 1.

50. (1) Any member or associate member of the LSA may refer questions or disputes to the Judicial Board.
(2) Any member or associate member of the LSA has, in accordance with the principles of natural
justice, the right to be heard on any matter before the Judicial Board.
(3) No claim of any LSA member or associate member may not be denied on standing, but it may be
denied on lack of merit.

51. A member of the Judicial Board may be removed only for the non-performance of Judicial Board duties or
misfeasance in office by a majority resolution of three-fourths (3/4) of LSA Council.

PART XIil: FINANCES
52. The fiscal year-end of the Corporation shall be the thirtieth (30th) day of April of each year.
53. All funds collected or earned by LSA Committees are funds of the Corporation.

54. The financial statements and budget of the Corporation shall be available to members of the LSA by written
request. This request is satisfied by making a copy of the statements and budget available to be viewed by the

M
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member for a fixed period of time. The member will not receive a permanent copy of the document.

55. All LSA Groups shall have their funds administered through the LSA account, subject to the following:

a. The creation of any new account independent of the LSA shall require a majority of no less than two-
thirds (2/3) of LSA Council;

b. Any LSA Group’s bank account that is independent of that of the LSA may be merged with the LSA
accounts by a vote of no less than a two-thirds (2/3) majority of LSA Council, where there is demonstrated
mismanagement or another serious and legitimate reason.

PART XIll: ELECTORAL OFFICERS

56. The Chief Returning Officer shall:

a. preside over all elections and referenda as provided for in the Constitution and ensure they are
conducted in the interests of democracy and faimess:;

b. rule in the first instance on protests relating to the elections and referenda filed under the provisions
set forth in the Constitution and By-Laws;

¢. initiate by-elections for LSA Council vacancies at the request of the LSA Council;

. d. present a written report at the Annual General Meeting on the results and integrity of all referenda

and elections, if requested by any member of the LSA.

57. The Deputy Returning Officer shall;
a. assist the Chief Returning Officer in the performance of electoral duties;
b. replace the Chief Returning Officer should the said Officer is not be able to fulfil his/her duties.

58. Decisions of the Chief Returning Officer or the Deputy Returning Officer may be appealed to the Judicial
Board of the LSA.

PART XIV: REFERENDA

58. A referendum may be initiated by a resolution of LSA Council, or by a petition signed by at least ten percent
(10%) of the members of the LSA.

60. With respect to referenda, the CRO shall have the following duties and powers:

a. call a referendum in accordance with the Constitution;

b. set the dates for campaigning and voting of referenda: and

c. ensure the clarity of all referendum questions and the authenticity of the signatures in a member-
organized referendum.

61. (1) A public notice stipulating the referendum question shall be posted at least five (5) academic days in
advance of a referendum and shall include the time, date, and place to vote on the referendum question.

(2) Online voting shall be adopted at the discretion of the Chief Returning Officer in consultation with
LSA President. :

62. (1) Approval of a referendum question shall require a simple majority voting in a referendum in which at
least ten per cent (10%) of the members of the LSA must vote, with a simple majority voting in favour unless
otherwise provided for in the Constitution.

63. The results of a referendum are binding and take precedence over decisions of the LSA Executive or LSA

Council.
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PART XV: ELECTIONS

64. The President, the Vice-President Academic, Vice-President Administration Vice-President Clubs and
Services, Vice-President External, Vice-President Finance, Vice-Presidents Internal, Vice-President Public
Relations and the Student Members (at Large) of Faculty Council shall be elected by all eligible LSA members.

65. The Class Presidents shall be elected exclusively by the constituency that they represent. The Class
Presidents shall be members of the constituencies they represent.

66. To be valid, an election requires at least ten percent (10%) of eligible voters to exercise their franchise. The
winning candidate shall be the one with the most votes.

67. In the event that the minimum number of voters does not exercise their voting right, a re-election shall take
place within five (5) academic days of the initial election date.

68. In the event of a tie, a second election will take place within five (5) academic days of the initial election date
involving only those candidates who tied with the most votes.

69. (1) Elections for the First Year Class Presidents and the Student Members (at Large) of Faculty Council
shall take place in the Fall Term no later than September 20™

(2) Elections for all other positions shall take place in the Winter Term no earlier than February 14 and
no later than the last day of classes.

70. In elections for Class Presidents and Student Members (at Large) of Faculty Council, eligible voters may
cast as many votes as there are contested positions.

71. Online voting as governed by the By-Laws may be made available to voters at the discretion of the Chief
Returning Officer as long as it respects principles of democracy and faimess.

72. The Chief Returning Officer and the Deputy Returning Officer shall not vote in any election of the LSA.
Neither the Chief Returning Order nor the Deputy Returning Officer shall be candidates in any election of the
LSA for the term of their office.

PART XVI: REMOVAL FROM OFFICE

73. Any member of the LSA Council may be removed from office for impropriety, violation of the Constitution,
non-performance of duties or misappropriation of Corporation funds. A person against whom a motion to
remove is directed shall have the opportunity to respond to the allegations made in LSA Coungil.

74. (1) A motion to remove a member of the LSA Council must be signed by at least fitty percent (50%) of
the members of LSA Council or twenty-five percent (25%) of the member’s constituency.

(2) The motion shall be distributed to all members of LSA Council and be inscribed on the agenda of
the next regular meeting of LSA Council.

(3) The member who is affected by the impeachment motion shall not vote on the motion, nor be
present in the room during the vote.

75. Passage of a motion to remove shall require a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of LSA Council.

M
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76. Anyone removed from office shall have the right to appeal to the Judicial Board.
PART XVIi: FINAL AND TRANSITORY PROVISIONS
77. These sections of the Constitution shall come into force immediately upon ratification by referendum.

78. Upon coming into force, these sections shall replace and make obsolete all previous Constitutions of the
LSA.
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BY-LAWS

By-Law 1: REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Each member of LSA Council and each LSA Committee will publish during the month of March, by March
20" at the latest, an annual report in the Quid Novi or in a listserv e-mail if the Quid Novi does not publish near
enough to the deadline, detailing the projects undertaken during the year and recommendations pertaining to
their portfolios. This is subject to the specific reporting requirements within the various LSA Council positions
and LSA Committee By-Laws.

By-Law 2: EXECUTIVE PORTFOLIOS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

PRESIDENT
3. The President, and in his/her absence the Vice-President Administration, will preside at all meetings of the
LSA Executive and will exercise a general supervision and management of the affairs of the LSA.
4. The President shall:

a. distribute and delegate duties to the LSA Executive as they arise;

b. report about the affairs of the Corporation to the members on a regular basis;

c. serve as an ex-officio member of Faculty Council;

d. serve as the Chair of the LSA Awards Committees;

e. hold weekly office hours at the LSA office;

f. staff all LSA activities, as needed; and

g. be responsible for ensuring that LSA Council’s decisions are catried out.

h. prepare a portfolio budget which will be given to the VP Finance by September 15",

VICE-PRESIDENT ACADEMIC
5. The Vice-President Academic shall:

a. be responsible for representing all LSA students in academic matters in
coordination with the President;

b. be responsible for advising the Associate Dean Academic and Assistant Dean Student Life and
Learning on matters of an academic nature including course selection procedures, curriculum changes, course
scheduling, exams and other forms of evaluation, grading, and any other student concerns of an academic
nature;

¢. serve as an ex-officio member of Faculty Council; -

c¢.1. shall serve as Chair of the Official Languages Committee;

d. be responsible for organizing the Law Partners Program in collaboration
with the Orientation Committee;

e. serve on the LSA Awards Committee;

f. be responsible for his/her weekly office hours at the LSA,

g. be responsible for helping staff all LSA activities; and

h. prepare a portfolio budget which will be given to the VP Finance by September 15",

6. The Vice-President Academic will perform all duties incidental to his/her office,
and such other duties as may be assigned from time to time by the LSA Council or
the President.

VICE-PRESIDENT ADMINISTRATION
7. The Vice-President Administration shall:
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a. be responsible for representing all LSA students in administrative matters in coordination with the
President;

b. be responsible for the LSA Committee appointment process, including advertising positions and
ensuring that interview times are organized as outlined in By-Laws 7 and 8; and ensure that LSA Committees
are reporting to LSA Council following By-Laws 1 and 9;

c. call for nominations for the position of Speaker no later than October 8th;

d. notify the members of the LSA Executive and of LSA Council of their respective meetings;

e. prepare the agenda for meetings of the Annual General Meeting of the LSA, meetings of LSA
Council, and meetings of the Executive and distribute copies to the members of LSA Council, at least two (2)
academic days in advance;

f. ensure proper publicity for the Annual General Meetings, Special General Meetings, town halls, and
meetings of LSA Council;

g. record and prepare the minutes of meetings of LSA Council, Executive, Annual General Mestings,
and Special General Meetings;

h. distribute an electronic copy of LSA Council, Annual General Meeting and General Meeting minutes
to each member of LSA Council by the following meeting and make them available to students at large;

i. will serve as a member of the Awards committee and be responsible for advertising and receiving
nominations;

j. promote and coordinate bilingual communication within the Corporation and with students at large;

k. be responsible for buying and maintaining office supplies;

l. be responsible for maintenance of all LSA IT equipment;

m. hold weekly office hours at the LSA office;

n. be responsible for helping staff all LSA activities; and

0. prepare a portfolio budget which will be given to the VP Finance by September 15",

8. The Vice-President Administration will perform all duties incidental to his/her office and such other duties as
may be assigned from time to time by LSA Council and/or the President.

9. In the event of the President leaving office for any reason, the Vice-President Administration will assume the
duties of the President until such time as a new President is elected. If the Vice-President Administration cannot
or will not assume the duties of the LSA President, another executlve may act as interim President, conditional
on ratification by a majority of the LSA Executive.

VICE-PRESIDENT CLUBS AND SERVICES
10. The Vice-President Clubs and Services shall:

a. act as a liaison and promote al! activities with LSA clubs and committees for the LSA Executive and
LSA Counci;

b. be responsible for developing, distributing, and collecting all forms related to clubs and committees,
including but not limited to, Club and Committee Registration and Funding Application Forms, Coffeehouse
Application Forms, and Dean’s Discretionary Fund Forms;

¢. create a club and committee email list and use this list to inform LSA clubs and committees of the
rules related to advertising, organizing and running events in the Faculty;

d. as directed by the Vice-President Finance, prepare and maintain files documenting the use of LSA
club and committee funds;

e. be responsible for helping to organize and run Club and Committee Coffee Houses with the Vice-
President Internal (Ongoing Events);

f. serve as Chair of the Dean’s Discretionary Fund Committee;

g. be responsible for creating the online student directory;

h. be responsible for organizing, advertising, and running Clubs Day, which must be held
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before September 30th each year.
i. hold weekly office hours at the LSA;
j. be responsible for helping staff all LSA activities; and
k. prepare a portfolio budget which will be given to the VP Finance by September 15"

11. The Vice-President Clubs and Services will perform all duties incidental to his/her office and such other
duties as may be assigned from time to time by LSA Council and/or the President.

VICE-PRESIDENT EXTERNAL
12. The Vice-President External shalil:

a. represent the LSA on the Council of the Students’ Society of McGill University (SSMU)
and report to the LSA Council on SSMU activities;

b.maintain and promote relations with other faculties, student associations, inter-faculty
organizations, and administrative bodies of McGill University in coordination with the President;

c. be responsible for LSA external relations with government and other student lobby
groups;

d. inform law students of all relevant information concerning the SSMU
Health Plan including opt-out dates, and claim requirements;

e. manage the purchase, sale and distribution of LSA apparel, including but not limited to, hooded
sweatshirts;

f. be responsible for his/her weekly office hours at the LSA;

g. be responsible for helping staff all LSA activities; and

h. prepare a portfolio budget which will be given to the VP Finance by September 15",

13. The Vice-President External will perform all duties incidental to his/her office
and such other duties as may be assigned from time to time by LSA Council and/or
the President.

VICE-PRESIDENT FINANCE
14. The Vice-President Finance shall:

a. have charge and custody of, and be responsible for, all funds, securities, books, and vouchers of the
Corporation and deposit all such funds and securities in the name of the Corporation in such bank, trust
company or other depository as may be designated by the Directors of the LSA;

b. be responsible for administering all the financial accounts of all LSA Committees in coordination with
the President;

c. render a detailed report of the conditions of the finances of the LSA at the regular meeting of LSA
Council preceding the Annual General Meeting of members and render such other reports, audited or
otherwise, as the LSA Council may require from time to time;

d. be responsible for preparing the Corporation’s annual budget together with the LSA President and
based on the portfolio budgets provided by each member of the LSA Executive;

e. arrange for the transfer of signing authorities on the LSA bank account
before May 30th;

f. be responsible for renegotiating or renewing the LSA's insurance policy;

g. be responsible for ensuring the preparation of interim (in January) and projected end of year (in late
March) financial statements (income statement and balance sheet);

h. be responsible for ensuring the maintenance and updating on a regular basis the financial books of
the LSA;

i. evaluate and respond to requests for additional funding for clubs, activities
and other events in coordination with the President;
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j- ask the Vice-President in charge of the particular event to look after the timely collection of all
participation fees:

k. be responsible for ensuring at the completion of each major student activity that the individual(s) in
charge provide a detailed financial summary of revenues and expenses for the activity indicating if any amounts
remain to be collected or remain to be paid;

. be responsible for refunding clubs, committees, associations or their student representatives (up to
their allocated budgetary limits) for their incurred activity expenses upon the presentation of receipts or other
reasonable evidence of expenditure:

m. be responsible for selecting an Auditor for the Corporation;

n. be responsible for histher weekly office hours at the LSA;

0. be responsible for helping staff all LSA activities; and

P- prepare a portfolio budget which will be given to the President by September 15"

15. The Vice-President Finance will perform all duties incidental to his/her office and
such other duties as may be assigned from time to time by LSA Council.

VICE-PRESIDENT INTERNAL (ONGOING EVENTS)
16. The Vice-President Internal (Ongoing Events) shall:

a. organize and run all non-sponsored coffeehouses:

b. recruit and coordinate volunteers, including members of LSA Council, to staff non-sponsored
coffeehouses;

¢. be responsible for ordering products for those events falling within the portfolio of the Vice-President
Internal (Ongoing Events) such as alcohol, food and any other products as required;

d. organize the Malpractice Cup in coordination with the Medical Students’ Society of McGill;

e. serve on Skit Nite and Law School of Rock committee and serve as a liaison between the
committees and LSA Council;

f. be responsible for organizing intramural activities throughout the academic year;

g. be responsible for organizing other recreational activities as they may arise;

h. coordinate, supervising and promote all LSA athletic activities in coordination with the President:

j- serve on the Awards Committee:

k. hold weekly office hours at the LSA:

I. be responsible for helping staff all LSA activities: and

m. prepare a portfolio budget which will be given to the VP Finance by September 15"

17. The Vice-President Internal shall work with the Vice-President | ntermal (Special Events) and, with mutual
agreement and consent of the LSA President, may transfer, exchange or accept responsibilities from the other
Vice-President Internal portfolio.

18. The Vice-President Intemal (Ongoing Events) will perform all duties incidental to his/her office and such
other duties as may be assigned from time to time by LSA Council and/or the President.

VICE-PRESIDENT INTERNAL (SPECIAL EVENTS)
19. The Vice-President Internal (Special Events) shall:

a. serve as Chair or co-Chair of the Orientation Committee and shall manage, supervise, and
coordinate all Orientation Activities;

b. prepare an Orientation budget and submit it to the Vice-President Finance and LSA President for
approval on or before July 15th; :

¢. submit a final Orientation Report to LSA Council during the Fall semester which details all aspects of
that year’s Orientation for use in future planning of Orientation;

“
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d. be responsible for organizing social and academic events for the benefit for the LSA student body,
such as, but not limited to, a Halloween party, parties celebrating the beginning or end of academic semesters,
trips to other cities, and any other major events

e. promote all social and academic events of the LSA in coordination with the member of
LSA Council or the Committee responsible for the activity;

f. be responsible for ordering products for those events falling within the portfolio of the Vice-President
Internal (Special Events) such as alcohol, food and other products as required,

g. serve on of the Law Games Committee and act as a liaison between the committee and LSA
Council, and if necessary, serve as Chair until such time as another student is appointed Chair of the Law
Games Committee;

h. coordinate activities with the Vice-President Public Relations and the Vice-President Internal
(Ongoing Events),

i. be responsible for obtaining liquor permits for all activities falling within this portfolio;

j. hold weekly office hours at the LSA;

k. be responsible for helping staff all LSA activities; and

I. prepare a portfolio budget which will be given to the Vice-President Finance by September 15",

20. The Vice-President Intemnal shall work with the Vice-President Internal (Ongoing Events) and, with mutual
agreement and consent of the LSA President, may transfer, exchange or accept responsibilities from the other
Vice-President Internal portfolio.

21. The Vice-President Intemal (Special Events) will perform all duties incidental to his/her office and such other
duties as may be assigned from time to time by the LSA Council.

VICE-PRESIDENT PUBLIC RELATIONS
22. The Vice-President Public Relations shall:

a. be responsible for soliciting law firm and corporate event sponsorship and funding in coordination
with the President by updating and distributing the sponsorship package in the month of June;

b. organize, by assigning tasks and responsibifities to LSA Council members, and coordinate all
sponsored events, including but not limited to, coffeehouses with the sponsoring organization;

¢. ensure collection of sponsorship funds by sending invoices for all sponsored events;

d. serve on the CDO Advisory Board to coordinate activities;

e. hold weekly office hours at the LSA office;

f. be responsible for helping staff all LSA activities; and

g. prepare a portfolio budget which will be given to the Vice-President Finance by September 15",

23. The Vice-President Public Relations will perform all duties incidental to his/her
office and such other duties as may be assigned from time to time by LSA Council.
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By-Law 3: RESPONSIBILITIES OF STUDENT MEMBERS (AT LARGE) OF FACULTY COUNCIL
24. Student members (at Large) of Faculty Council shall:

a. serve on Faculty Counci;

b. serve on the Faculty Council Committees as determined by the LSA President;

C. report regularty to LSA Council on the activities of their respective Faculty
Committees, if any

d. serve on LSA Council;

e. as delegated by a LSA Executive, assist with the organization, staffing and promotion of LSA events,
and any other matters of an interest to students:

f. present to their respective Faculty Council Committees or to Faculty
Council any relevant issues discussed or motions adopted at LSA Council: and

g. publish, as a group, an annual report of at least 750 words pursuant to By-Law 1, detailing the
projects undertaken in the year and recommendations pertaining to their portfolios.

25. Student members (at Large) of Faculty Council shall perform all duties incidental to the office of a Student
Member (at Large) of Faculty Council and such other duties as may be assigned from time to time by LSA
Council or LSA President.

By-Law 4: RESPONSIBILITIES OF CLASS PRESIDENTS
26. There will be two Class Presidents of each year.

27. The Class Presidents shall:

a. act as liaisons between their Classes and the LSA Executive;

b. represent their Classes at meetings of the LSA Council;

¢. hold at least one (1) Class Town Hall per year;

d. be responsible for recruiting and organizing volunteers for Coffee Houses and other
social activities as delegated by the Vice-Presidents Internal;

e. volunteer regularly for LSA coffeehouses and social events as delegated
by the Vice-Presidents Internal;

f. as delegated by the Vice-Presidents Internal promote LSA events to members of their year, by in-
class announcements, the LSA website, Quid Novi and Notice Law listserv; and

g.organize at least one (1) social, educational or cultural event per academic
semester for their respective classes.

28. One third year and one fourth year Class President will serve on the Graduation Committee, subject to
bylaw 52. -

29. Each year's Class President(s) will publish during the month of March an annual report pursuant to By-Law
1, detailing the projects undertaken during the year and recommendations pertaining to their portfolios.

30. All cheque requests must be signed by both Class Presidents, if two Presidents have been elected in a
given year.

31.The Class Presidents will perform all duties incidental to the office of a Class Representative and such other
duties as may be assigned from time to time by LSA Council.

By-Law 5: RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE LAW SENATOR
32. The Senator shall:

m
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a. act as liaison between LSA members, the LSA Council, the University Senate, and any other body
incidental to the office of a Senator;

b. represent the views of the LSA at meetings of the University Senate; and

¢. disseminate information pertaining to the portfolio and of an interest to students
through circulating e-mails, making class announcements, and publishing articles in the Quid Nowvi.

- 33. The Senator will publish during the month of March an annual report, detailing the projects undertaken
during the year and recommendations pertaining to the portfolio subject to By-Law 1.

34. The Senator will perform all duties incidental to the office of a Senator and such other duties as may be
assigned from time to time by LSA Council.

By-Law 6: RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SPEAKER
35. The Speaker shall:

a. preside over meetings of LSA Council, the Annual General Meeting and any
Special General Meeting;

b. as delegated by the LSA President, preside over town halls;

c. notify the Vice-President Administration at least five (5) academic days in advance if
he is unable to attend a meeting of LSA Council, the Annual General Meeting, and any Special General
Meeting;

d. communicate all relevant information and coordinate replacement by the Deputy Speaker if he is
unable to attend a meeting of the LSA Council, and any Special General Meeting;

e. perform all duties incidental to the office of the Speaker and such other duties as may be assigned
from time to time by the LSA Council;

36. The Speaker shall:

a. be removed from his/her duties and replaced by the Deputy Speaker upon more than two
inexcusable absences from meetings of the LSA Council; and

b. be removed from his/her duties upon a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of LSA Council.

By-Law 7: APPOINTMENTS OF THE LSA
37.The Vice-President Administration shall:
a. post, during May, a list of all positions open for appointment;
b. provide a time for the opening and closing of applications;
c. receive applications for appointments; and
d. schedule interview times and places to be held after the election of the LSA Executive.

38. Interviews will be conducted by at least two (2) interviewers who will be
composed of at least one LSA Council member (either incoming or outgoing) and outgoing members of the LSA
Committee where possible.

39. The two (2) interviewers will choose a candidate and present the candidate’s name
to the LSA Executive for approval.

40. The LSA Executive upon approval will bring the list of candidates to LSA Council for approval at the earliest
time possible.

41. Summer appointments to LSA Committees whose work is completed prior to the first meeting of LSA
Council need not be ratified by LSA Council.

w
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42. Committees may include more than one (1) Chair.

43. This By-Law will apply to all student members of the following committees:
(i) All standing committees of Faculty Council;

(ii) Chair(s) of the Graduation Committee:

(iif) Chair(s) of Skit Nite Committee;

(iv) Chair(s) of the Orientation Committee;

(V) Three (3) Awards Committee positions;

(vi) Three (3) Judicial Board members;

(vii) One (1) Chief Retumning Officer (CROY}; and one (1) DRO

(viii) Two (2) members of the Career Advisory Board Commitiee;

(ix) At least one (1) Webmaster position;

(x) At least two (2) Translation Committee positions;

(xi) Chair(s) of the Student Well-Being Committee:;

(xii) Two (2) Dean's Discretionary Fund Committee positions;

(xiii) At least three (3) Law Games Committee positions;

(xiv) Such other committees as LSA Council may from time to time create.

43.1 The position of Chief Returning Officer shall be awarded an honorarium, the amount of which shall be
determined by the Executive.

43.2 The Chief Returning Officer position may be awarded to any SSMU or PGSS member and the position
shall be advertised through these organizations.

By-Law 8: STUDENT REPRESENTATIVES ON FACULTY COUNCIL COMMITTEES
44, (1) Student representatives will sit on the following standing committees of Faculty Council:
(i) Curriculum Committee;
(i) Admissions Committee:
(i) Evaluations Committee;
(iv) Staff Appointments Committee;
(v) Library Committee;
(vi) Prizes and Scholarships Committee;
(vii) Promotions, Tenure and Renewal Committee; and
(Vi) Such other committees on which Faculty Council may from time to time
require student membership.
(2) Student members of Faculty Council Committees shall be selected in the same manner as
members of LSA Committees.

By-Law 9: LSA COMMITTEES

45. The LSA Committees include:

(i) Awards Committee (46);

(it Educational Equity Committee (51);

(iii) Graduation Committee (52);

(iv) Orientation Committee (60);

(v) Career Development Office Advisory Board (61);
(vi) Skit Nite and Law School of Rock Committee (62);
(vii) Green Law Committee (67);

(viii) Translation Committee (68);
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(ix) Student Well-Being Committee (69);

(x) Official Languages Committee (70.1);

(xi) Dean’s Discretionary Fund Committee (71);
(xii) At Committee (72.1);

(xiii) Yearbook Committee (72.2); and

(xiv) Law Games Committee (72.3).

46. The Awards Committee shall:
a. be responsible for the administration and distribution of all LSA awards including:

i. The LSA Teaching Excellence Award, awarded to a Professor every academic year who has
excelled in teaching and demonstrated a considerable commitment to his/her students;

i. The Alan Neil Ash Award, awarded to any student, up to a maximum of four (4), who has
contributed to sporting endeavours of the Faculty during the year of the award;

iii. The Patricia Allen Awards for Participation, will be awarded to any student, upto a
maximum of six (6), who has contributed to the Faculty community through participation in extra-
curricular and co-curricular activities in the year of the award;

iv. The LSA Graduating Student Award will be awarded annually to a maximum of four (4)
students in their graduating year, who have made outstanding contributions to the life of the Faculty
during their years of study.

b. not grant an award to a member of the LSA executive or a member of the Awards Committee.

47. The Chair of the Awards Committee (the LSA President) will decide in consultation with the other members
of the Awards Committee the opening and closing of nominations.

48. The Vice-President Administration will be responsible for advertising and receiving nominations.

49. The Vice-President Administration will, after consulting with the other members of the Awards Committee,
prepare a nomination form before the opening of nominations.

50. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Vice-President Academic will perform the functions of the Vice-President
Administration and the President with respect to the LSA Teaching Excellence Award.

51. The Educational Equity Committee shall:

a. be responsible for promoting equity issues in all areas of Faculty life;

b. be composed of three (3) students and faculty members;

c. provide an annual report at or before the last council meeting. Altematively, the
Committee will send a written report of at least 500 words to the Vice-President Administration to be read at the
final council meeting subject to By-Law 1.

52. The Graduation Committee will be comprised of one 3rd and one 4th year Class Presidents
and up to four other students, who need not be members of the graduating class. Failing agreement on the part
of which Class Presidents, both shall serve on the Graduation Committee.

53. The Graduation Committee may organize itself as it deems necessary, including the creation of sub-
committees, subject to approval by LSA Council.

54. The Graduation Committee shalk:
a. be responsible for the administration of the Valedictorian selection process along with the Chief

Returmning Officer;
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b. with respect to the election of the Valedictorian, all nominations must be signed by ten (10) students
eligible to vote. Only members who are convocating that academic year can nominate a candidate;

¢. administer of the graduation photo process;

d. organize and publicize the graduation ball:

e. assist the faculty in the Convocation ceremony as necessary;

55. The Graduation Committee shall facilitate the giving of the class gift by:
a. being responsible for raising funds from the graduating class for the Class Gift;
b. consulting with the graduating class in the selection of the Class Gift; and
¢. working with the Faculty and Administration with regards to Class Gift reception.

56. The Graduation Committee shall, if interest warrants:

a. publish the annual Faculty yearbook:;

b. promote the annual Facuity yearbook: ]

¢. regularly report to the Vice-President Administration on all matters regarding the
yearbook.

57. (1) The Graduation Committee shall submit a report on its activity at every altemate LSA Council
meeting and remain in regular contact with the LSA Executive regarding its progress.

(2) Should the Committee miss two reporting requirements after its formation, the LSA Council may
appoint a supervisor to oversee the Graduation Committee’s work.

58. The Graduation Committee shall regularly update students on its progress and initiatives.

59. The Graduation Committee shall document its work in a report to be given to the incoming LSA Executive
before the Fall semester begins for its delivery to the subsequent Graduation Committee.

60. The Orientation Committee shall:
a. organize and staff activities during the Orientation period under the supervision of
the Vice-President Internal (Special Events);
b. prepare a preliminary budget for Orientation and submit it to the Vice-President Finance by July 15th
¢. submit a final report, which will include a financial sum mary, at the first meeting of LSA Council;
d. raise funds for the activities planned under the direction of the Vice-President
Public Relations;
e. find volunteers to staff Orientation activities: and
f. help organize the Law Partners Program and incidental events in collaboration with the Vice-
President Academic.

61. The Career Development Office Advisory Board shall:

a. co-ordinate with the Career Development Office Director and the LSA Council with respect to all
Career and Placement related activities at the Faculty;

b. be responsible for organizing and coordinating volunteers for Career Days;

c. be responsible for reporting on a regular basis to the LSA Council;

d. meet at least twice in both the Fall and Winter Terms:

e. consist of the LSA President, Vice President Public Relations, and two student members at large, in
addition to faculty and administration membership; and

f. provide an annual report at or before the last council meeting. Alternatively, the
Committee will serd a written report of at least 500 words to the Vice-President Administration to be read at the
final council meeting subject to By-Law 1.

“
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62. The Skit Nite and Law School of Rock Committee shall:
a. raise money for charities by organizing a variety show and a concert, both presented by the students
of the Facuity.
b. donate funds raised to charity, such as, but not limited to the following charities:
i. Chez Doris
ii. Le Bon Dieu dans la Rue
ii. The Old Brewery Mission
iv. Share the Warmth

63. The decision to donate funds to a charity not listed above must be approved by the LSA Council.

64. The Skit Nite and Law School of Rock Committee Chair(s) will be responsible for making all
Committee appointments.

65. The Skit Nite and Law School of Rock Committee may consist of the Chair(s), Treasurer, Music Director,
Social Coordinator, Stage Manager, Production Manager, Fundraising Manager, and any other committee
members as determined by the Chair(s).

66. The Skit Nite and Law School of Rock Committee will provide detailed reports of all
expenditures and monies raised in refation to Skit Nite and Law School of Rock to the Vice-
President Finance.

67. The Green Law Committee shall:

a. consist of two student members at large, and the VP Administration

b. be responsible for facilitating dialogue with students, administration, food services, clubs and
groups, and other relevant parties in our desire to address and improve issues of sustainability at the
Law Faculty.

68. The Translation Committee shall translate in due time documents provided by the Vice-President
Administration from one official language to the other.

69. The Student Well-being committee shall:
a. co-ordinate with the LSA Executive, and the Associate or Assistant Deans, mental
and physical well-being related activities at the Faculty of Law of McGill University.
b. meet at least two times in each of the Fall and Winter Terms;
c. provide an annual report at or before the last council meeting. Altematively, the
Committee will send a written report of at least 500 words to the Vice-President Administration to be read at the
final council meeting subject to By-Law 1.

70. The Student Well-being Committee Chair(s) will be responsible for making all Committee appointments.

70.1 The Official Languages Committee shall:
(a) be chaired by the VP Academic;
(b) be responsible for
(i) reviewing the Faculty’s Linguistic Policy;
(i) reviewing the use of English and French by the LSA; and
(i) studying the use of English and French at the Faculty generally.

M
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70.2 The Official Languages Committee shall, whenever appropriate or necessary, consult with students
in fulfilling its mandate under paragraph 70.1(b).

71. The Dean’s Discretionary Fund Committee, if the Dean continues to support, shall:

a. meet on a regular basis during the semester as determined by Vice- President Clubs and Services
and be responsible for allocating the Dean’s Discretionary Fund when applications are submitted:

b. report to the Dean and the Faculty’s Financial Officers on a annual basis;

¢. be composed of the Vice-President Finance, the Vice-President Clubs and Services, only one of
whom will hold a vote and two members of LSA Council elected by a majority of LSA Council.

72. The committee will publish guidelines previously approved by the Dean in May.

72.1 The Art Committee shall:
a. consist of three student members at large, and the VP Administration
b. be responsible for advertising, reviewing and selecting artwork for the student lounge.

72.2 The Yearbook Committee shall:
a. consist of one Editor-in-Chief, and three editors
b. be responsible for designing, publishing and promoting the annual Faculty yearbook.

72.3 The Law Games Committee shall: ‘

a. consist of two student members at large, and the VP Internal (Special Events)

b. be responsible for fundraising for the McGill Law team, raising awareness about Law Games, and
finding team members.

By-Law 10: THE QUID NOVI
73. The staff of the Quid Novi is charged with the production and distribution of a student
newspaper in the Faculty. '

74. The Quid Novi shall present an annual budget to LSA Council, and if this budget is approved, then the
Corporation will assume that portion of the Quid Novi's printing costs that are not covered by advertising
revenues.

75. LSA Council shall not interfere with the funding of the Quid Novi, except for the following reasons:
a. mishandling of funds collected from the student body;
b. failure to publish at least once per month between September and April, inclusive; and
c. refusal to publish student notices that comply with the Editorial Policy of the Quid Novi d. failure to
publish an end-of-year report and financial statement.

By-Law 11: RULES FOR ELECTIONS AND REFERENDA OF THE LSA

76. Any decisions to be made concerning all aspects of elections and referendum, including nominations,
campaigning and balloting, will be deemed to be within the exclusive jurisdiction of the Chief Returning Officer,
except where otherwise provided in these rules and regulations and in the Constitution and By-Laws of the LSA.

77. Nomination Rules:

a. the Chief Returning Officer will post at an appropriate time, giving sufficient notice of at least two
weeks to all students, a list of all positions open to nomination and electior;

b. the Chief Retuming Officer will post a time for the opening and closing of nominations, and these
dates and times will be determined by the CRO in consultation with the LSA President;

W
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c. nomination papers submitted after 17h00 of the closing date of nominations will not be accepted,
d. all nominations must contain the words, “We, the undersigned, nominate
, for the position of ,forthe __ academic year”

e. all nominations must contain the words, ‘I, the undersigned candidate, acknowledge that | have read
the LSA bylaws which describe the responsibilities of the position for which | seek election.”

f the Chief Returning Officer will determine the eligibility of candidates pursuant to the
Constitution and By-Laws;

g. with respect to the election of Class Presidents, all nominations must be signed by ten (10) students
eligible to vote. Only members of the same class as the candidate may vote for that candidate;

h. with respect to the election of all LSA Council members (except Class Presidents), all nominations
must be signed by twenty (20) students eligible to vote;

i nominations must be submitted to the Chief Returning Officer in conformity with these regulations.
Delivery to a person and/or place designated by the Chief Returning Officer will
constitute delivery to the Chief Retuming Officer;

i. the Chief Returning Officer will validate the nominations and publicize them twelve hours after the
closing of nominations;

K if at the close of nominations, any position is such that it would resultin a
vacancy or an acclamation, the Chief Retuming Officer will re-open nominations for that position for two
academic days; and

I. the Chief Returning Officer will organise and promote an information meeting for all
candidates before the start of the election campaign period. The purpose of this meeting will be to inform
candidates about electoral regulations and of important times and dates. All candidates and referenda
committee chairs absent from this meeting will be deemed to be in full knowledge of the information
communicated at this meeting.

78. Campaign Rules:

a. campaigning will not begin before the close of nominations. The campaign period will last for three
days. Campaigning will cease at 23h00 of the day before voting begins. At this time, all posters, notices and
signs pertaining to the campaign must be removed from the Faculty;

b. candidates will conduct a fair campaign that respects their opponents. This includes, but is not limited
to, refraining from interfering with the distribution of campaign material and engaging in slanderous
campaigning;

¢. campaigning will only be camied out by the members of the LSA;

d. candidates will be deemed responsible for the actions of all supporters;

e. candidates are limited to a maximum of five (5) posters in campaigning. The placing of these notices
and signs must conform to the general rules of McGill University conceming the placing of such materials on
Faculty premises;

f. the Chief Returning Officer has the authority to remove all campaign materials where the Chief
Retuming Officer believes the materials to be inappropriate;

g. the Chief Returning Officer has the discretion to disqualify, publicly censure, or otherwise sanction a
candidate for serious infractions of the electoral By-Laws. Before a candidate is sanctioned the Chief Retuming
Officer must wamn that candidate to cease the infraction. Disqualification of a candidate is a last resort and must
only occur after all other measures have been exhausted;

h. disciplinary decisions of the Chief Returning Officer may be appealed to the Judicial Board as per
section 58 of the LSA Constitution. The Chief Retuming Officer must make this known at the information
meeting for the candidates described in section 77.1 of these By-Laws. The appeal must be filed within 48 hours
of the decision as per section 81. 3 of these By-Laws;

i. Subject to subsection (j), candidates may not use the Intemet or any other electronic means for the
purposes of campaigning;

M
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j. Notwithstanding subsection (i), the Chief Returning Officer shall create and administer one or more
publicly accessible online group(s), on the platform or platforms of the Chief Retuming Officer’s choice, that will
serve as a public forum for election in which the candidates may participate;

k. candidates may not form slates but may endorse one another. Similarly, candidates are prohibited
from promoting one another on their posters as described in 78.e;

I. candidates may make class announcements to promote their candidacy, for a maximum of two
minutes with the authorization of the class instructor;

m. candidates shall not show videos to promote their candidacy; and

n. forms of campaigning other than those expressly permitted in section 78 of these By-Laws are

prohibited unless they are explicitly approved by the Chief Returning Officer.

78.1 Referenda Campaign Rules:

a. upon announcement of a referendum as per section 61 of the LSA Constitution, the Chief Returning
Officer shall call upon the LSA membership for referenda committee chairs of a “Yes” and “No” campaign. If any
student comes forward to create a campaign, five (5) additional days will be added before the vote for the
purpose of campaigning

b. the Chief Returning Officer will organize and promote an information session for the referenda
committee chairs as per section 77.1 of these By-Laws

c. the organizers and participants of the “Yes” and “No” campaigns are subject to the same electoral
rules as provided ih section 78 of these By-Laws.

79. Balloting Rules:
a. after the closing date of nominations, the names of all candidates duly nominated will be put on the

ballot in alphabetical order by last name.

80. Voting Rules:

a. the time and method for voting will be widely published, sufficiently in advance of the election, by the
Chief Returning Officer through a variety of mechanisms including, but not limited to: mass emails, posters,
articles in the Quid Novi, and class announcements;

b. in the event the Online Voting System is not functional or an eligible elector does not have access to
the Online Voting System, paper ballots will be made available to them;

c. paper ballot polls are to operate for 3 days; and

d. all ballots shall be bilingual.

81. Recounts and Protests:

a. the Chief Returning Officer will retain the ballots in a sealed container for five (5) days after the
results of the election are announced;

b. if the margin of victory is less than five percent (10%) of the total votes cast for any office, there will
be an automatic recount for the office;

c. all protests conceming any elections or referenda will be served to the Chief Returning Officer within
twenty-four (24) hours after the closing of the polls;

d. any candidate in an election of the LSA or any voter having an interest in the outcome of a
referendum of the LSA who is not satisfied with the counting procedures of the vote may request a recount by
the Chief Retumning Officer. Upon the request being granted at the Chief Returning Officer’s discretion, the
recount will take place immediately, or at a mutually convenient time, in the presence of the unsatisfied
nominee, the Chief Returning Officer and any other interested party; and
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e. applications for review of a decision of the Chief Returning Officer must be received by the
Judicial Board within forty-eight (48) hours of the decision.

81.1 Duties of the Chief Returning Officer During Elections :

a. during elections and referenda the Chief Retuming Officer must maintain an active presence on campus,
diligently monitor the campaigns, and be available to members of the McGill Community in the case of electoral
grievances or disputes.

By-Law 12: STUDENT INITIATED FEES

DEFINITIONS

“Designated Student Group” means a student group, club, association or other entity
operating at the Faculty of Law at McGill University who does not possess a
Memorandum of Understanding (“MoU”) with McGill University to collect student fees

on its behalf, and who requests the LSA to use its own MoU to collect specifically targeted
fees on behalf of the Group following a referendum to the LSA student body to

that effect.

82. Any referendum regarding a student fee to be collected for the exclusive use of a
Designated Student Group that is initiated by LSA Council will conform to the following requirements:

a. the proposed term of collection of the fee will not exceed three (3) years;

b. approval of the proposed referendum according to 82.e must be considered at an open meeting of
the LSA Council for which notice has been provided to the entire membership of the LSA within the regular
notice requirements of the LSA Constitution;

¢. a budget including detailed projections of the proposed use of the collected funds will be provided to
the LSA Council prior to LSA Council's consideration of the referendum;

d. at the meeting referred to in 82.b, the individuals or group proposing the referendum will be accorded
speaking rights to address the following considerations: '

i. short and long-term objectives of the Designated Student Group;

ii. evidence of long-term need for or interest in the activities of the
Designated Student Group;

ili. the necessity of a student fee as the means to raise funds;

iv. the justification for the amount sought;

v. the existence of internal and external accountability and oversight
mechanisms for the use of funds;

vi. the presence of appropriate governance structures within the

Designated Student Group; and

vii. after considering the factors referred to in section 82, LSA Council may approve the
initiation of the referendum.

83. Any Designated Student Group receiving a student fee collected by the Corporation for its exclusive use
shall publish in the Quid Novi by March 20" of each year an annual report including financial statements and

information on activities undertaken during the preceding academic year. This report will be endorsed by the
most senior officer of the Designated Student Group.

84. Any subsequent referendum to renew an existing student fee collected for the exclusive use of a Designated
Student Group will be governed by this chapter.

By-Law 13: ACCESS TO INFORMATION
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85. The following documents will be made publicly available on the LSA website:
Memorandum of Understanding with the University

Constitution

Bylaws

Minutes of Council

Reports by Executives to Council

Reports by members of Council

Reports by Committees struck by Council

Reports of Standing Committees

Decisions of the Judicial Board

Cheque Requisition Form

Club Funding Guidelines

I. Club Registration Form

m. Club Budget Form

n. Annual General Meeting Motions

0. LSA Election Nomination Form
p.
q.

FTToQ 0200

Dean’s Discretionary Fund Guidelines
Dean’s Discretionary Fund Application Form
r.  All other LSA policies or documents the Executives sees fit to publish
86. The following documents will be made privately available to any LSA member in an appointment with
an Executive, but should not be published:
LSA Budget
Orientation Budget
Event budgets
Reports produced as a result of any event or project
Submitted cheque requisition forms and receipts
Cheque stubs
Audits
Account statements
General financial documents
Contracts
Club Budgets
I.  Dean’s Discretionary Fund allocations
87. The following documents will be made available only to members of Council:
a. Minutes of all in camera sessions of Council
88. The following documents will be made available only to members of the Executive:
a. Minutes of Executive meetings
89. Any emails received by any LSA email accounts will be kept strictly confidential, unless the operator of
the account deems otherwise.
90. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no documents will be made available where
a. Contractual obligations require them to remain confidential, or
b. Where the Executive deems, as a matter of fact, that their contents require them to remain
confidential.
i. Such decisions will be reviewable in confidential session by the Judicial Board.

AT T TQ M0 0T

By-Law 14: BUDGETING PROCEDURE
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91. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, the following procedure will govern the creation and approval of
the LSA budget
92. After September 15th, the VP Finance will hold a consultation session open to all LSA members (“First
Consultation”) at which he or she will:
a. Make available and explain
i. The audited financial statements or a suitable substitute;
i. The LSA budget from the previous year;
iit. Any proposed changes to the previous year's budget;
iv. The draft portfolio budgets created by the other Executives; and
b. Accept and consider any suggestions or comments from LSA members regarding the coming
year's budget.
93. At least three days after the First Consultation, the VP Finance will hold a consultation session open to
all LSA members (“Second Consultation”) at which he or she will
c. Make available and explain the first draft of the current year's LSA budget
d. Accept and consider any suggestions or comments from LSA members regarding the draft
budget.
94. At the AGM, the VP Finance will present the LSA budget.
95. The AGM may, by majority vote, reserve any item in the budget, and refer those items to the LSA
Council for consideration (s. 99)
e. The AGM may only reserve items, it may not amend the budget in any other way
96. Once there are no further motions on the floor at the AGM to reserve items in the budget, the AGM will
vote to approve the budget, excluding the reserved items
97. After the AGM, the VP Finance will present the budget to Council, along with any AGM resolutions
related to the budget, and the results of the final vote on the budget excluding any reserved items
98. If the AGM did not pass the budget according to s. 96, Council will vote on the budget at the next
meeting, excluding any items the AGM reserved, considering any amendments Council may make
subject to s. 100
f.  If 4/5 members of Council vote in favour of the budget, excluding any items the AGM reserved,
the budget is approved subject to s 99
g. [f 4/5 members of Council do not approve the budget all LSA activities will cease, and the VP
Finance will present a new budget to Council at an emergency meeting no later than 10
academic days later than the vote against the budget, subject to a 4/5 majority vote
99. If the AGM passed the budget, Councit will vote on each item the AGM reserved
h. If a majority of Council votes in favour of an item the AGM reserved, it will be included in the

budget
i.  If a majority of Council rejects an item the AGM reserved, it will be excluded from the budget
100. When Council discusses the budget, only the President or VP Finance may propose

amendments to the budget, but amendments will be addressed in the same manner Council addresses
any other amendments to motions.

LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION ASSOCIATION DES ETUDIANT(E)S EN DROIT
Faculty of Law, McGill University Faculté de Droit, Université McGill
3644 Peel Street, Montreal, QC, Canada, H3A1W9 3644 rue Peel, Montréal (Québec) Canada, H3A 1W9

T: 514 398-6966 F: 514 398-2179 T: 514 398-6966 F: 514 398-2179
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Rechercher une entreprise au registre

Etat de renseignements d'une personne morale au registre des entreprises

Renseignements en date du 2013-08-28 09:29:14

Informations générales

Identification de 'entreprise

Numéro d'entreprise du Québec (NEQ)

Mom

Adresse du domicile

Adresse

1148672802

ASSOCIATION DES ETUDIANTS ET ETUDIANTES
EN DROIT DE LUNIVERSITE MCGILL

3644 rue Peel
Montréal (Québec) H3A1WY
Canada

Adresse du domicile élu (adresse de correspondance)

Entreprise

Nom

Personne physique
Nom de famille

Prénom

Adresse

Immatriculation

Date d'immatriculation
Statut

Date d'entrée en vigueur du statut
d'immatriculation

Date de cessation prévue

hitps://www registreentreprises.gouv.gc.ca/RQAnonymeGR/GR/GRO3/GRO3A2_19A P...

ASSOCIATION DES ETUDIANTS ET ETUDIANTES
EN DROIT DE L'UNIVERSITE MCGILL

Villeneuve

Anne-Sophie

3644 rue Peel
Montréal (Québec) H3AIWY
Canada

1999-07-06 00:00:00
immatriculée
1999-07-06 00:00:00

Aucune date de cessation n'est prévue.

2013-08-28
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Forme juridique

Type Association personnifiée

Date de formation 1992-05-04 00:00:00 Constitution
Lieu de constitution (province, Etat, pays) QUEBEC

Régime constitutif Loi sur les compagnies partie 3
Régime courant Lot sur les compagnies partie 3

Dates des mises a jour

Date de mise a jour de I'état de renseignements 2013-07-30 13:26:02
Date de la derniére déclaration de mise a jour 2013-05-03 13:31:31 2013
annuelle

Date de fin de la période de production de la 2013-11-01 00:00:00
déclaration de mise a jour annuelle de 2013

Date de fin de la péricde de production de la 2012-11-01 60:00:00

déclaration de mise a jour annuelle de 2012

Faillite

L'entreprise n'est pas en faillite.

Fusion et scission

La personne morale n'a fait 'objet d'aucune fusion ou scission.

Continuation et autre transformation

La personne morale n'a fait I'objet d'aucune continuation ou autre transformation.

Ligquidation ou dissolution

L'entreprise ne fait pas l'objet d'une liquidation ou d'une dissolution.

Activités économigues et nombre de salariés

1% secteur d'activité

CAE 9861

Description Organisations civigues et amicales

Précisions (facultatif) FINS SOCIALES ET CHARITABLES SANS BUTS
LUCRATIFS

2¢ secteur d'activité

https://www.registreentreprises.gouv.qc.ca/RQAnonymeGR/GR/GRO3/GRO3AZ_19A_P... 2013-08-28
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Activité non déclarée

Nombre de salariés

Nombre de salariés au Québec

Page 3 sur 10

Aucun

Actionnaires, administrateurs, dirigeants et fondé de pouvoir

Liste des administrateurs

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

https://www.registreentreprises.gouv.gc.ca/RQAnonymeGR/GR/GRO3/GRO3AZ_19A_P..

Arseneault, Francois
Vice-président
2013-05-01

6-2485 rue Massier Montréal (Québec) H2K3R4
Canada

Simpson, John
Vice-président
2013-05-01

3710 rue Peel Montréal (Québec) H3ATWS Canada

Quadrini, Matthew
Vice-président
2013-05-01

1-10110 rue Lajeunesse Moniréal (Québec) H3L2E2
Canada

Roy, Marc
Vice-président
2013-05-01

201-2085 rue Guy Montréal (Québec) H3H2M1
Canada

Gagné, Eloise
Vice-président
2013-05-01

4150 av. d'Oxford Montréal (Québec) H4A2Y4 Canada

2013-08-28
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Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat

Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat

https://www registreentreprises.gouv.qgc.ca/RQAnonymeGR/GR/GRO3/GRO3A2_19A_P...
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Sathananthan, Gajan
Vice-président
2013-05-01

5300 rue Hutchison Montréal (Québec) H2V4B3
Canada

Rondeau, Marie
Vice-président
2013-05-01

6-1469 boul. Saint-Joseph E Montréal (Québec)
H2J1M6 Canada

Freedman, Alexandra
Vice-président
2013-05-01

319 av. Stuart Moniréal (Québec) H2V3G9 Canada

Villeneuve, Anne-Sophie
Vice-président
2013-06-17

3812 rue de I'intendant Laval {Québec) H7E5HS8
Canada

HOFFMAN, STEFAN
Vice-président
2010-05-01
2011-05-01

6697 av. Somerled Montréal (Québec) H4VITS
Canada

MANDJEE, TARA
Vice-président
2010-05-01
2011-05-01

476, AVENUE ELLERTON MONTREAL (QUEBEC)
HaP1E4

FINLEY, MICHAEL
Vice-président
2010-05-01
2011-05-01

2013-08-28
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Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

https://www registreentreprises.gouv.gc.ca/RQAnonymeGR/GR/GRO3/GRO3AZ_19A P...
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4405, COLONIALE, APPARTEMENT 4 MONTREAL
(QUEBEC) H2M2C5

BIRBILAS, LAURIE
Vice-président

2016-05-01

2011-05-01

4905, HAMPTON MONTREAL (QUEBEC) H3X3P8

VALLEE, HELENE
Vice-président
2010-05-01
2011-05-01

APPARTEMENT 805 1230, AVENUE DOCTEUR-
PENFIELD MONTREAL (QUEBEC) H3G1B5

EMERY, KIRK
Vice-président
2010-05-01
2011-05-01

3485, RUE HUTCHINSON MONTREAL (QUEBEC)
H2X2G2

GORDON, MASON
Vice-président
2010-05-01
2011-05-01

156, BRAESIDE DOLLARD-DES-ORMEAUX
(QUEBEC) H9A2B3

GRENIER, JULIEN

Vice-président

2010-05-01

2011-05-01

100, RUE DU FIEF VARENNES (QUEBEC) J3X1Y9

GOULAMHOUSSEN, FARAH
Vice-président

2010-05-01

2011-05-01

2110, ETIENNE-MONTGOLFIER SAINT-LAURENT
(QUEBEC) H4R3H7

Coursol, Cathering

2013-08-28
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Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

https://www registreentreprises.gouv.gc.ca/RQAnonymeGR/GR/GRO3/GRO3A2_19A _P..
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Vice-président
2011-05-01
2012-05-01

2242 rue Hochelaga Montréal (Québec) H2K4ANSE
Canada

Bernier, Carcline-Ariane
Vice-président
2011-05-01
2012-05-01

3550 av. Northcliffe Montréal (Québec) HA4A3KY
Canada

Mudroney, Michael
Vice-président
2011-05-01
2013-05-01

1809-1645 BLVD De Maisonneuve O Montreal
Québec H3H2ZN3 Canada

Gagné, Eloise

Vice-président

2011-05-01

2012-05-01

4150 av. d'Oxford Montréal (Québec) H4A2Y4 Canada

Papadolias, Georgia

Vice-président

2011-05-01

2012-05-01

234 rue du Domaine Laval (Québec) H7X3R8 Canada

Lamarre-Leroux, Michéle
Vice-président
2011-05-01
2012-05-01

3273A rue Ontario E Montréal (Québec) HIW1P5
Canada

Lalani, Faiz
Vice-président
2011-05-01
2012-05-01

1609A-3600 av. Parc Montréal Québec H2X3R2
Canada

2013-08-28
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Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Mom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat

htips://www registreentreprises.gouv.ge.ca/RQAnonymeGR/GR/GRO3/GRO3AZ_19A_P...
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Clarke, lan

Vice-président

2011-05-01

2012-05-01

61 AV. Woodcrest St-Albert Alberta TBN3H8 Canada

Splawski, Graham
Vice-président
2011-05-01
2013-05-01

408-3605 rue Saint-Urbain Montréal {Québec) H2X2P1
Canada

Betley-McKinnon, Alexandra
Vice-président

2012-05-01

2013-05-01

3435 rue Sainte-Famille Montréal (Québec) H2X2K6
Canada

Ferreira, Evita
Vice-président
2012-05-01
2013-05-01

7-4500 AV. Girouard Montreal Québec HAA3ES
Canada

Higdon, Andrew
Vice-président
2012-05-01
2013-05-01

6046 av. Durocher Montréal (Québec) H2V3Y8
Canada

Baker, Andrew
Vice-président
2012-05-01
2013-05-01

2-131 av. Duluth E Montréal (Québec) HZW1TH2
Canada

Girard, Paul
Vice-président
2012-05-01
2013-05-01

Z

2013-08-28



Revenu Québec - Etat de renseignements

Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Nom

Fonction

Date de début du mandat
Date de fin du mandat
Adresse

Page 8 sur 10

8-3870 rue Saint-Hubert Montréal (Québec) H2L4A5
Canada

Kettani, Sarah

Vice-président

2012-05-01

2013-05-01

376 rue Milton Montréal (Québec) H2X1V9 Canada

Gilbert, Carole
Vice-président
2012-05-01
2013-05-01

202-5435 RUE St Denis Montreal Québec H2J4B7
Canada

Lessard, Michaél
Vice-président
2013-05-01
2013-06-17

6530 av. De Renty Montréal (Québec) HIM1MA4
Canada

Dirigeants non membres du conseil d'administration

Président
Ii n'y a pas de président.

Secrétaire
Il n'y a pas de secrétaire.

Principal dirigeant
Il n'y a pas de principal dirigeant.

Fondé de pouvoir

Il n'y a pas de fondé de pouvoir.

Administrateurs du bien d'autrui

Il n'y a pas d'administrateur du bien d'autrul.

Etablissements

https://www registreentreprises.gouv.ge.ca/RQAnonymeGR/GR/GRO3/GRO3A2_19A_P... 2013-08-28
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Il n'y a aucun établissement.

Documents

Documents en traitement

Aucun document n'est actuellement traité par le Registraire des entreprises.

Documents conservés

Tybe de document Date de traitement
Déclaration de mise a jour courante ‘ 2013-07-30 13:26:02
Déclaration de mise & jour courante 2013-05-09 18:18:38
DECLARATION DE MISE A JOUR ANNUELLE 2013 2013-05-03 13:31:47
DECLARATION DE MISE A JOUR ANNUELLE 2012 2012-06-12 01:05:47
DECLARATION DE MISE A JOUR ANNUELLE 2011 2011-06-13 15:24:19

Déclaration annuelle 2010
Déclaration annuelle 2009
Avis de défaut
Déclaration annuelle 2008
Avis de défaut
Déclaration modificative
Déclaration annuelle 2007
Déclaration annuelle 2006
Déclaration annuelle 2005
Déclaration modificative
Déclaration annuelle 2004
Déclaration annuelle 2003
Avis de défaut
Déclaration annuelle 2002
Déclaration annuelle 2001
Déclaration annuelle 2000
Déclaration annuelle 1999

2010-09-28 00:00:00
2010-07-15 00:00:00
2010-04-20 00:00:00
2009-07-16 00:00:00
2009-04-07 00:00:00
2008-10-22 00:00:00
2007-11-02 00:00:00
2006-08-02 00:00:00
2005-10-28 00:00:00
2005-08-19 00:00:00
2004-11-18 00:00:00
2004-09-08 00:00:00
2004-05-20 00:00:00
2003-01-10 00:00:00
2002-01-25 00:00:00
2001-04-02 00:00:00
2000-02-18 00:00:00

Lettres patentes supplémentaires (changement de nom Partie - 1, 11 ou III) 1999-09-29 00:00:00

Déclaration d'immatriculation

1999-07-06 00:00:00

Nom et autres noms utilisés au Québec

Date de mise & jour de l'index des noms 1595-09-29 00:00:00
Mom
Nom “ ‘Version(s) du nom Date k Daté ‘de'fih S‘Etuaktio‘nk
dans une autre langue d'entrée en  d'utilisation
L' st S0 , - ,
ASSOCIATION DES ETUDIANTS  LAW STUDENTS 1999-09-29 En
ET ETUDIANTES EN DROIT DE ASSOCIATION OF vigueur

L'UNIVERSITE MCGILL

MCGILL UNIVERSITY

ittps://www . registreentreprises.gouv.qe.ca/RQAnonymeGR/GR/GRO3/GRO3AZ_19A_P... 2013-08-28
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ASSOCIATION DES ETUDIANTS  MCGILL LAW STUDENTS  1993-03-01  1999-09-29 Antérieur
EN DROIT MCGILL INC. ASSOCIATION INC.

Autres noms utilisés au Québec

Autre Version(s) du nom dans une Date d'entrée en Date de fin Situation
nom autre langue vigueur d'utilisation

Québecrin

© Gouvernement du Québec

https://www registreentreprises.gouv.qc.ca/RQAnonymeGR/GR/GRO3/GRO3A2_19A_P... 2013-08-28



Conditions particuliere
Declaration

REPLAUING 3353625934 COMMEROCIAL POLICY

SLEBE o €5 £8
LAW STUDENTS ASSOCIATION OF P B CANADA RISQUES E£7Y P59
MCGILL UNIVERSITY - ASSURANCES IHL.
36464, PEEL ST. 2001, MUGILL COLLEGE
HMONTREAL . 0O BUREAU 2200
HEA 1WY MOMTREAL . QO HIA 161 OFF. ooy
THAHSACTION ¢ TRANSALTION PRISE B EFFET LA PRESENTE ASSURANC
» DU CHANGEMENT BASE DES DECLARAT .
’ ’ o v e “ CONDITIONS PARNCULIERTS T7 2
17 02 2413% L7 02 24014 SHENEWAL Al PAIERIENT BE LA PRIME
: i CORS
. st - foss G e P SURER
LI dteess as Gty FEFECTIVE GATE DANCE ?&’2?}9‘ Feex
POLICY PERIOD OF MODIFICATHIR YHE POLICY
SUBIECY ?f) THE GENERAL AND ADDITIONAL COHDIYIONS { FORM: ZGH.0 VERSION 6.3
LOUAT O - i - MUN. T, 4524808 -4
3644 Riub PEEL CONSTRUL T IOy 2
MOMTRE AL
PHSURED 'S BUSINESS THSPEDT [0y
STUDENT 'S ASSOCTATION - HON PROFIT ORGAHIZATION GPBH1ER
o Tt s e e e e e BETALL OF COVERAGSES - - - - . o . oL ...
N BESCRIFPTION - FORM LiMyy ’
INSURANUE DEDUCTIBLE PREMIUM
£ COHNTENTS 84 034 .1-% 500 SBoang
GO OFFICE CONTENTS FLOATER £OgmM B4 0i7.5%-5%, 500 5040
rex PLUS FORM o+ »
& BUSINESS INTERRUPTION IHSURANCE - ZE4 .07, 8oa0n
EXTRA EXPENSE FoORM
COMPREHENSIVE DISHONESTY, ISAPPERANCE 1G] -5, 500 7 hon
AMD DESTRUCTION POLICY - FSRN A
ONEY AND SECURITIFES - t0gs INSIOE THE PREMISES 110.2-4. 250 2 500
MONEY AND SECURITIES LOSS OUTSIDE THE PREMISES 110.5-4, 250 2 500
MONEY ORDERS AND COUNTERFELT PAPER 11g.4-46. 7OnG0
CHUHRRENDY COVERAGE
9 DEPUSITORS FORGERY COVERAGE 1D .54 2 ohag
0 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY - CIVICA STANDARD 991 .8-4,
LIMITS OF INSURANCE
EACH OCCURRENDE LIMIT 7 onao g 000 ooo
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS AGGREGATE LiMiy ¢ G000 goo
PERSONAL AND ADVERTISIHG INJURY LiMIT 72 000 aon
GEMNUERAL AGGREGATY LIMIT N/A
TENANTS® LEGAL LIABILITY LIMIT 500 250 008
MEDICAL EXPENSE LIMIT HOoo00
HM OF BUSINERS: ORGANIZATION
)Si&iﬁs BESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF ALL
REMISES YOU OWN, RENT O OLOUPY:
STUDENT 'S ASSCUIATION - HOMN PROFIT ORCANIZATION -
PREMIUM 1 660 o
GPEF O RO.4 - QUEBEC AUTOMUBILE IHNSURANCE POLICY 895 .91, 2 Qo0 oun
(HOR-OWHED FORM:
EXTENSIONS OF COVERAGE - CIVICA SUPERIOR 98 . 9-4. ] )
12 EARTHOQUAKE SHOCK ENDORSEMENT P59 . 0-6. 2 1% 9?3
R OFL OO IMSURANDY 15%.1-1. tg ton 1t 008
i SEWER BACKING UP COVERAGE iB9,.2-1. 2 500 2% aog
PG !

BROKI H




Conditions particuliere
Declaration

Hact

AU L9LTR HEPLADING 334265354 COMMERGCIAL POLICY
LAW STUDENTS ASSOCYIATION OF BFL CANADA RISQUES E1 | S 1
MOGILL UMNIVERSITY SSURARCES IN;i o -
3664, PEFL ST 2001, MUGILL COULLEGE
HONTRLAL . O BUKE AL 2200
HIA WY HONTREAL ., Q2 H3A 1061
DUREE DU CONTRAT R FRANSACTION / TRANBACTION $5§§i2é§2i;? LA BRESENTE ASSURAR
[ g ¢ I 17 402 26ta HENMNEFWAL Al

LFFECTIVE DATE
OF BMODIFIDATION

LARATLON HOORSEMENT

LAW STUDENTS ASSOUIATION OF HMOGILGL UNIVERSITY
ASSOCIATION DES ETUDIANTS £1 ETUDTANTES EN

DROIT DY LPUNIVERSITE MEGILY

ADDITIONAL INSURED

THE ROYAL INSTITUTION FOR THE ADVANCERINT OF
LEARNING

HEGILL UNIVERSITYY

APPLICABLE 10 THE COMMERCIAL GEMERAL LIABILITY
THSURANCE . 1T 1S AGREED THAT THE ROYAL
INSTITUTION FOR THE ADVANCEMENI OF LEARNING AND
MOGILL UNIVERSITY IS ADDED AS AN ABDITIONAL
[NSURED, BUT ONLY IN RESPEST OF THE LIABILITY
ARTSING OUT OF THE ACTIVITIES OF THE STUDENT 'S
ASBOCTIATION (LSA) AT THE PREMISES LOUATED AT
3646, PEEL STREET. MONTREAL . Qoo

[N THE EVENT THAT THE POLICY 1% CAHCELLED,

THE THSURER WILL SEND WRITTENM NOTICE TO

THE ROYAL INSTITUTION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT 0F
LEARNING AND MCGILL UNIVERSITY. THE CANCELLAYION
TAKES EFFECT 30 DAYS AFTER RECEIPT Of SULCH
NOTICE AT THE FOLLOWING ADDRESS: 845,

SHERBROOKE ST, WEST, MONTREAL. G H3A 215
DIFFERFNCES IN CONDITIONS 780 .2-1.
PROGRAM - ACADIMIC STUDENTS ASSOUIAT LONS 894.72-1.

[ EHMHERGEHNLY MU M B EH e
# IF YOU HAVE A SERIOUS LOSS AFTER REGULAR BUSINESS -
5 HOURS . PLEASE CALL » 1 8466 944 2624 :

A O T T T T S T T S *

. s 3 A B tE %A
ATED OF 0901 -201% S0, o0 AMOUNT DUb o { ) it

PUNBAZH0




PROPERTY COVERAGE - BUILDINGS AND/OR CONTENTS

Words that appear in bold type have special meanings as defined in Special Provisions clause 6 Defimions Defimtions of certain add L onal words are found in the

General Conditions {form 240 Oe)

INDEMNITY AGREEMENT

In the event that any of the insured property I1s lost or damaged dunng the
policy period by an insured peril, the Insurer will indemnify the Insured against
the direct loss or damage so caused to an amount not exceed ng whichever 1s
the least ot

a the value of the loss or damaged property as determned ¢ Sgecial
Provisions clause 2 -Basis of valuation

the interest of the Insured in the property

the amount of insurance specified on the Declarations for the lost or
damaged property

The inclusion of more than one person or interest shall not increase the
Insurer's liabity

1. INSURED PROPERTY
11 Coverage 034.0

This form insures the building(s) situated at the location(s) specified
on the Declarations

12 Coverage 034.1

This form insures stock, equipment and tenants’ improvements
usual or incidental to the insured’'s business at the location(s)
specified on the Declarations

13 Coverage 034.2

Commercial Property Floater on property at temporary
locations, other than at a specified location, except while in
transit or outside Canada or the continental United States of
America. There shall be no liability under this item at any location
owned rented, or contrelied in whale or in part by the Insured

14 Coverage 034.3

Commercial Property Fioater on property in the course of transit
ncluding loading and unloading and until delivered within Canada or
the continental United States of Amernca

15 Coverage 034.4

Commercial Praperty Floater on sampies, whether in transit or

otherwise, within Canada or the continental United States of 2.
America, In the custody of a sales representative, subject to the

limit stated on the Declarations.

2. INSURED PERILS
This form, except as otherwise provided insures aganst all nsks of
dwect physical foss of or damage to the insured property

3. DEDUCTIBLE
The Insurer (s hable for the amount by which the loss or damage caused

by an insured penl exceeds the amount of the deductible specified on the
Declarations in any one occurrence

Should any occurrence give nse 1o the application of more than one
deductible amount for any one premises, only the highest deductible wall
be apphed

EXCLUSIONS

1. EXCLUDED PROPERTY
This form does not insure loss of or damage to*

1.1. sewers, drains or watermains located beyond the outside beanng
walis or foundaﬁons of the bulldlng but this exclusion does not
apply to loss'or damage caused direclly by Named Perils;

‘ 1.2 outside communication towers, anlennae (Including salellite
rece ) and attached equipment. This exclusion does not apply
to foss or damage caused directly by Named Perils;

1.3 property at locations which, to the knowledge of the Insured, are
vacant, unoccupied or shut down for more than 30 consecutive days;
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. money, cash cards, bulion, plabnum, precious metals and alloys,
securities, stamps, tickets (except lottery tickeis) and tokens, or
evidence of debt or title,

. aulomobiles, wate ft, am “bious or air cushion vehicles, aircraft,
spacecraRt, motors or other accessories attached to or
mounted such property. This exclusion does not apply to
watercraft or amphiblous  alr cushion vehicles held for sale, or to
uniicensed automobiles or unlicensed trailers used in the business
of the Insured when on the premises;

6. property from the time of leaving the Insured's custody if it is
1.6.1. loaned or rented or leased to others; or

1.8.2. sold by the Insured under conditional sale or instalment
payment or cther deferred payment plan

This exclusion (1.6.} does not apply while such property is in the

custody of aca  r for hire for the purpose of delivery at the risk of the
Insured;

7. growing plants, trees, shrubs or flowers, all while outside the

bullding except as provided in the Extensions of Coverage,
Clause 2.,

8. animals, fish or birds This exclusion does nat apply to loss or damage
auseddlred!ybyNamedPeﬂlsorbyMoraﬂemptedmen;

8. furs, fur garments, jewels, jewellery, costume jewellery, walches,
pears, or precious and semi-precious stones This exclusion does
not apply to
1.8.1. loss or damage caused directly by Named Perils; or
1.9.2. the first $1,000 of any loss otherwise insured,

.10. properly Insured under the terms of any Ma Insurance, and
property while waterbome except while on a regular ferty or railway
car transfer In connection with land transportation,

RER pmpenyllega_nyachmd,kept.stotedornmponed;propenysmdor
conﬂwatedforbreadwdmylaworbyo:ﬂerdanypubﬁcamhonv
-12. roadways, walkways, parking lots, other exterior paved surfaces,
retalnlng walls or permanently installed landscape structures outside
e bui building. This exclusion does not apply to the first $10,000
including debris removal of any loss otherwise insured
EXCLUDED PERILS

This form does not Insure against loss or damage caused directly
or indirectly:

2.1, to eiectrical devices, appliances or wiring caused by artificially
generaled electrical currents, including arcing This exclusion does
not apply to foss or damage caused directly by resultant fire or

explosion p such perils are not otherwise excluded in this
form,
22. a8 to any pressure vessel nomal internal working
pressure greater than 103 kilopascals (1§ pounds per square
inch) above atmaspheric pressure;

b. o any boiler, including its  nected piping and equipment.
which contains steam or water under steam pressure {(except
tanks having an internat diameter of
810 millimetres (24 inches) or less used for the storage of hot
water for domestic use);

caused directly or indirectly by explosion, rupture, bursting, cracking
buming out or bulging of such property while connected ready for use
This exclusion (2.2. a. and b.) does not apply to:

- manually portable gas cylinders:

~ exploslon of natural, coal or manufaciured gas,

~ explosion of gas 0 unconsumed fuel within a fumace or within
the gas passages from the fumace to the atmosphere,

23. by snowslide, landslide, subsidence or other sarth movement This
exclusion does not apply to property in transit, or to Joss or damage
caused directly by resuitant fire, explosion, smoke or leakage from
fire protective equipment provided such perils are not otherwise
excluded in this form;
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EXCLUSIONS {continued)

2.4. by explosion {except explosion of natural, coal, or manufactured
gas}, collapse, rupture, bursting, cracking, burning out or bulging of
the following property owned, operated or controlied by the insured

2.4.1. the portions containing steam or water under steam pressure
of alt boilers generating steam, and piping or other equipment
connected to said boilers and containing steam or water under
steam pressure;

24.2. piping and apparatus or their paris normally containing steam
or water under steam pressure from an extemal source and
while under such pressure;

24.3. other vessels and apparatus and their connected pipes while
under pressure, or while in use or in operation provided their
maximum normmal  intemal working pressure  exceeds
103 kilopascals (15 pounds per square Inch) above
aimospheric pressure, but s exclusion does not apply to
loss or damage resulting direclly from the explosion of
manually porta egascylind orofta  having aninternal

ter of 610 millimetres (24 inches or less used for the
heating and § e of hot water for domestic use;

24.4. moving or rotating machinery or its parts;

2.4.5. any vessels and apparalus and their connected pipes while
unde pressure tests, but this exclusion does not apply
to other insured prope  that has been damaged by
such explosion,

24.8. gasturbines,

This exclusion (2.4.) does not apply to loss or damage caused by
resultant fire;

2.5. by settiing, expension, contraction, mo ng, shifting  cracking. This
exclusion does apply to loss or damage caused directly and
concurrently by a peril not otherwise excluded in this form;

2.8. In whole or in part by earthquake. This usion applies whether or
not there are one or e other causes or events (whether covered
or noy) that contibute concurently or in any sequence to the
occasioning of the loss or da ge, excep for loss or damage
caused directly by resu  nt fire, explosion, smoke or leakage from
fire protective eq pmen provided such Is are not otherwise
excluded in'this form;

2.7, i whole or in part by flood, including surface water, waves, tides,
tidal waves, tsunamis, or e breaking out or overflow of any natural
or artificial body of water This exclusion applies whether o not there
are one or more other causes or events (whether covered or not)
that contribute concurrently or in any sequence to tha occasioning of
the loss or damage, except for loss or damage caused directly by
resultant fire, explosion, smoke, leakage from fire protective
equipmant, provided such perils are not otherwise excluded in this
form. This exclusion does not apply to loss or damage caused
directly by leakage from a watermain; !

Exclusic 2.6 and 2.7. do not apply to property in

28. by seepage, leakage or nflux of wa r derived from natural sources
through basement walls, doors, windows or other openings,

foundations, basement , dewalks or si lights, unless
concurrently and directly caused by a peril not otherwise excluded in
this form,

2.8.1, by the backing up or overfiow of water from sewers, sumps,
septic tanks or drains, wherever located,

2.9. by the enfrance of rain, sieet or snow through doors, windows,
skyfights or other similar wall or roof openings, unless through an
aperture concurrently and directly caused by a peril not otherwise
exciuded in this form;

2.10. by centiifugal force, mechanical or electical breakdown of
derangement, in or on the premises, is exclusion does not apply
10 loss or damage caused directly by resultant fire;

2.11. a. by dampness or dryness of atmosphere;
b. by changes in or extremes of temperature, heating or freezing;

¢. by total or partial interruption to the supply of electricity, water,
or steam;

d by shrinkage, evaporation, loss of welght, leskage of contenls,
exposure to iight, or change in colour or texture of finish;

e by contamination,
f by marring, scratching or crushing
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212
213

214
215,

218

2.17.

2.18.

2.18.

2.20.

2.21.
2.22.
223.

224,

This exclusion {2 11.) doss not apply to loss or damage caused

directly by:

- Named Perils rupture of pipes or breakage of apparatus not
excluded under paragraph 2.2. hereo! theft or attempted theft or

an accident to transporting conveyance, provided such perils are
not otherwise excluded,

— damages lo pipes caused direclly by free2ing unless such pipes
are excluded in paragraph 2.2. hereof,

by smoke from agncultural smudging or industrial operations;

by rodents, insects, bats, raccoons, skunks or vermin This exclusion
doas not apply to loss or damage caused directly by a peril not
otherwise exc! ded in this form,

by delay, loss of market, or loss of use or occupancy

in or part by war, invasion, act of foreign enemy, hostifities
(whether war ~ declared or of), civil war, rebellion, revolution,
in * n or military . This exclusion applies whether or not
there are one or more other causes or events (whether covered or
not) that contribute concurrently or in any sequence to the
occasioning of the loss or damage,

a by any nuclear t (as defined in the Nuclear Liability Act or
any other nuclear Fability law or statute, or any amending
law) or nuclear explosion, except for ensuing loss or damage
which resulis directly from fire, lighting or explosion of naturai,
coal or manufactured gas provided such perils are not otherwise
exciuded in this form,

b by contamination by radioactive materiat,

by any dishonest or criminal act on the part of the Insured or any
other parly of interest, employees or agents of the insured, or any
person 1o whom the property may be entrusted (bailees for hire
excepted), but this exclusion does not apply to physical damage,
caused directly by employees of the Insured, which resulls from a
peril'otherwise Insured'a  not otherwise excluded under this form;

to equipment or stock while actually being worked upon and
directly res ng from such work or caused by any repairing,
adjusting or servicing of equipment or stock. This exclusion does
not apply to foss or damage caused directly by resultant fire or
explosion provided such perils are not otherwise excluded in this
form;

3

prodma y or re olely, arising in consequence of or contiibuted to
by the enforcement of any by-law, regulation, ordinance or law
regulating ing or the de ition, repair or construction of
bulidings or structures, which by-law, regulation, ordinance or law
makes it Impossible to repair or reinstate the property as it was
immediately  rto the loss;

by wear and tear, rust or corrosion, gradual deterioration, hidden or

"latent defect or any qualily in property that causes it lo demage or

destroy itseff, the cost of making good:

~ faultyo impro  matenal;

- faulty or improper workmanship,

— fauity or improper design.

This exclusion does  t apply to loss or damage caused directly by

aresultant peril not  erwise excluded in this form,

by mysterious disappearance;

by shortage of equipment or stock disclesed on taking inventory,

by disturbance  erasure of electronic recordings by efectric or

magnetic injury except by lightning;

Potlution

2.24.1.10ss or damage caused directly or indirectly by any actual or
alleged spill, discharge, emission, dispersal, seepage,
leakage, migration, release or escape of poliutants, nor the
cost or expense of any resuling clean up. This exclusion

{2.24.1.) does not apply :

- i the spill, discharge, emission, dispersal, seepage,
leakage, migration, release or escape of pollutants is
directly caused by a peril not otherwise excluded in this
form, or

~ o loss or damage caused directly by a resultant peril not
otherwise excluded in this form;

2.24,2.cost or expense for any testing, monitoring, evaluating or
assessing of an actual, afleged, potential or threatened spifl,
discharge, emission, dispersal, seepage, leskage, migration,
release or escape of pollutants.
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EXTENSIONS OF COVERAGE

The following extensions of coverage shall not increase the amounts of insurance
applying under this form and are subject to all the conditions of this form

1.

10-11

Debris removal

Tne Insurer will indemnify the Insured for expenses incurred In the
removal from the premises of debns of the insured property. occasioned
by loss or damage to such property. for which loss or damage insurance is
afforded under this form

The Insurer will indemnify the Insured for expenses incutred in the removal of
debns or other property which 1s not insured by this foom but whuch has been
biown by windstorm upon the premises.

This extension of coverage does not appiy to costs or expenses:
1.1. 1o clean up poliutants from land or water; or

1.2. for testing, monitoring, evaluating or assessing of an actual, alleged,
potential, or threatened spill, discharge, emission, dispersal,
seepage, leakage, migration, release or escape of poliutants.

Debnis removal expense shall not be considered in the calculation of the

value as determined in Special Provisions clause 2 - Basis of valuation for

the purpose of applying co-insurance

2. Growling Plants, Trees, Shrubs or Flowers outside the Building

This form is extended to insure joss of or damage 1o growing plants, trees,
shrubs or flowers outside the bullding caused direclly by Named Perils
{with the exception of windstorm or hail) or from theft or attempted theft
provided such perils are not excluded in Clause 2 (Excluded Penls)
hereof. This exiension of coverage shall be hmted to a maximum
recovery, including debns removal expense, to $500 for each growing
plant, tree, shrub or flower

Removal

It any of the insured property is necessaily removed from the premises to
prevent loss of or damage to or further loss of or damage 10 such praperty,
that part of the insurance under this form that exceeds the amount of the
Insurer’s liability for any loss already incurred shall, for seven days only. or
for the unexpired term of the policy if less than seven days, insure the
property removed and any property remaming at the premises in the
proporiions which the value of the property in each of the locations bears
to the value of the property in them all

Personal Property of Officers and Employees

At the option of the Insured equipment also includes personal property of
officers and employees of the Insured The insurance on such property

41 shall not aftach if 1115 insured by the owner, unless the Insured 15
obliged to insure it or 1s kable for its loss or damage,

42 shall apply only to loss or damage occurfing at the premises or at a
newly acquired location by the Insured

Building Damage by Theft

This form i1s extended to insure damage (except by fire) (o that part of a
building occupied by the Insured directly resulling from theft or attempted
theft and lrom vandalism or malicious acts committed on. the same
occasion, provided the insured is not the owner of such building and is
legally hable for such damage and the building is not otherwise insured
under this form This extension of cover shall be limited 10 a maximum
recovery of $2 500 for any ane occurrence

Newly acquired location

Subject to a limit of $250.000 on buildings and $100,000 on contents,
this insurance shall cover property at any newly acquired location n
Canada or the continental United States of America that is owned, rented
or controlied by the Insured and occupied by the Insured for the purposes
stated tn the Declarations Tius coverage attaches at the lme of the
acquisiion and extends for a8 penod of 30days, or to the date of
endorsement of this form adding such location, or until the expiry date of
thus policy whichever occurs first

inflation protection:

7 1. The amount of insurance shown in the Declarations for the Buildings
and/or Contents will automatically be increased as determined by
the Company. based on available inflation dala

72 On renewal or anniversary date, the amounts of insurance will be .

automatically increased accordingly and the premium adjusted

SPECIAL PROVISIONS
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1. CO-.INSURANCE (Thss clause applies separately to each tem for vihich a

co-tnsurance percentage is specified in the Declarations)

The Insured shall maintain insurance concurient with this form on the
insured property to the extent of at least the amount produced by
multiplying the value of the property as determined in clause 2 - Basis of
valuation by the co-insurance percentage specified in the Declarations (f
the Insured fails to do so, the Insured shall be entitied to recover only that
porion of any loss that the amount of insurance in force at the time of loss
bears to the amount of insurance required to be maintained by this clause
This clause applies only where the amount of loss or damage exceeds the
amount of $10,000

BASIS OF VALUATION
The value of the insured property shall be determined as follows
21 Tenants' Improvements

211 o repaired or replaced with due diligence and dispatch, the
amount actually and necessanly expended but not
exceeding the actual cash value of the tenanis
improvements at the ime and place of loss cr damage

21.2. if not repaired or replaced with due diligence and dispatch,
that portion of the original cost of the lost or damaged
tenant's improvements which the unexpired term of the lease
at the time of loss or damage kears to the perod(s) from the
date(s) such tenant's improvements were made to the
expiration date of the lease

22 Records

Business records. including those which exist on electrenic or
magnetic medsa (other than pre-packaged software programs)

221 the cost of blank matenals for reproducing the records and

222 the costs of labour 1o transcribe or copy the records when
there is a duplicate

23 Stocks

231 unscld stock: the actual cash value of the property at the
ume and place of loss or damage, but in no event to exceed
what it would cost to repair or replace with matenal of like
kind and quality,

232 soid stock: the selling price after allowance for discounts

233 the properiy of others in the custody or control of the Insured
{for the purpose of performing work upon it the amount for
which the Insured is hable, but not exceeding the actual
cash value al the time and place of loss or damage plus
atlowance for labour and matenals expended 1o such time

24 Otherinsured properties

All other insured property under this form and for which no mare
specific conditions have been set out the actual cash value at the
time and place of loss or damage, but not exceeding what it would
then cost to repair or replace with material of like kind and quality

Actual Cash Value: Varnous factors shall be considered in the
determiation of actual cash value The factors to be considered shall
include. but not be hmited to, replacement cost less any depreciation and
market value In determining depreciation, consideration shali be given to
the condition of the property immediately before the damage the resale
value the narmal ife expectancy of the praperty and obsolescence

LOCKED VEHICLE WARRANTY

This clause does not apply to property which is under the control of a
common carfner

Warranted by the Insured that any vehicle in which the insured property is
carned 15 equipped with a fully enclosed body or compariment and the
Insurer shall be liable in case of loss by theft from an unattended vehicle
only as a direct result of forcible entry {of which there shall be wisible
evidence) into such body or compariment, the doors of which are securely
locked and the windows closed
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS (continued)

16-11

4. PREMIUM ADJUSTMENT

i within six months after the expiry or anniversary date of each policy
pericd, the Insured shall file with the Insurer a Premium Adjusiment
Applhcation Form showing. for the policy penod, the value of the stock on
the last day of each month at each premises as commented upon by the
Insured’s accountant, the actual premwm for the policy penod shall then
be calculated at the rate applying to each premises for the average
amount of the total values declared. !f the premium paid by the Insured for
such stock exceeds the actual premium thus calculated, the Insurer shall
refund 10 the Insured any excess paid, subject to a maximum refund of
50% of the premium paid In the event of any monthly deciared values
being in excess of the amount of insurance, the amount of the excess shall
not be included in the premium adjustment calculations

SPECIAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO CONDOMINIUMS
51 Property insured

This form insures the buildings and contents as descnbed in
the Declarations
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52 Adduional exclusions
This form does not insure loss or damage to:

§.2.1. buildings or contents, if all units, are to the knowledge of
the Condominium Corporation vacant or unoccupied for
more than 30 consecutive days,;

52,2, property belonging to the owners of individual units;

5.2.3, improvements and befterments to individual units made or
B acquired by the owners of such units;

53 Loss adjustment (in accordance with the terms of article 1075 of the
Cwil Code of Québec)

The indemmity owing to the syndicate following a substantal loss i1s
notwithstanding article 2494, paid to the trustee appointed in the
constituting act of co-ownership or, where none has been appointed
designated by the syndicate

DEFINITIONS

Ciean up means the removal. containment, treatment. decontamination
detoxification, stabilization, neutralization or remediation of pollutants,
including testing which is integral to any of these processes

Named Perils means Ffre, lightning, explosion, impact by aircraft
spacecraft or land vehicle, not, vandalsm, malicious acts, smoke
leakage from fire protective equipment, windstorm or hail, provided
such penis are not otherwise excluded in Clause 2 (Excluded Pents)
hereof

Pollutants means any solid. liquid, gaseous or thermal -rntant or
contaminant, including odour, vapour, fumes, acids, alkalis chemicals and
waste Waste includes maienals to be recycled, reconditioned or reclaimed
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OFFICE CONTENTS FLOATER

PLUS FO

2.

INSURING AGREEMENTS

In the event that any of the property insured shall be lost or damaged by the
penis insured against, the Insurer wil indemnify the Insured against the d rect
loss so caused, to an amount not exceeding whichever is the least of

~  The aclual cash value of the property at the time of loss or damage
- The interest of the Insured in the property,

- The limit of liability provided by this form in respect of the property lost
of damaged.

Provided, however, that where the insurance applies to the property of more than
one person or interest, the Insurer's total habiity for loss sustained by all such
persons and inlerests shall be limited in the aggregate to the specified imt
of bability.

1. PROPERTY INSURED

This form insures office contents and tenant's improvements ordinanly
situated at the Insured's office premises as staled i the Declarations

2. PERILS INSURED

This form except as heremn provided, insures agawnst all nsks of dwect
physical loss of or damage to the property insured

3. DEDUCTIBLE

The Insurer 1s hable for the amount by which the loss or damage caused by
any of the penis insured against exceeds the sum stated in the Declarations
in any one occurrence

4. CO-INSURANCE

This clause applies separately to each location or division of the
property insured.

The Insured shall maintain insurance concurrent with this form on the
properly insured to the extent of at least the percentage stated i the
Decfarations of the actual cash value thereof and failing so to do, shall only
be entitled to recover that portion of any loss that the amount of Insurance in
force at the time of loss bears to the amount of insurance required to be
maintained by this clause

This clause applies only where the total loss exceeds the lesser of 2% of
the applicable amount of nsurance or $5,000

EXCLUSIONS

1. PROPERTY EXCLUDED
This form does not insure foss of or damage to;
1.1 Money and stamps except as provided in Extensions of Coverage,
Clause 1.3, bultion, securities, tickets, , evidences of debt or title;

1.2 Exteror signs, outside communication towers, antennae and
appurtenances afta thereto, exterior glass including leftering,
omamentation or burglar alarm 1 reon, but is exclusion does
nota ytoloss or damage caused by any of the Perils specified;

13 131 property for saler

132 samples whether in transit or otherwise, in the custody of a
sales represe tative;
1.4 Property itlegally acquired, kept, stored or transported,
1.5 Property seized or confiscated for breach of any law or by order of any
public authority;

1.6 Growing plants, trees, shrubs or flowers, all while in the open except
as provided in the Extensions of Coverage, Clause 1.7.
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PERILS EXCLUDED

This form does not insure against loss or damage caused directly or

indirectly:

21 To electiical devices, appliances or wiring by artificially generated
electrical currents inciuding arcing, uniess fire or explosion ensues
and then only for sicch ensuing lossorda o]

22 By earthquake, but exclusion does not apply to ensuing loss or
damage which resuits from fire or m

23 By and the word flood includes waves, tides, tidal waves and the

rising of, the brea ing out or the overflow of any body of water,

r natural 0 man made; but this exclusion does not apply to

ensuing loss or damage which results from fire, explosion, smoke or
leakage fromfi protective equipment or from a watermain,

(Exclusions 2.2and 2.3 do  tapply to property in transh)

24 By seepage, leakage of influx of water derived from natural sources
through basement walls, doors, windows or other openings therein
foundations, baseme t floors, sidewal or sidewslk lighls, unless
concurrently caused by a peril not otherwise excluded, or:

241 bythe up of sewers, su ps sepfic tanks or drains;

25 By the en of raln, sleet or 8 throug doors, windows,
skylig or o ersi lar or roof openings uness through an
ape re concurrently caused by a peril niot se excluded;

28 By dampness or dryness of atmosphere, changes of temperature,
freezing healing, shrinkage, evapo tion, loss of weight, leakage of
contents, exposure to fight, change in or texture or finish, rust or

sion, marring, ing or crushing; but this exclusion does not
apply to loss or damage caused directly by any of the Perils
specifiod, theft or atlempt thereat or accident to ftransporting
conveyance,

2.7 To the property insured while actually being worked upon and directly
resulting therefrom or caused by any repalring, adjusting or sesvicing
of the property insured unless fire or explosion ensues and then only
for the 1oss or damage caused by such ensuing fire or explosion;

28 By misap ton, secretion, conversion, infidelity or any dishonest
act on the part of the Insured or any other party of interest, employees
or agents of the insured or any person to whom the property may be

entrusted (bailees for hire excepled);

28 By mechanical of electrical a  or derangement, in or on the
premises, unless fire ensues and then only for the loss or damage
caused by such ensuing fire;

210 By war, Invasion, act of foreign enemy, hostilities (whether war be
declared or not), civil war, rebellion, revolution, insurrection or military
power; .

211 By any nuclear incident as defined in the Nuclear Liability Act, nuclear
expiosion or contamination by radicactive material,

2.12 By smoke from agricutiural smudging or  ustrial operations,

2,13 By rodents, insecls or vermin, unless direcly caused by a peril
otherwise insured and not otherwise excluded under this form;

Nor does this form insure:

214 Latent defect, ulty material, faulty workmanship, inherent vice,
gradual deterioration of wear and tear;

2.15 Any mysterious disappearance or shortage disclosed on taking
inventory;

2.16 Electric or magnetic injury, disturbance or erasure of electronic
recording except by lighting;

2.17 Any loss or damage, whether direct or indirect, nor any clean up cost
incurred resulting from any spilf, discharge or seepage of a poliutant /
contaminant.

This exciugion does not apply to loss or damage to the properiy
Insured caused by the Perils specified, theft or attempt thereat or to
expernses covered under Extensions of Coverage, Clause 2.2.
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EXTENSIONS OF COVERAGE

The following extensions of coverage, subject to all the conditions of this
form shall not increase the lirmit of hability applying under this form

11 At the option of the Insured, this insurance also includes Personal
property of officers and employees the insurance of such property

111  shall not attach if it is tnsured by the owner unless the Insured
1s obliged to insure it or 1s legally liable for its loss or damage,

112 shall apply only to loss or damage occurnng at the locaticn
specified in the Declarations

12 This form is extended to include damage to premises by thoft
{except by fire), meaning damage to that part of a building occupied by
the Insured directly resulting from theft or attempt thereat and from
vandahism or malicious acts committed concurrently therewith,
provided the Insured is the owner of such premises or legally hable for
such damage The Insufer shall not be liable i any one loss for more
than $2.500, however, all damage to glass, including lettenng
ornamentation or burglar alarm foil thereon is excluded from this
extension .

13  This insurance also apphes {o currency, money and stamps in or ¢n
the premises and while being conveyed by the Insured or his
employees to the bank or from the place of purchase of stamps, but
the total hiabitity of the Insurer shall not exceed $500 in any one [oss
caused by theft

14 Valuable papers and records - The insured may apply up to $1,000
to msure addional expense necessanly incurred, in the reproduction
of the Insured’s valuable papers, onginal plans or drawings. fitms,
tapes and other devices for electronic and electro-mechanical data
processing, due to loss or damage by a penl insured

15 Property away from the premises - The Insurer may apply up to
$2,000 to the property insured while temporarily removed from the
premises specified in the Declarations, anywhere in Canada and
within the Continental United States of America

16 This form is extended to insure newly acquired items that are owned
by the insured, and this coverage atlaches at the time of such
acquisiion and extends for a penod of 30 days or to the date of
endorsement, whichever first cccurs The Insurer shall not be hable
under the provisions of this extension for more than $5.000 i any one
occurrence

1.7 Growing plants, trees, shrubs or flowers in the open - This form is
extended to cover foss or damage to growing plants, trees, sheubs or
flowers in the open caused directly by any of the Perils specified
except by windstorm or hail, provided such perils are not excluded in
Clause 2 (Penis excluded) hereof This extension of coverage shall be
hmited 1o $500 for each growing plant, tree, shrub or flower including
debris removal expense

COVERAGE IS EXTENDED:

21 To extra expense, meaning the necessary extra expense incutred by
the Insured in order to conlinue as nearly as practicable the normal
conduct of the Insured’s office following damage or destruction by the
penis insured against to the buiding or additions therelo or contents
thereof specified in the Declarations The Insurer shall not be liable n

24

232 setllement on a replacement cost basis shall be made only
when replacement has been effected by the Insured and
necessarily expended for such replacement,

233 faling comphance by the Insured with any of the foregoing
provisions, seltlement shall be made as it this extension had
not been in effect;

234 any othet insurance effected by or on behalf of the Insured in
respect of the penls insured against by this policy on the
property to which this extension is applicable shall be on the
basis of replacement cost as defined herein,

235 anyreference to actual cash value in a Co-insurance clause in
this policy is deemed to be a reference to replacement cost of
the property insured

in this extension,

2386 replacement cost means the cost of replacing or repainng
{whichever is the teast) the property with new property of like
kind and quality and for iike occupancy without deduction fcr
depreciation, and

237 replacement includes repair, with new property of lke kind
and quality

In the event that new property of ike kind and quality is not obtainable
new property which is as similar as possible to lhat damaged or
destroyed and which is capable of performing the same function shafl
be deemed to be new property of like kind and quality for the purpcses
of this extension .
238 Exclusions

This extension does nol apply to’

2381 stock;

2382 palterns, dies, moulds;

2383 paintings, elchings, pictures, tapestnes statuary
marbles, bronzes, antiqgue furniture, rare books
antique silver, porcelain, rare giass-ware bnic-a-brac
or other articles of anl, rarity or antiguity

2384 manuscripts and records meaning books of account
drawings, card index systems and other reccrds
media, data siorage devices. and programme
devices for electronic and electro-mechanical data
processing or for electronically controlled equipment,

2385 anyincrease in the cost of replacement occasioned
by a restriction or prohibition in any by-law
regulation, ordinance or law

infiation protection
1t is agreed that:

241 the amount of insurance shown on the Declarations wall
automatically be increased as determined by the Company
based on available inflation data,

242 on renewal or anniversary date, the amount of insurance will
be automalically increased accordingly and the premium
adjusted

any one loss for more than $2,500 in addition to the hmit stated in the
Declarations for this coverage

LIMITATIONS

22 Debris removal

To expenses incurred i the removal from the Insured's premises of 1.
debns of the property insured, occasioned by loss or damage to such
property. caused by the Perils specified oy

The Insurer wili indemnify the Insured for expenses incurred in the
removal of debns or other property which is not insured by this form

but which has been blown by windstorm upon a location specified in

the Declarations

Debns removal expense shall not be considered n the determynation 2.
of actual cash value for the purpose of applying the Co.nsurance
clause

The Insurer shali not be liable in any one loss for more than 10 % i
addition o the limit stated in the Declarations for this coverage

23 Replacement cost

The Insurer agrees to amend the basis of settlement from actual cash
value to replacement cost subject to the following provisions

231 replacement shall be eflfected by the Insured with due
diligence and dispatch

01 : 017 5e Version 3

TENANT'S IMPROVEMENTS
The liabilty of the Insurer shall be as follows

1f not repaired or replaced with due diigence and dispaich after the loss that
portion of the original cost of the damaged or destroyed tenants
improvements which the unexpired term of the lease at the time of the loss
bears to the period(s) from the date(s) such tenant's improvemenis were
made to the expiration date of the lease

RECORDS CLAUSE

Except as provided under paragraph 1 4 of the Extensions of Coverage the
hability of the Insuret for loss to

21

Books of account, drawings, card index systems and other records
other than as described in 22 below, shall not exceed the cost of
blank books, blank pages or other matenals, plus the cost of labour for
actually transcribing or copying sadd records,
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22 Media, data storage devices and programme devices for electronic
and electro-mechanical data processing or for electronically controlled
equipment, shali not exceed the cost of reproducing such media. data
storage devices and programme devices from duplicates or from
originals of the previous generation of the media, but no habiity 1s
assumed hereunder for the cost of gathering or assembling
information or data for such reproduction

Whichever s applicabie of 2 1 or 2.2 above shall be the basis to be adopted
for the purpose of applying the Co-insurance clause

DEFINITIONS

Wherever used in this form

1.

01.01

Office contents means manuscrpts, furniture, fixtures, equipment and all
other office contents, the property of the Insured or of others for which the
Insured Is legally liable, subject to the exclusions and imitations stipulated
herein, all while on the premises, or in or on vehicles within 100 meters of
the premises

Tenant's Improvements means building improvements, alleratons and
betterments made at the expense of the insured to a bulding occupied by
the Insured and which are not otherwise insured, provided the Insured is not
the owner of such building, i the Insured purchased the use mnterest in
tenant's improvements made by a predecessor tenant, this form applies as
though such tenant's improvements had been made at the expense of the
Insured

017 5e Version 3

Extra expense means the excess (if any) of the total cost during the penod
of restoration for the purpose of continuing the Insured’s business over and
above the total cost that would normally have been incurred to conduct the
office actities during the same period had no loss occurred, the cost in
each case to include expense of using other property or faciliies of other
concerns of other similar necessary emergency expenses. In no event
however, shall the Insurer be liable under this form for loss of income nor for
extra expense in excess of that necessary to contnue as nearly as
practicable the normal conduct of the Insured's office activites nor for the
cos! of repainng any of the described property that has been damaged or
destroyed by the perils insured against, except cost in excess of the narmal
cost of such repairs or replacements necessarily incurred for the purpose of
reducing the total amount of extra expense ; liability for such excess cost
shall not exceed the amount by which the total extra expense otherwise
payable under this form is reduced. The Insurer shall also be liable for extra
expense incurred in obtaining property for temporary use dunng the penod
of restoration necessarily required for the conduct of the Insured's office
actvities, any salvage value of such property remaining after resumption of
normal operations shall be taken into consideration in the adjustment of any
loss hereunder.

Malicious acts means all acts of a malicious nature except theft or attempt
thereat

Perils specified means fire, lighung, explosion. impact by aicraft
spacecraft or land vehicle, riot, strike, vandalism, malcious acts smoke
leakage from fire proteclive equipment, windstorm or hail. provided such
perils are not excluded in Clause 2 (Perils excluded) hereo!
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BUSINESS INTERRUPTION INSURANCE
EXTRA EXPENSE FORM

INDEMNITY AGREEMENT

This form insures the necessary extra expense incurred by the Insured n
order to continue as nearly as practcable the normal conduct of the
insured’s business following damage to or destruction by the penls insured
against to the building(s) or additions thereto or contents thereof, for not
exceeding such length of time herein referred to as the penod of
restoration, commencing with the date of the loss and nat imited by the date
of expiration of this policy as shal be required with the exercise of due
diigence and dispatch to repar, rebwld or replace such part of the
described buillding(s) or additions thereto or contents thereof as may be
destroyed or damaged

AMOUNT OF INSURANCE

The liability shall in no event exceed that percentage of the amount of this
insurance {at the tme of loss) which is stated in the Declarations for the
determined period of restoration

in the even! that extra expense incurred by the Insured dunng the longest
period of restoration far which prowvision is made in the Declarations does
not exhaust the insurance hereby provided, then such unexhausted
insurance shall apply for the remainder of the penod of restoration

RESUMPTION OF OPERATIONS

As soon as practicable after any loss, the Insured shall resume complete or
partial business operations of the property described and in so far as
prachicable. reduce or dispense with such extra expenses as are being
ncurred

INTERRUPTION BY CIVIL AUTHORITY

This form is extended to include the actual loss as insured hereunder
duning the penod of time, not exceeding 2 weeks, while access to the
premises 1s prohibited by order of civit authority but only when such order 1s
given as a direct resull of damage to neighbounng premses by a pen!
insured against

2,

3.

Any increase of loss caused by delays or loss of time due to the presence of
strikers or other persons or to Iabour disturbances on or about the premises
interfering with the rebuliding, repalring, or replacing the property damaged
or destroyed of the resumphon or continuation of business or free access to
or control of the premises or due to the action of sympathetic strikers
elsewhere |

Loss due to fines or damages for breach of contract for late or non-
completion of orders, or for any penalties of whatever nature ;

Loss due to the suspension, lapse or cancellation of any lease or license

contract or order ;

The cost of compiling books of account, abstracts, drawings, card index
sysiems or other records including film, tape, disc. drum, cell or other
magnetic recording or storage media for electronic data processing

ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS

SPECIAL EXCLUSIONS

The Insurer shall not be liable for :

1.

Any increase of loss directly or indirectly, proximately or remotely, resulting
from, or contribuled fo by, the operation of any by-law, ordinance of law
regulating zoning or the demolition, repair or construction of buildings or
structures unless the liability is otherwise specifically assumed by
endorsement hereon ;

234 0e Verson7

Extra expense means the excess (if any) of the total cost dunng the penod
of restoration for the purpose of continuing the Insured's business over and
above the total cost that would normally have been incurred 1o conduct the
business during the same period had no loss occurred The cost In each
case {o include expense of using other property ofr faciiies of other
concerned or other simidar necessary emergency expenses In no event
however, shall the Insurer be liable under this form fot loss of income nor for
extra expense in excess of that necessary to continue as nearly as
practicable the normal conduct of the Insured’s business, nor for the cost of
repainng or replacing any of the described property that has been damaged
or desiroyed by the penls insured against, except cost in excess of the
normal cost of such repairs or replacements necessarily incurred for the
purpose of reducing the total amount of extra expense ; liab lity for such
excess cast however, shall not exceed the amount by which the total extra
expense otherwise payable under this form is reduced The Insurer shal
also be liable for extra expense incurred in obtaining property for temporary
use dunng the perncd of restoration necessanly required for the conduct of
the Insured’s business Any salvage value of such property remaining after
resumption of normal operations shall be taken into considerat on in the
adjustment of any loss hereunder

Month means 30 consecutive days

Normal means the condiion which would have existed had no ioss
occurred



COMPREHENSIVE DISHONESTY, DISAPPEARANCE
AND DESTRUCTION POLICY

The Insurer, 1n consideration of the payment of the premium, the General
Agreements, Conditions and Limitations and other terms of this policy, agrees
with the Insured, in accordance with such of the Coverages hereof as are
specifically designated by the insertion of an amount of insurance in the
Declarations to pay the insured for

INSURING AGREEMENTS

COVERAGE 110.1e (Version 5)

Employee Dishanesty (Form A}

Loss of money, securities and other property which the insured shall sustain
to an amount not exceeding in the aggregate the amoun! staled in the
Declarations applicable to this Coverage 110 1e, Form A, resulting directly from
one or more fraudulent or dishonest acts commiited by an employee, acting
alone or in collusion with others

Employee Dishonesty (Form B)

Loss of money, securities and other property which the Insured shall sustain
resulting directly from one or more fraudulent or dishonest acts committed by
an employee, acting alone or in collusion with others, the amount of insurance
on each of the employees heing the amount stated in the Declarations
applicable to this Coverage 110.1e, Form B

COVERAGE 110.2e (Version 4)
Loss inside the Premises

1. Loss of money and securities by the actual destruction, disappearance
or wrongful abstraction thereof within the premises or within any banking
premises or simiar recognized places of safe deposit

2. Lossof

- Qther property by safe burglary or robbery within the premises or
attempt thereat, and

-~ A lotked cash drawer, cash box or cash register by felonious entry into
such container within the premises or attempt thereat or by felonious
abstraction of such container from within the premises or attempt thereat

3. Damage to the premises by such safe burglary, robbery or felonious
abstraction, or by or following burglanous entry into the premises or
attempt thereat, provided with respect to damage to the premises the
(nsured is the owner thereof or is hable for such damage

Coverage 110.3e {Version 4)
Loss outside the Premises

Loss of money and securities by the actual destruction, disappearance or
wrongful abstraction thereof oulside the premises while being conveyed by a
messenger or any armoured motor vehicle company, or while within the living
quarters in the home of any messenger.

Loss of other property by robbery or attempt thereat outside the premises while
being conveyed by a messenger or any armoured motor vehicle company, or by
theft while within the Ivng quarters in the home of any messenger.

COVERAGE 110.4e (Version 4)
Money Qrders and Counterfeit Paper Currency

Loss due to the acceptance in good faith. in exthange for merchandise
money or services, of any post office or express money order, issued or
purporting {o have been issued by any post office or express company, f such
money order is not paid upon presentation, or due to the acceptance n good
faith in the regutar cdurse of business of counterfert Canadian or United States
paper currency

COVERAGE 110.5¢e (Version 4)
Depositors Forgery

Loss which the Insured or any bank which is included in the insured's proof of
loss and in which the Insured carnes a checking or sawving account, as their
respective interesis may appear, shall sustain through forgery or alteration of. on
or in any cheque, draft, promissory note, bill of exchange or sumilar wntten
promise, order or direction to pay a sum certain in money. made or drawn by cr
drawn upon the Insured, or made or drawn by one acting as agent of the Insured
or purporting to have been made or drawn as hereinbefore set forth, including

1. Any cheque or draft made or drawn in the name of the Insured payable (o
a fictitious payee and endorsed in the name of such ficlitious payee,

2. Any cheque of draft procured in a face to face transaction with the Insured
or with one acting as agent of the Insured, by anyone impersonating another
and made or drawn payable to the one so impersonated and endorsed by
anyone other than the ane so impersonated, and

3. Any payroll cheque, payroli draft or payroll order made or drawn by the
insured, payable to bearer as well as to a named payee and endorsed by
anyone other than the named payee without authonty from such payee

whether or not any endorsement mentioned In 1, 2 and 3 be a forgery vathin
the taw of the place cantrolling the construction thereof

Mechanically reproduced facsimie signatures are treated the same as
handwritten signatures

The Insured shall be entiled to prionty of payment over loss sustained by any
bank aforesaid Loss under this Coverage, whether sustained by the Insured
or such bank shall be paid directly to the insured in its own name, except in
cases where such bank shali have already fully reimbursed the Insured for
such loss The liability of the Company to such bank for such loss shall be a
part of and not in addition to the amount of insurance applicable to the
Insured's office to which such loss would have been allocated had such loss
been sustained by the Insured

if the Insured or such bank shall refuse to pay any of the foregoing instruments
made or drawn as hereinbefore set farth, alleging that such instruments are
forged or altered, and such refusal shall result in suit being brought agamst the
Insured or such bank to enforce such payment and the Company shall give its
wntten consent 1o the defense of such sut, then any reasonable attorneys’
fees court costs, or similar legal expenses incurred and paid by the Insured or
such bank in such defense shall be construed to be a loss under this Coverage
and the hability of the Company for such loss shail be in additon to any olther
habulity under this Coverage

GENERAL AGREEMENTS

1. CONSOLIDATION - MERGER

If. through consoclidation or merger with, or purchase of assets of some other
concern. any persons shall become employees or if the Insured shall
thereby acquire the use and control of any additonal premises the
nsurance afforded by this policy shall also apply as respects such
employees and premises, provided the Insured shall give the Insurer wrtten
notice thereof within 30 days thereafler and shall pay the Insurer an
additonal premium computed pro rata from the date of such consolidation
merger or purchase to the end of the current premium period
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GENERAL AGREEMENTS {continued)

2. JOINTINSURED

If more than one Insured 15 covered under this policy. the Insured first
named shall act for itself and for every other Insured for all purposes of
trus pol cy Knowledge possessed or discovery made by any Insured or by
any partner or offcer thereof shall, for the purposes of Sections 7, 8 and
15 conshtute knowledge possessed or discovery made by every Insured
Cancellation of the insurance hereunder as respects any employae as

provided i Secton 15 shall apply to every Insured If. prior to the 2,

cancellation or terminaton of this policy, this policy or any Coverage
hereof 1s canceled of termnated as to any Insured, there shali be no
nabilty for any loss sustained by such insured unless discovered within
one year from the date of such cancellalion or termination or as respects
Coverage 110 1e Form B within two years therefrom Payment by the
Insurer to the Insured first named of any loss under this policy shall fully
release the Insurer on account of such loss. If the Insured first named
ceases for any reason 1o be covered under this policy, then the Insured
next named shall thereafter be considered as the Insured first named for
alt purposes of this po iy

3. LOSS UNDER PRIOR BOND OR POLICY

If the Coverages of this policy other than Coverage 110.5e, 15 substituted for
any pnor bond or polcy of insurance caried by the Insured or by any
predecessor in interest of the Insured, which prior bond or policy s
termnated cancelled or aliowed lo expire as of the time of such substitution,
the Insurer agrees that such Coverage apptes to loss which is discovered
as provided in Section 1 of the Conditions and Limitations and which would
have been recoverable by the Insured or such predecessor under such pror
bond or policy, except for the fact that the time within which to discover loss
thereunder had expired; provided

31 The insurance under this general agreement 3 shall be a part of and
not in addition to the amount of insurance afforded by the applicable
insuring agreement of this policy,

32 Such loss would have been covered under such Caoverage had such
Coverage vath its agreements, conditons and linutations as of the
time of such substitution been n force when the acts or events
causing such foss were commitled or occurred, and

33 Recovery under such Coverage on accound of such loss shall n no
event exceed the amount which would have been recoverable under
such Coverage in the amount for which it is written as of the time of
such substiution, had such Coverage been in farce when such acts
or events were comnutted or occurred, or the amount which would
have been recoverable under such prior bond or policy had such
prior bond or policy continued 1n force untd the discovery of such
loss, if the 1ater amount be smaller

Coverage 110 5¢ shall also cover loss sustained by the Insured at any bme before
the terminaton or cancellaion of Coverage 110 5e, which would have been
recoverable under the Coverage of some similar form of forgery insurance (exclusive
of fidelty nsurance) camied by the Insured or any predecessor in interest of the
Insured, had such pnor forgery insurance -given all the Coverage afforded under
Coverage 110 5e; provided, with respect to lossa covered by this paragraph

1. Coverage 110 5e is substituted on or after the date hereof for such pror
forgery Coverage and the insured of such predecessor, as the case may
be, carned such prior forgery Coverage on the office al which such loss
was sustained continuously from the time such loss was sustained to the
date Coverage 110 5e was substtuted therefor,

2. At the time of discovery of such loss, the penod for discovery of foss
under all such prior forgery insurance has expired; and

3. If the amount of insurance carned under Coverage 110 5e applicable 1o
the office al which such loss s sustamed 1s larger than the amount
apphicable to such office under such prior forgery insurance, and in force
at the time such-loss i1s sustained, then lability hereunder for such loss
shalt not exceed the smailer amount

CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS

The foregoing Insuring Agreements and General Agreements are subject
to the following conditions and limitations:

1. POLICY PERIOD, TERRITORY, DISCOVERY

L.oss I1s covered under this policy only if discovered not later than one year
from the date of cancellation or termunation of this policy, except that
under Coverage 110 te, Form B, loss 1s covered only if discovered not
later than two years fram the end of this pohcy
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Subject to General Agreement 3:

11 This policy. except under Coverages 110 te and 110 5e, apphes
only to foss which occurs dunng the palicy penod within Canada
and the United States of America

12 Coverage 110 1e apphes only to toss sustained by the Insured
through frauduient or dishonest acts commitied during the policy
penod by any of the employees engaged m the regular service of
the insured wathin the terntory designated above or whie such
employees are elsewhere for 8 hmited period

13 Coverage 110 Se apphes only to loss susta ned dunng ihe polcy penod
EXCLUSIONS
This policy does not apply:

2.1. Toless due to any fraudulent, dishonest or crimmal act by any Insu
or a partner therein, whether acing alone or in coflusion with others;

2.2. Under Coverage 110.1e, {0 foss, or to that pant of any {oss, as the
case may be, the proof of which, either as lo its factual existence or
as to its amount, is dependent upon an inventory computation or a
profit and loss computation;

2.3, Under Coverages 110.2e and 1103e, to foss due fo any
fraudulent, dishonest or criminal act by an employee, director
{rustee or authotized representative of any Insured, while working or
otherwise and whether acting alone or in collusion with others
provided, this exclusion does not apply to safe burglary or robbery
or attemnpt thereat;

2.4, Under Coverages 110.2e and 110.3e, to loss due to war, whether or
not deciared, civil war, insurrection, rebelfion or revelution, or to any
act or condition incident to any of the oing,

25 Under Coverages 110 2e and 110 3e, to loss:

251. dueio g g sumenderi of money or securities in
aexchange of purchase,

2.5 2. due to accounting or arithmetical errors or omissions; or

253 of manuscripts, books of account or records, except for
blank value;

28 Under Coverage 110.2e, 1o loss of money contained in coin
operated amusement daevices or vending machmes, unless the
amount of monay deposited within the device or machine Is
recorded by a continuous recording instrument therein;

2.7. Under Coverage 110.3, to loss of Insured property while in the
custody of any armoured motor vehicle company, unless such loss
is in excess of the amount recovered or recelved by the insured
under:

271. the insured's contract with said armoured motor vehicle
company,

27 2. insurance carried by said armoured motor vehicle company
for the banefit of users of its service, and

27 3. allother nsurance and indemnily In force in whatsoever form
carried by or for the benefit of users of said armoured motor
vehicle company's service, and then this policy shall cover
only such excess;

28 Under Coverages 110.2e and 110.3e, to loss due to any nuclear
Incident as defined In the Nuclear Uiability Act, nuclear explosion or
con mi  on by radiosctive material,

2.9 Under Coverage 110.2e, fo loss, other than to money, securities, a
safe or vault, by fire whather or not such fire is caused by,
contributed to by or arises out of the occurrence of a hazard insured
against;

210 Taloss due to the su ender of money, securities or other property
away from the promises as a result of a threatto do

2 10,1 bodily harm {0 any person; of

2 10 2 damage to the premises or property owned by the Insured or

held by the Insured in any capacity;
prowided, however, these exclusions do not apply:
~to Coverage 110 1e, if coverage is afforded thereunder; or

-under Coverage 110.3e, if Coverage is afforded thereunder,

to Yoss of monay, securities or other property while being

by a messenger when there was no knowledge

by the Insured of any such threat at the time the

conveyance was initiated;

2.11 To the defense of any legal proceeding brought against the Insured,
or to fees, costs or expenses incurred or paid by the Insured In
prosecuting or defending any legal proceeding whether or not such
proceeding results or would result in a toss to the Insured covered
by this policy, except as may be specifically stated o the contrary in
this poilcy, .
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CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS (continued)

06-12

242 To pote tial income inc but not limited {0 interest and
nds, not realized by the Insured because of a loss covered
under this policy;

2.13. To all damages of any type for which the Insured is legally liable,
except direct com damages a sing from a loss covered

under this policy;
214, To all costs, fees and other incumed by the Insured in
the existence of, or "o loss covered under this policy;

2.15. Under Coverage 1102e 1o loss of money securities and other
property  ch has transferred by any computer {o a person or
to a ce outside the covered premises on the basis of
unauthorized electronic instructions.

3. DEFINITIONS

The following terms, as used in this policy, shall have the respective
meanings stated in this section

Banking Premises means the intenor of that portion of any buslding which
1s occupied by a bank ng mstitution in conducting its business

Custodian means the Insuted or a parner of the Insured or any
employee who is duly authonzed by the Insured to have the care and
custody of the insured property within the premises, excluding any person
while acling as a watchman porter or janitos

Employee means any natural person (except a director or trustee of the
Insured, if 3 corporation, who is not also an officer or employee thereof in
some other capacity) while in the regular service of the Insured in the
ordinary course of the Insured's business, including persons hired through
an intervening employment agency or employer, dunng the policy period
and whom the Insused compensates directly or indirectly by salary, wages
of commussions and has the right to govern and direct in the performance
of such service, bul does not mean any broker, factor, commissian
merchant, consignee, coniractor or other agent or representative of the
same general character As apphed to loss under Coverage 110 te, the
above words ‘while in the regular service of the Insured” shall include the
first 30 days thereafter, subject however, to Sections 15 and 16

Fraudulent or Dishonest Acts shall mean only fraudulent or dishonest
acts comnutted by such employee with {he manifest intent

1. To cause the Insured to sustamn such loss; and

2. To obtain financial benefit for the employee, or for any other person
or organizabion intended by the employee to receive such benefit,
other than salanies. commissions, fees, bonuses, promotions,
awards, profit sharing, pensions or other employee benefits earngd in
the normal course of employment

Thus defimition of “fraudulent or dishonest acts” does not apply to sections
7 ot 15 of this policy -

Loss, excepi under Coverages 110.1e and 110.5e, includes damage

Messenger means the Insured or a partner of the insured or any
employee who is duly authonzed by the Insured to have the care and
custody of the insured property outside the premises.

Money means currency, comns bank notes and bullion; and traveliers
cheques registered cheques and money orders heid for sale o the public

Premises means the interior of that porion of any building which 1s
occupied by the Insured in conduching s business As respects robbery
only, the premises shall also include the space inmedsately surrounding
such building

Robbery means the taking of insured property
1. By violence inflicied upon a messenger or a custodian;
2. By putting him in fear of violence,

3. By any other ovent felomous act commmitted in his presence and of
which he was aclually cognizant provided such other act 15 not
commutied by a pariner or employee of the Insured,

4. From the person ar direct care and custody of a messenger or
custodian who has been killed or rendered unconscious or

5. Under Coverage 110 2e

51 From within the premises by means of compeling a messenger
or custodian by viclence or threat of violence while outside the
premises 10 admit a person into the premises or to furnish him
with means of ingress into the premises; or

52 from a showcase or show window within the premises while
regulaity open for business by a persan who has broken the
glass thereof from outside the premises.
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Safe Burglary means

1. The felonious abstraction of insured propery from wthin a vault or
safae. the door of which is equipped with 2 combination lock, located
within the premises by a person making felonious entry into such
vault or such safe and any vault contaiming the safe when all deors
thereof are duly closed and locked by all combination locks thereon
provided such entry shall be made by actual force and violence. of
which force and violence there are visible marks upon the extenot of

1.1 Al said doors of such vault or such safe and any vauit
containing the safe, if entry is made through such doors: or

12 The taop. bottom or walis of such vault or such safe and any
vault containing the safe through which entry i1s made if not
made through such doors or

2. The felonious abstraction of such safe from wthin the premises.

Securities means all negotiable and non-negotable nstruments or
contracts representing ether money or other property and includes
revenue and other stamps in current use, tokens and tckets, but dees not
include money.

LOSS CAUSED BY UNIDENTIFIABLE EMPLOYEES

If a loss is alleged to have been caused by the fraudulent or dishonest
acts of any one or more of the employees and the Insured shall be
unable to designate the specific employee or employees causing such
loss, the Insured shall nevertheless have the benefit of Coverage 110 1e
subject lo the provisions of Section 22 of this palicy prowvided that the
evidence submitted reasonably proves that the loss was in fact due to the
fraudulent or dishonest acts of one or more of the said employees, and
pravided further, that the aggregate hability of the Insurer for any such
loss shall not exceed the fimit of liability apphcable to Coverage 110 1e

OWNERSHIP OF PROPERTY; INTERESTS COVERED

The insured property may be owned by the Insured, or held by the Insured
i any capacity whether or not the Insured s liable for the loss thereo!, or
may be property as respects which the Insured is fegally liable, provided
Coverages 110.2e, 110.3e and 110 4e apply only o the interest of the
Insured in such property, including the Insured’s liability to others, and do
not apply to the interest of any other person or organization in any of said
property unless included in the Insured's proof of loss. in which event the
third paragraph of Section 8 is applicable to them

BOOKS AND RECORDS

The Insured shall keep records of all the insured property in such manner
that the Insurer can accurately determire therefrom the amount of loss.

PRIOR FRAUD, DISHONESTY OR CANCELLATION

Coverage 110.1e shall not apply to any employee from and after the ume
that the Insured or any partner or officer thereof not in ccllusion with such
employee shall have knowledge or information that such employee has
commitied any fraudulent or dishonest act in the service of the Insured
or otherwise, whether such act be committed befcre or after the date of
employment by the Insured

I, prior to the issuance of this policy any fidelity insurance in favour of the
Insured or any predecessar in mterest of the insured and covernng one or
more of the Insured’'s employees shall have been canceled as to any of
such employees by reason of the giving of wniten notice of canceliation
by the Insurer issuing such fidelity insurance whether the Insurer or not
and f such employees shall not have been reinstated under the coverage
of said fidelity insurance or superseding fidelity insurance, the Insurer shall
not be liable on account of such employees uniess the Insurer shall agree
in wating to include such employees within Coverage 110 1e

LOSS-NOTICE - PROOF-ACTION AGAINST THE INSURER

Upon knowledge or discovery of loss or of an occurrence which may give
frise 10 a claim {or loss, the insured shall (3) give notice thereof as soon
as practicable to the Insurer or any of its authonzed agents and except
under Coverages 110 1e and 110 Se, also to the police if the loss is due 1o
a violation of law, {b) file detalled proof of loss duly swom to. with the
insurer within four months after the discovery of loss.

Proof of loss under Coverage 110 Se shall include the instrument which is
the basis of claim for such loss, or if it shall be impossible to file such
instrument, the affidawit of the insured or the Insured's bank of deposit seting
forth the amount and cause of loss shall be accepted in lieu thereo!

Upon the Insurer's request the insured shall submit to examinaton by the
Insurer subscnbe the same, under oath if required and produce for the
Insurers examination alt pertinent records, all at such reasonable ymes and
places as the Insurer shall designate. and shall cooperate with the Insurer in
all matters pertaining to foss or claims with respect thereto
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CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS (continued)

10.

No acton shall lie aganst the Insurer unless, as a condibon precedent
thereto, there shall have been full compliance with all the terms of this policy
nor unil 90 days after the required proofs of loss have been filed with the
Insurer, nor at all unless commenced within two years from the date when
the Insured discovered the loss  If any hmitation of time for notice of loss or
any lega! proceeding herein contained is shorter than that permitted to be
fixed by agreement under any statute controfing the construction of this
palicy, the shortest permissible statutory Iimitation of time shall govern and
shall supersede the tme limitation herein stated

VALUATION -~ PAYMENT ~ REPLACEMENT

In no event shall the Insurer be liable as respects securities for mare than
the actual cash value thereo! at the close of business on the business day
next preceding the day on which the foss was discovered nor, as respects
cther property, for more than the actual cash value thereof at the time of
loss; provided, however, the actual cash value of such other preperty held
by the insured as a pledge. or as coliateral for an advance or a loan, shall
be deemzd not to exceed the value of the property as determined and
recorded by the Insured when making the advance or loan, nor, i the
absence of such record, the unpaid portion of the advance or loan plus
accrued interest thereon at legal rates

The Insurer may, with the consent of the Insured, seltle any claim for loss
of property with the owner thereof Any property for which the lasurer has
made indemnification shall become the property of the Insurer

in case of damage to the premises or loss of property other than
securities, the Insurer shall not be fiable {for more than the actual cash value
of such property, or for more than the actual cost of repairing such premises
or property or of replacing same with property or matenal of like quality and
value The Insurer may, at its election, pay such actual cash value, or make
such repairs or replacements  If the Insurer and the Insured cannot agree
upon such cash value ar such cost of repaws or replacements, such cash
value or such cost shalt be determined by arbitration

RECOVERIES

if the Insured shall sustain any loss covered by this policy to which a
deductible amount applies and such loss exceeds the applicable amount
of insurance hereunder plus such deductible amount, the Insured shall be
enutied to all recovenes made after payment by the Insurer of loss
covered by this policy {(except from suretyship, insurance, reinsurance
secunly of indemnily taken by or for the benefit of the Insurer) by
whomsoever made, less the actual cost of effecting such recoveries, until
reimbursed for such excess loss, and any remainder, or, if there be no
such excess loss, any such recoveries shall be apphed first In
reimbursement of the Insurec and thereafter in reimbursement of the
Insured for that part of such loss within the deductible amount

11, LIMITS OF LIABILITY

06-12

Payment of loss under Coverages 110 1e or 110 5e shall not reduce the
Insurer’s hability for other losses under the apphcable Coverage whenever
sustained The Insurer’s total iabihty:

111 under Coverage 110 te. Form A, for all loss caused by any
employee or in which such employee is concerned or implicated, or

11 2 under Coverage 110 1e, Form 8, as to each employee; or

11 3 under Coverage 110 5e for all loss by forgery or alteration committed
by any person or in which such person is concerned or implicated
whether such forgery or alteration involves one or more instruments, 1s
hmited fo the applicable amount of insurance specified in the
Declarations or endorsement amendatory thereto The hiability of the
Insurer lor loss sustained by any or ail of the insureds shall not
exceed the amount for which the Insurer would be able had all such
foss been sustained by any ane of the Insureds

Except under Coverages 110 1e and 110 Se. the applicable hmit of hability
stated in the Declarations 1s the total mit of the Insurer's liabiity with
tespect 1o all loss of property of one or more parsons ot orgamizations
ansing out of any ane occurrence. All loss incidental to an actual or
attempted fraudulent, dishonest or criminal act ot series of related acts
at the premises, whether committed by one or more persons, shail be
deemed to anse out of one occurrence

Regardiess of the number of years, this policy shall continue in force and
the number of premiums which shall be payable or paid, the limit of the
Insurer's liabiity as specified in the Declarations shall not be cumulative
from year to year or period to period

The limats of kability as expressed in the policy are in Canadian currency

12,

13.

14,

18.

16.

110 1e Version

LIMITS OF LIABILITY UNDER THIS POLICY AND PRIOR INSURANCE
This section shall apply only to Coverages 110 1e and 110 5e

With respect 1o loss caused by any person (whether one of the
employees or not) or in which such person is concemed or implicated or
which is chargeable to any employee as provided in Section 4 and which
occurs partly during the policy period and parlly during the penod of other
bonds or policies issued by the Insurer to the Insured or to any
predecessor in interest of the Insured and terminated or cancelled or
altowed to expire and in which the penod for discovery has not expired at
the time any such loss thereunder is discovered, the total liabdity of the
Insurer under this policy and under such other bonds or policies shall not
exceed, in the aggregale, the amount carried under the applicable
Coverage of this policy on such loss or the amount avalable to the
nsured under such other bonds or policies, as limited by the terms and
conditions thereof, for any such loss, if the latter amount be the larger

OTHER INSURANCE

Except in the province of Quebec, if there 1s available to the Insured any
olher insurance or indemnily covering any loss covered by Coverages
110 1e or 110 5e, the Insurer shall be hable hereunder only for that part of
such loss which is in excess of the amount recaverable or recovered frem
such other insurance or indemnity, except that if such other insurance or
ndemnity is a bond or policy of fidelity insurance, any loss covered under
both such fidelty insurance and Coverage 110.5e shall first be paid under
Coverage 110 Se If this policy is governed by the law of Quebec. each of
the insurers under its respective conteact 1s hiable to the Insured for s
rateable proportion of the foss The Insurer waives any nght of
contnbution which it may have agamnst any forgery insurance carned by
any depository bank which is indemnified under Coverage 110 5e

Under any other Coverage, if there is any other vatid and collectible
insurance which-would apply in the absence of such Coverage. the
nsurance under this policy shall apply anly as excess insurance over such
other insurance, except in the province of Quebec where each of the
Insurers under its respective contract is liable to the Insured for its
rateable proportion of the loss, provided the insurance shall nct apply

131 To propeity which is separalely descnbed and enumerated and
specifically insured in whole o7 in part by any other insurance, or

13.2 To property otherwise insured unless such propeny 1s owned by
the Insured. )

SUBROGATION

In the event of any paymeni under this policy. the Insurer shall be
subrogated to all the Insured's rights of recavery therefore against any
person or organization and the Insured shall execute and dehver
instruments and papers and do whalever else is necessary to secure such
rights The Insured shall do nothing after loss to prejudice such rights

CANCELLATION AS TO ANY EMPLOYEE

Coverage 110 1e shall be deemed cancelled as to any emplayee
immediately upon discovery by the Insured, or by any partner or officer
thereof not in collusion with such employee, of any fraudulent or
dishonest act on the part of such employee; or except in the province cf
Quebec, at 12.01 a.m. standard tme as aforesaid, upon the effective date
specified in 3 written notice mailed to the Insured Such date shall be nat
less than 15 days after the date of mailing. The mailing by the Insurer of
notice as aforesaid to the Insured at the address shown in this policy shall
be sufficient proof of notice. Delivery of such written notice by the insurer
shall be equivalent 1o mailing In the province of Quebec cancellation
shall be made by endorsement only

CANCELLATION OF POLICY OR COVERAGES

This policy or any Coverage may be cancelled by the Insured by mailing to
the Insurer wniten notice stating when thereafter the cancellation shall be
effective This policy or any Coverage may be cancelled by the insurer by
mailing to the Insured at the address shown in thus policy wniten notice
stating whan not less than 15 days thereafter such cancellation shall be
effective excepl in the province of Quebec where the natice of cancellaticn
takes eflect 15 days afler receipt by the Insured of the nalice at the last
known address The maliing of notice as aforesaid shali be sufficient proof of
notice The effectve date of cancellation stated in the notice shall become
the end of the policy period for any affected Coverage. Delvery of such
written notice either by the Insured or by the Insurer shall be equivalent o
mailing

if the Insured cancels, eamed premium shalt be computed in accordance
with the customary short rate fable and procedure If the Insuref cancels
earned premium shall be computed pro rata Premium adjustment may te
made either at the tme canceliabon is effected or as soon as practicable
after cancellation becomes effective, but payment or tender of unearned
premium s not a condition of cancellation
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CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS (continued)

17.

18.

C6-12

DEDUCTIBLE

The Insurer shall not be hatle under any Coverage on account of any loss
excepl 1o the extent such loss is in excess of the deductible amount stated
in the Declarations for each Coverage

It is understood that under Coverages 110 1e. Form B, such deductible
amount shall apply 1o each employee concerned or implicated in the loss.

NO BENEFIT TO BAILEE
This Section shall apply only to Coverages 110 2e and 110 3e

The insurance afforded by this policy shall not tnure direclly or indirectly to
the benefit of any carnier or other bailee for hire

19.

20.

ASSIGNMENT

Assignment of interest under this policy shall not bind the Insurer untit its
consent is endorsed hereon; if, however, the Insured shall de, or in the
province of Quebec be declared bankrupt, this policy shall cover the
Insured's legal representative, or in the province of Quebec the trusiee in
bankrupicy, as Insured, provided that notice of cancellation addressed to the
Insured named in the Declarations and mailed o the address shown in this
poticy shall be sufficient notice to effect canceliation of this policy

CHANGES

Notce to any agent or knowledge possessed by any agent or by any other
person shall not effect a waiver or a change in any part of this policy or estop
the Insurer from asserting any right under the terms of this policy; nor shali
the terms of this policy be waived or changed, except by endorsement issued
to form a part of this policy signed by an authorized representative of the
Insurer .

By acceptance of this policy, the Insured agrees that it embodies all
agreements existing between the Insured and the Insurer or any of its agents
relating to this insurance

110 te Version §
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Throughout this policy the wards “you" and "your” refer to the Named insured shown in the Declarations, and any other person or arganizaiion qualifying as a Named
Insured under Paragraph 3 of Section Il - Who Is An Insured The words “we”, "us™ and “our” refer to the company prowiding this insurance

The word "Insured” means any person of orgamnization gquahfying as such under Section Il — Wha Is An Insured

Words and phrases that appear in bold have spectal meaning Refer lo Section WV — Definitions

Various provisions in this policy restrict coverage. Read the entire policy carefuily to determine rights, duties and what is and is not covered.

SECTION | - COVERAGES

COVERAGE A

BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE LIABILITY
INSURING AGREEMENT

1.

11

12

13

14

We will pay those sums that the Insured becomes legally obligated
to pay as compensatory damages because of bodily Injury or
property damage to which thus insurance applies We will have the
nght and duty to defend the Insured against any action seeking
those compensatory damages However, we will have no duty to
defend the Insured against any action seeking compensatory
damages for bodily injury or property damage to which this
insurance does not apply We may, at our discretion, investigate any
occurrence and settle any claim or action that may result. But

111 The amount we will pay for compensatory damages 1s
limited as descnbed in Section Il — Limits of insurance and
Deductibles, and

112 Our nght and duty to defend ends when we have used up the
apphcable mit of insurance in the payment of judgments or
setilements under Coverages A, B or D or medical expenses
under Coverage C

No other obhgation or lability to pay sums or perform acts or
services is covered unless exphatly prowvided far  under
Supplementary Payments - Coverages A, B and D

This insurance apphes to bodily injury and property damage only

121 Tnhe bodily injury or property damage is caused by an
occurrence that takes place in the coverage territory; and

122 The bodily injury or property damage occurs dunng the
palicy penod, and

123 Pnor to the pol cy penod. no Insured histed under Paragraph
1 of Section 1l = Who Is An Insured and no employee
authonzed by you to give or receive nolice of an occurrence
of clam, knew that the bodily injury or praperty damage
had occurred in whole or in part If such a histed Insured or
authonzed employee knew pniar to the policy penod that
the bodily injury or property damage occurred then any
continuation change or resumpt on of such bodily injury or
property damage dunng or after the polcy penod will be
deemed to have peen known pncer to the pol cy penod

Bodily injury or property damage which occurs dunng the polcy
period and was not pnor to the policy penod known to have
occurred by any Insured Iisted under Paragraph 1 of Secton Il
Who Is An Insured or any employee authonzed by you to gve or
receive notice of an occurrence or claim includes any continuation
change or resumption of that bodily injury or property damage
after the end of the policy period

Bodily injury or property damage wi be deemed to have been
known to have occurred at the earhest ime when any Insured listed
under Paragraph 1 of Secton H - Who Is An Insured or any
employee authonzed by you to gve of receve notce of an
occurrence or claim

141 Repors all or any part of the bodily injury or property
damage to us or any other insurer

142 Receives a wntten or verbal demand or ciam for
compensatory damages because of the bodily injury or
property damage; or

143 Becomes aware by any other means that bodily injury or
property damage has occurred or has begun to occur

091 Oe Version 4

18

Compensatory damages because of bodily injury inciude
compensatory damages cla med by any person or orgamzation for
care loss of servces or death resulting at any ume from the
bodily injury.

EXCLUSIONS
This insurance does not apply to:

21

22

23

24,

Expected or intended Injury

Bodlly Injury or proparty damage expected or intended from the
standpoint of the Insured. This exclusion does not apply to bodily
injury resulting from the use of reasonable force to protec! persons
or property

Contractual Liabiity

Bodily Injury or property damage for which the Insured is

obligated pay compensatory damages by reason of the

assumption of liab ity in a contract or agreemenL This exclusion

does not apply to fiability for compensatory damages:

2.2, That the Insured would have in tha absence of the contract or
agreement; or

22.2. Assumed In a contract or agreement that is an insured
contract, provided the bodily Injury or property damage
occurs subsequen to the execution of the contract or
agreement. Solely for the purposes of ilabllity assumed in an
insured contract, reasonable legal fees and necessary
litigation expenses incurred by or for a party other than an

Insured are deemed o be compensatory damages because

of bodily Injury or property damage, provided:

22,21, Liability to such party for, or for the cost of, that
party’s defense has also been assumed in the
same Insured contract; and

2222 Such fees and litigation expenses are for
dafense of that party against a civil or alterative
dispute  resolution proceeding in  which
compensatory damages to which this insurance
applies are alleged

Workers’ Compensation and Similar Laws

Any obligation of the Insured under a workers’ compensation,
disability benefits or unemployment or employment compensation
law or any similar law

Employer's Liability

Bodily Injury to:

An employes of the Insured arising out of and in the course of:
24.1. Employment by the insured; or

242 Performing duties related to the conduct of the Insured's
business.

Th exclusion applies’

- Whether the Insured may be liable as an employer or in any
other capacity: and

- To any obigati to share compensstory damages with or
repay someone eise who must pay compensatory damages
because of the injury

This exclusion does not apply to:

- Lisbility assumed by the Insured under an insured contract; or

- A claim made or an action brought by a Canadian resident
employee on whose behalf contributions are made by or
required to be made by you under the provisions of any
Canadian provi | or territorial workers' compensation law, if
cover or benefits have been denied by any Canadian Workers’
Compensation Authority
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COVERAGE A (continued)

25 Aircraft or Watercraft

28.

27,

Bodily injury or property damage arising out of e cwnarship,
maintenance, use or tment to others by or on behalf of any
Insured of:

25.1. Any aircrall, alr cushion vehide or watercraft owned or
operated by or rented or foaned to any Insured, or

2.5.2. Any emises for the purpose of an aport &
area and all operatio s or ental thereto This
excl also a to bodily ln]ury or property damage

ng out of ny work Involvi nstallati
repairs or ma ntenance performed on such prenuses by oron
behalf of the Insured.

Useincludes opera  and loading or unjoading.

This n es en if the claims against any Insured allege
negligence or other dong in the supervision, hiring
emplo training or it of others by that Insured, i the
occurrence wh  caused the bodily Injury or property damage
involved the ownership maintenance use or entrustment to others
of any aircraft or reraft that is owned or operated by or rented or
loaned 10 any |

This exclusion does notapp to:

253, Awatercraft  ile ashore on premises you own or rent,

254. Awatercrait youdo notown  tislesstha 8  tres long
a no being used to carry persons of propeny for a charge;

255 Bodlly injury to an employee of the Insured on whose
behalf con s are made by or required to be made by
the insured under the ns of any Canad n provincal
or territorial workers' compensaton law, if the bodily injury
results from an occurrence involving  tercraft,

Automobile

Bodlly injury or property damage arising directly or indirectly, in
whole or in part, out of the ownership, mainl ance, use or
en n to others of any automobile owned or operated by, or
onbeh of or orfoa toany Insured.
This usion also app  to any motosized snow vehicle or its
trallers anda y v while being used in any ord ition
test or in any stu  ng actvity or in practice or preparation for any
such contest or activity.

is exclusion also applies even the claims against any Insured

ft landing

allege neghgence or other d gin supe , hiring
nt,  ning or onitod (] by that | , if the
occu ] caused e bodily injury or property damage

invoived owne p,ma enance, use or entrusiment to others
of any automobile that.is owned or operated by, or on behalf of, or
rented or loaned to any insured

This excly a regardiess of any other tributing or
aggravating cause  event that contribules concurrently or in any
sequence to the badily injury or property damage.

This exclusion does not apply to:

2.6.1. Bodily injury to an ee o the Insured on whose

behalf de by or required to be made by
the insured under the ions of any Canadian provincial
ort i workers' compensation taw.

26.2. Bodlly injury or property damage arising out of 2 defective

in, ori maintenance of, any automobile

ownedbylhe nsured while leased to others for a period of

30 days or more provided the lessee s obligated under
contract to ensure that the automobile is insured

2.8.3. Bodily injury or property damage arsing out of the
ownership, use or operation of machinery, apparatus or
equipment mounted on or altached to any vehicle while at the
site of the use or of such equipment.

Damage to Property

Property damage to:

27.1. Propery you own, rent, or occupy, including any cosis or

expenses ty you, or any other person, organization or
entity, for repair, replacement, erhancement,
maintenance

restoration or
of such property for any reason, including
prevention of

a person or damage {o another's property;
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28.

28,

210

211

21

213

214,

272 Pr you sefl, give away or abandon, if the property
damage arises out of any pa of thosa premises;

2.7.3. Property loanedto u;

27.4. Personal property In your care, cusiody or control;

2.7.5. That particular part of real property on which you or any
contractors or subcontractors working directly or indirectly on
your behall are performing operations, if the property
damage arises out of those operations, or

2.7.8. That particular part of any property that must be restored
repaired or replaced because your work was incorrectly
performed on it

Paragraph 2.7.2. of this exclusion does not epply if the premises are

yourwork and wera never occupled, rented or held for rental by you

Parag 213, 2:7.4., 27.5. and 2.7.8. of this exclusion do not

apply to liabiiity assumed u a  track agreement

Paragraph 2.7.8. usion does not apply to property

damage included in the products-completed operations hazard.

ge {0 your Product

Property damage to your product arising out of it or any part of it.

This exclusion 18 replaced by exclusion 2.8.1., but only In respect lo

your operations related to the business of selling, repairing or

servicing automobies:

2.8.1. Property damage fo your product arising out of it or any
part of it if caused by a defect existing at the time it was sold
ortransfe  to another.

Damage to your Work

roperty damage to the defective portion of your work arising out
of it ~any part of it and included in the productscompleted
operations hazard.

This exclusion does not apply if the damagéd work or the work out of
which the damage arises was perf on your behalf by a
subcontractor

Damage 1o Impaired Property or Praparty not Physically Injured
Property damage o impaired property or property that has not
been phys  lyinjured arising out of:

2.10.1.A defect, deficiency, Inadequacy or dangerous condition in
your product or your work; or

2.102.A delay fallure by you or anyone acting on your behalf to
perform a contract or agreement in accordance with its tenms

This exc!  n does not apply to the loss of use of other property
arising out of sudden and accldental physical injury to your product
oryourwo afterithasbeenputto intended use.

Recall of Products, Work ort  aired Property

Compensatory damages for any loss, cost or expense
incurred by you or others for the loss of use, withdrawal, recall
inspection, repair replacement, adjustment, removal or disposal of
2 11.1 Your product;

2 11.2 Your work; or

2 11 3 impaired property;

if such product, work, or properly is withdrawn or recalled from the
market or from use by any person or organization because of a
known or suspected defect, deficiency, inadequacy or dangerous
condition in it.

Electronic Data
Compensatory damages 8 g out of the loss of, loss of use of,
damage 1o, comuption of inablity to access, or inabiity to
manipulate electronic data.
Personal and Advertising Injury
Bodily Injury arising out of personal and advertising Injury.
Professional Services

Injury (other than medical maipractice injury), or
property damage due to the rendenng of or failure to render by you or

on behalf of any professional services for others, or any error or
omission, malpractice or mistake in providing those services
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COVERAGE A {continued)

2,15, Abuse

2 16. Asbestos - see Common

2.15.1 Claims or actions arising direclly or indireclly from abuse
commitled or to have been committed by an Insured,
in  ng the transmission of disease arising out of any act
of abuse.

2.15.2.Claims or actions based on your practices of employee
hiring, acceptance of volunteer workers or supervision or
retention of any person  eged to have committed abuse.

2.15.3. Claims or actions alleging knowledge by an Insured of, or failure

report, the alieged abuse to the appropriate authority(jes).
sions

2.17. Fungl or Spores — see Common Exclusions
2.18. Nuclear- see Common Exclusions
2.18. Pollution - see Common Exclusions

2.20. Terro

- see Common Exclusions

2.21. War Risks - see Common Exclusions
222. Pyrite or Pyrrholite - see Common Exclusions

COVERAGE B

PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING INJURY LIABILITY
1. INSURING AGREEMENT

11

We will pay those sums that the Insured becomes legally obligated
to pay as compensatory damages because of personal and
advertising injury to which this insurance applies. We will have the
nght and duty to defend the Insured against any action seeking
those compensatory damages. However, we will have no duty to
defend the Insured against any action seeking compensatory
damages for personal and advertising injury to which this
insurance does not apply We may, at our discretion, investigale any
offense and settle any claim or action that may result But

111 The amount we will pay for compensatory damages 1s
\imited as descnbed in Seclion il - Limits Of Insurance and
Deductibles. and

112 Ourright and duly to defend end when we have used up the
applicable limit of insurance in the payment of yjudgments or
settlements under Coverages A, B or D or medical expenses
under Coverage C

No other obligation or labiity to pay sums or perform acts or
services is covered unless explicitly provided for under
Supplementary Paymenis — Coverages A Band D

This insurance applies to persanal and advertising injury caused

by an offense ansing out of your business but only f the offense was
committed 1n the coverage territory dunng the policy penod

2. EXCLUSIONS
This insurance does not apply to:

21

22,

23

24

Knowing Violation of Rights of Another

Personal and adve sing infury caused by or 8t e direction of

the Insured with the knowledge that the act would violate the rights

of another and would in  personal and advertising Injury.

Material Published with Knowledge of Falsity

Personal and advertising injury arising out of oral or written
blication of matedal, f  ne by or at the direction of the Insured

with knowledge of its falsity,

Material Published Prior lo Policy Period

Personal and advertising Inury arising out of oral or wrilten

publication of material whose first publication took place before the

beginning of the policy period

Criminal Acts

Personal and advertising Injury arsing out of a criminal act
committed by or at the direction of the tasured.

2.5,

2.6

27.

28

2.8

2.10

211,

212,

213,
2.14.
2.15,
2.18,

Contractual Liability

Personal and advertislng injury for which the Insured has
assumed fability in a contract or agreement. This exclusion does not
apply to liability for compensatory damages that the Insured would
havein  absenceofthe con or agreement.

Breach of Contract

Personal and adverstising injury arising out of a breach of contract,
except an ed contract to use ano s adverbising idea In your
advertisement.

Quality or Performance of Goods ~ Failure to Conform lo
Stateme

Personal and advertising injury arising out of the failure of goods,
products or services to conform with any statement of quality or
perfonmance made in your advertisement.

Wrong Description of Pnces

Personal and advertising injury ardsing out of the wrong description of
the pece of , products or services stated n your advertisement.
Infringement of Copyright, Patent, Trademark or Trade Secret

Personal and advertising injury arising out of the infringement of
copyrigh patent, tadema  trade secret or other intellectual
property rights

owever, this exclusion does not apply to In ‘ngement, in your
advartisem ¢, of copyright, trade dress or n

Insureds in Med and Inlemet Type Businesses

Personal and advertising injury com by an lnsured whose
business is

2 10 1. Advertising, b sting, publishing or ting,
2 10.2.Designing or determining content of web-sites for others; or
2103 An Internet search, access, e tor service provider,

However, this exclusion does nol apply to Paragraphs 21.1., 212
and 21.3 of personal and advertising Injury under the Definitions
Section

For the purposes o exclusion, the placing of frames, borders or
finks, or adverlisi |, for you or others anywhere on the Intemet, 1s
not by itself, considered the business of adverlising, broadcasting
publishing or telecasting.

Electronic Chatrooms or Bulletin Boards

Personal and advertising Injury arising out of an electronic
chatroom or bulletin board the Insured hosts, owns, or over which
the Insured exercises control

Unauthorized Use of Another's Name or Product

Personal and advertising injury arising out of the unauthorized
use of another's name or product in your e-mall address, domain
name or metatag or any other s ¢ taches to mislead another's
potential customers.

Asbestos — see Common Exclusions

Fungl or Spores - see Common Exclusions
Nuclea ~ see Common Exclusions
Potiution — see Common Exclusions

2.17. Tesmorism — see Common Exclusions

2.18,
2.18.

War Risks - see Common Ex s
Pyrite or Pyrrhotite - see Common Exclusions

COVERAGE C

MEDICAL PAYMENTS
4. INSURING AGREEMENT

11

091 Oe Version 4

We will pay medical expenses as descnbed below for bodily injury
caused by an accident

111 On premises you Own Of rent,

112 Onways next to premises you own or rent of
113 Because of your operations

provided that

114 The accident takes place in the coverage territory and
dunng the policy penod
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COVERAGE C (continued)

115 The expenses are incurred and reported to us within one
year of the date of the acc:dent, and

116 Theinjured person submits to examination, at our expense by
physicians of our choice as often as we reasonably require

12 We wil make these payments regardless of fault. These payments wil
not exceed the applicable imit of insurance as described in Section 1l
~ Limits of Insurance and Deductbles We wili pay reasonable
expenses for

121 First aid admunistered at the ime of an accident,

122 Necessary medical, surgical, x-ray and denial services
including prosthetic devices and

123 Necessary ambulance, hospital, professional nursing and
funeral services

EXCLUSIONS
We will not pay expenses for bodily injury:
21. Anyinsured -

To any Insured, except voluntear workers.
22. Hired P

To a person hired to do work for or on behalf of any Insured or a
tenant of any insured,
2.3, Injury on Normally Occupled Premises

To a person injured on that part of premises you own or rent that the
person normally occu  es.

24. Workers Compensation nd Similar Laws
To a person, ther or not an emp oyee of any Insured, if benefits

for the bodily injury are payable or ust  provided under a
workers’ ngation or disabiiity benefits law or a similar law

25, Athle Activities
To a person injured while practicing, instructing or pa  pating In
physical exercises ga sports or athlefic contests
2.8. Products- eted Operations Hazard
included with  the products-completed operations hazard.
2.7. Coverage A'Exclusions
Excluded under Coverage A

COVERAGED

TENANTS' LEGAL LIABILITY

INSURING AGREEMENT

11 We will pay those sums that the Insured becomes legally obhga(ed'

to pay as compensatory damages because of property damage
to which this insurance apphes This insurance applies only to
property damage to premises of others rented o you or cccupied
by you We will have the right and duty o defend the Insured against
any action seeking those compensatory damages However, we
will have no duty to defend the Insured against any action seeking
compensatory damages for property damage to which this
insurance does not apply We may, at our discretion, investigate any
occurrence and settle any claim or action that may result But

111 The amount we will pay for compensatory damages is
hmited as described in Section Il - Limits of Insurance and
Deductibles and

112 Ouraght and duly fo defend ends when we have used up the
applicable limit of insurance in the payment of judgments or
settlements under Coverages A, B or D or medical expenses
under Coverage C

No other obligation or liabilty to pay sums or perform acts or
services 1S covered unless exphatly provided for under
Supplementary Payments — Coverages A, B and D

12 Thisinsurance apples to property damage only if

121 The property damage is caused by an occurrence that
takes place in the coverage territory;

122 The property damage occurs during the policy period, and

091 Oe Version 4

123 Pror to the policy penod, no insured histed under Paragraph 1
of Section 1l - Who Is An Insured and no employee authorized
by you to give or receive nolice of an occurrence of claim
knew that the property damage had occurred, in whole or in
part If such a listed Insured or authonzed employee knew, pror
1o the policy penod, that the property damage occurred, then
any contnuation, change or resumption of such piopery
damage dunng or after the policy period will be deemed to
have been known prior 1o the palicy penod

13 Property damage which occurs duning the policy penod and was not
prior to the policy penod, known to have occurred by any Insured listed
under Paragraph 1 of Section Il -~ Who Is An Insured or any
employee authorized by you to gwve or receive nobce of an
occurrence or ciaim, includes any continuation, change of resumption
of that property damage after the end of the policy penod

14 Property damage will be deemed o have been known o have
occurred at the earhiest time when any Insured tisted under Paragraph
1 of Secton Il - Who Is An Insured or any employee authorized by
you o give of recerve notice of an occurrence or ciam

141 Reports all, or any pan, of the property damage to us or any
other insurer,

i
142 Recewes a wntten or verbal demand or claim for compensatory
damages because of the property damage; or

143 Becomes aware by any other means that property damage
has occurred or has begun to occur

2. EXCLUSIONS

This insurance does not apply to:
21 Expected or Intended Injury

Property damage expected or intended from the standpoint of
the Insured

22 Conlractual Liabifity

Property damage for the Insured is obligated to pay
compensatory damages by reason of the assumption of liability in
a contract or ag at.  is exclusion does not apply to liability for
compensatory damages that insured would have in the
absence of the contract oragree ¢t

23 Asbestos — see Common Exclusic s

24 FungiorSpores-seeC Ex Jons
2.5. Nuclear-see C Exclusions

28 Pollution — see Common Exclusions

27 Temorism - see Common Exclusions

28 WarRisks —-see Common  clusions

29 Pyrite or Pyrrhotite ~ see Common Exclusions

COMMON EXCLUSIONS
COVERAGES A,B,Cand D

This insurance does not apply to:
1. ASBESTOS

Bedily injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury
related to or arising from any actual or alleged liability for any legal remedy
of any kind wha ncluding but not limited to damages, inlerest,
manda  or other injunctive , statutory 5 or penallies, legal or
other costs, or of any kind) in respect of actuat or threatened
loss, damage cost or expense or indirectly caused by, resulting
from, in consequence of orina  wayl ng, asbestos or any materlals
ining asbestos in whatever form or  uantily.

This exclus a regardless of any other contributing or aggravating
cause or event  t contributes concurmently or in any sequernce to the
bodily Injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury.
FUNGIOR ORES

2.1. Bodily Inju , property damage or persona! and advertising

Injury ora loss or se incu by others, arising
directly  indirectly the actual, alleged or threatened inhalation
of i of, contact with exposure to, of, presence of,

spread of, reproduction discharge or growth of any fungi or
spores however caused, including any costs or n  incurred
to preve  respond to, test for, monitor, abate, mitigate, remove,
cleanup, contaln, remediate, treat, detoxify, neutralize, assess or
otherwise deal with or dispose of fungi or spores;
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COMMON EXCLUSIONS
COVERAGES A, B, CandD {continued)

22 Anysupervision,i tructions recommendations, wamings, or advice
given or which should have been given In connection with 21
above,

2.3 Any obligation to pay damages, share damages with or repay
someone else who pay da  es because of such injury or
damage referred foi 21 or 2.2, above.

This ex usion applies regardiess ¢f any other contributing or aggravatng

cause or nt that contributes concu y or in any sequence to the

bodily Injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury.

For the purpose of  following exception:

Property damage mea  physical injury to animals

Product-completed oparations hazard means a bodily injury and

propurty damage that a out of your product. p the bodily
Injury or property damage occurs after you have relinquished physical
of your product.

This exclusion does not apply to bodily Injury or property damage
included In the products-completed operations hazard arising directly
of indirectly f fungl or spores that are found in of on, or are, your
product, and are intended (o be:

- applied to cally to humans or animals; or

- Ingested by human or animals

LIMITED COVERAGE

Subject to an Each Occu  ce Limit of $250,000 and subject to the
Aggregate Limit per policy period, this usion does not apply to any
olher il inury or property damage results directly from a

products-comploted operations hazard otherwise excluded by this
form

. NUCLEAR ENERGY LIAB

3.1. Uability Imposed by or arising from any nuclear liablity act, law or
sla te,oranylawa ndatory thereof;

3.2. Bodily injury, property damage or personal and advertising
Injury respect to which an Insured under this policy is also
insured under a contract of nuclear energy fability insurance
{whethe the insured is unnamed In such contract and whether or
not it is legally enforceable by the Insured) issued by the Nuclear
Insura  Association of Canada  any other insurer or group or
pool of Insurers or would be an  sured under any such policy but for
its mination upon exhaustion of its fimit of Gability;

3.3. Bodily Injury, property damage or personal and advertising
injury resulting difectly or indirectly from the nuclear energy
hazard arising from:

3.3.1. The ownership mainte nce, operation or use of a nuclear
facllity by or on behalf of an lnsured;

3.3.2 The furnishing by an Insured of services, materials, parls or
equipment  connection with the planning, construction,
maintenance, ope or use of any nuclear facility;

33.3. The possession, consumption, use handiing, disposal or
transportation fisslonable substances, or of other
radioactive material (except radioactive isotopes, awa from
a nuclear - lity, wh  have reached the final stage of
fab ton so  to be useable for any scientific, medical,
agricultural, comimercial or industrial purpose) used,
d buted, handled or sold by an Insu

This -] of any other tributing or
aggravating cause or eve t that contribute concumently or in any

sequence to the bodily Injury, property damage or personal and
advertising Infury.

4. POLLUTION

4.1. Bodily injury, property damage or personal and advertising
Injury ansing out of the actual, alleged or threatened spil,
discharge, emission, dispersal, seepage, leakage, migration, release
or escape of pollutants:

091 Oe Version 4

4.1.1. Ator from any premises site or location which is or was at
any time owned or occupled by, of rented or loaned lo, any
Insured. However, this subparagraph does not apply to:

4.1.1.1.  Bodily injury if sustained within a building and caused
by smoke, fumes, vapour or soot from equipment used
to heat, cool or dehumiddy the building, or equipment
that is used o heat water for personal use, by the
buikding's occupants or their guests,

4.1.1.2. Bodily Injury or property damage for which you
may be held kable, if you are a contractor and the
owner or fessee of such premises, site or location
has been added % your policy as an additional
insured with respect to your ongoing operations
performed for that additional Insured at that
premises, site or location and such premises, sile
orfoca nis not and never was owned or occupied
by, or rented or loaned to, any Insured, other than
that addivonal Insured, or

4,1.1.3. Bodily injury or property damage arising out of
hea smoke or fumes from a hostile fire;

4.1.2. At or from any premises, or location which Is or was at
any ime used by or for any Insured or others for the
handling, storage, d spasal, g or treatment of waste

4.1.3. Which are or were at an time transported, handled, stored
treated, disposed of, or processed as wasie by or for:

4.1.3.1. Any Insured, or

4,1,3.2. Any person or organization for whom you may be
legally responsible, or

414, At or from any premises, site or location on which any

insured or any contract o  beontractors working direclly

or Indirectly on &  Insured's behalf are performing

oparations if the pollutants are brought on or to the

premises, site of location in connection with such operations

by such Insured, contractor or 8 boontractor However, this
subparagrap does not apply to

4.1.4.1. Bodily Injury or property damage arising out of the
escape of fuels, lubdica  or other operating fluids
which are needed to perfonm the normal electrical,
hyd of mechanica! functions necessary for the
operation of mobile equipment or its parts, if such
fuets, lubricants or other operating fluids escape from
a t and integral mobile equipment parnt
designed to hold store or receive them. This
exception not apply if the bodily injury or
property damage arses out of the intentional
discharge, dispersal or release of the fuels, lubricamts
or other operating fluids, or if such fuels, lubricants or
other ng flulds are brought on or to the
pre site or location the intent that they be
discharged, dispersed or released as part of the
operations being performed by such Insured,
or subcontractor;

4.1.42. Bodily injury or property damage sustained
within a bullding and caused by the release of
gases, fumes or vapows from materals brought
into  t bullkdng in connection with operations
being performed by you or on your behalf by a
contractor or subcontractor; or

4.1.43. Bodily Injury or property damage arising out of
heat, smoke or fumes from a hostile fire.

4.1.5, At or from any premises, site or location on which any
insuredora c¢o or sy tractors working directly
or ind on 8 Insured's behalf are performing

ons if the operations . re to test for, monitor, clean up,
re e, contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or in any way
respond to, or assess the effects of, poliutants.
4.2. Anyloss, cost or expense arising out of any:

421, Requesl, demand, order or siatutory or regulalory

requirement that any Insured or others test for, monitor, clean

up, remove contain, treat, detoxify or neulralize, or in any
way respond to, or assess the effects of, poliutants; or

422 Claim or action by or on behalf of a governmental authorily

for compensatory damages because of (esting for,

fing cleaning up, removing, containing, treating,

deloxifying or neutralizing, or in any way responding {o, or
assessing the effects of, poliutants.
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COMMON EXCLUSIONS
COVERAGES A, B, CandD {continued)

5.

7.

H r. this Secton 42 does not apply to liabilty for
compensatory damages because of property damage that the
Insured have in the absence of such request, d  nd, order
or statutory or regulatory requirement, or such claim or action by or
on behalf of a govemmenta! authority.

TERRORISM

Bodily injury, property damage or personal and advertising Injury
arising directly or  irectly, in whole or in part, out o terrorism or out of
any activity o decision of 3 government agency or other entity to prevent,
respond {0 or t ate terrorism. This exclusion 2  es regardiess of
any other tributing or aggravating cause or event that tributes
concurrently or in any sequence to the bodily Injury property damage
or personal nd advertising Injury.

WAR RISKS

Bodlly Injury, property damage or personal and advertising Injury
arising directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, out of war, invasion, act of
foreign enemy, hostilties (  ther war be declared or not), civil war,
rebellion revolution, Insurrection or military power. s exclusion apphes
regardiess of any other contributing or aggrava ng cause or event that
contributes concurrently or n any sequence fo the bodily Injury, property
damage or personal and advertising infury.

PYRITE OR PYRRHOTITE

Bodily injury, property damage or
arsing directly or ndi in eorin pa froma reachve
aggregate or gran substance, i uding contalning pynte,
pyhotite, ferrous suifide and any materfals containing such ‘e
aggregaes gra lar substances, inany fomand a2  quantity. This
exclusion applies regardless of any contributing or aggravating
cause or event that contributes co y of In any sequence to the
bodily injury, property damage or parsonal and advertising Injury.

al and advertising Injury

SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS -
COVERAGES A,Band D

We will pay, with respect to any claim we investigate or settle or any
action against an Insured we delend

11 All expenses we incur

12 The cost of bonds to release attachments but only for bond
amounts within the applicable mit of insurance We de not have to
furmish these bonds

13 Al reasonable expenses you incur at our request to assist us 1n the

investigation or defense of the ctaim or action, including actual loss
of eamings up to $250 a day because of time off from work

1.4 All costs assessed or awarded against you in the action.

15 Any interest accruing after entry of judgment upon that pan of the
judgment which is within the applicable hmit of insurance and before
we have paid offered to pay, or depostted in court the part of the
judgment that is within the applicable imut of insurance

These payments will not reduce the limils of insurance

2,

If we defend an Insured against an action and an indemnitee of the
Insured is also named as a party to the action, we will defend that
ndemnitee if ali of the following conditions are met

21 The action against the indemnitee seeks compensatory damages
for which the Insured has assumed the liability of the indemnitee in a
contract or agreement that is an insured contract;

22 Thus insurance applies to such liability assumed by the Insured

23 The obligation to defend. or the cost of the defense of, that
indemnitee has also been assumed by the Insured in the same
insured contract;

24 The allegations in the action and the information we know about the
occurrence are such that no conflict appears ta exist between the
interests of the Insured and the interests of the indemn tee,

25 The indemnitee and the Insured ask us to conduct and control the
defense of that indemmtee against such action and agree that we
can assign the same counsel to defend the Insured and the
indemnitee, and

26 Theindemnilee

261 Agreesinwriting to

2611 Cooperate with us in the investigation settiement or
defense of the action;

2612 Immediately send us copies of any demands
notices, summonses or legal papers recewed In
conneclion with the action;

2613 Nolify any other insurer whose coverage s
available 1o the indemnitee and

2614 Cooperate with us with respect to coordinating

other applicable insurance avalable to the
indemnitee; and

262 Provides us with written authorization to

2621 Obtain records and other information related to the
action; and

2622 Conduct and control the defense of the indemnitee
in such action.

So long as the above conditions are met, legal fees incurred by
us 1n the defense of that indemnitee, necessary lisgation
expenses incurred by us and necessary litgation expenses
incurred by the indemnitee at our request will be paid as
Supplementary Payments. Notwithstanding the provisions of
Paragraph 2 2.2 of Section | — Coverage A - Bodily Injury and
Property Damage Liability, such payments wil not be deemed
to be compensatory damages for bodily injury and property
damage and will not reduce the limits of insurance

Qur abligation to defend an Insured's indemnitee and 1o pay

for legal fees and necessary Mhligalon expenses as

Supplementary Payments ends when

- We have used up the applicable bmit of insurance 1n the
payment of judgments or settiements, or

- The conditions set forth above, or the terms of the
agreement described in Paragraph 26 above, are no
longer met

SECTION Il - WHO IS AN INSURED

IF YOU ARE DESIGNATED IN THE DECLARATIONS AS:

11 Anindwidual, you and your spouse are Insureds but only with respect
to the conduct of a business of which you are the sole owner

12 A parnnership, ltmited hability partnership or joint venture you are an
Insured Your members your partners and their spouses are also
Insureds, but only with respect to the conduct of your business

1.3 A limned liabiity company, you are an Insured Your members are
also Insureds, but only with respect to the conduct of your business
Your managers are Insureds but only with respect to therr duties as
your managers

091 Oe Version 4

14 An organization other than a partnership, limited hability partnership
jomnt venture or limited liability company. you are an Insured Your
executive officers and directors are Insureds, but only with respect
to their duties as your officers or directors. Your shareholders are
also Insureds. but only with respect 1o their liability as shareholders

15  Atrust, you are an Insured. Your trustees are also Insureds, but only
with respect to their duties as trustees.
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10-11

2. EACH OF THE FOLLOWING IS ALSO AN INSURED:

21 Your volunteer workers only while performing duties related to the
conduct of your business, or your employees, other than either your
executive officers (f you are an organizaton other than a
partnership, hmited liabilly parinership, joint venture or hmited
hability company) or your managers (if you are a limied liabifity
company). but only for acts within the scope of their employment by
you or while performing duties related to the conduct of your
business. However, none of these employees or volunteer
workers are Insureds for

211 Bodily injury or personal and advertising injury:

2111 To you, to your pariners or members (if you are a
partnership, limited liabilty partnerstup or joint
venture), to your members {if you are a hmited
hability company). to a co-employee while in the
course of his or her employment or performing
duties related to the conduct of your business, or {0
your other voiunteer workers while performing
duties related to the conduct of your business:

2112 For which there is any oblgation to share
compensatory damages with or repay someore
else who must pay compensatory damages
because of the inury described in Paragraph
2111 above.

2113 Ansing out’of his or her providing or faiing fo
pravide professional health care services, or

2114 To any person who at the time of injury 1s entitled to
benefits under any workers' compensation or
disability benefits law or a similar law.

21.2 Property damage to property

2121 Owned. occupied or used by,

2122 Rented to, in the care, custody or contro! of, or cver
which physical control is being exercised for any
purpose by

you, any of your employees, volunteer workers, any

partner or member (if yau are a pannership, limited liability

partnership of joint venture), or any member (if you are a

hmited hiability company)

22 Any person {other than your employee or volunteer worker) or
any organization while acting as your rea! estate manager

23 Any person or organization having proper temporary custody of your
property if you die, but only:

231 With respect 1o fiability arising out of the maintenance or use
of that property; and

232 Untl your legal representative has been appointed

24 Your legal representative if you die, but only with respect o duties
as such That representative will have all your nghts and duties
under this policy

25 Your unit of strata ot cwners and any tenants, but only with respect
to the conduct of the corporation for hability ansing out of the
common property, excluding liability arising out of the owner's of the
tenant's possession, occupation or use of property designated lor
exclusive use

Any orgamzation you newly acquire or form, other than a partnership
himited liabiity partnership or joint venture or limited liability company, ang
over which you maintain ownership or majority interest. will qualify as a
Named Insured if there is no other simiar insurance avalable to that
organization However -

31 Coverage under this provision is afforded only unid the 90th day
after you acquire or form the organization or the end of the pohicy
period, whichever is earfier;

32 Coverage A and D does not apply to bodily injury or property
damage that occurred before you acquwed or formed the
organization, and

33 Caverage B does not apply to personal and advertising Injury
arising out of an offense committed before you acquired or formed
the organization

No person or organization is an Insured with respect to the conduct of any
current or past parinership, miled bability parinership joint venture or
mited hability company thal is not shown as a Named Insured in
the Declarations

SEPARATION OF INSUREDS, CROSS LIABILITY

Except with respect to the Limits of Insurance, and any rights or duties
specifically assigned in this policy to the first Named Insured this
insurance applies

41 Asif each Named Insured were the only Named Insured, and

42 Separately to each Insured against whom claim 15 made or action 15
brought

SECTION Il - LIMITS OF INSURANCE AND DEDUCTIBLES

The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations and the rules below fix
the most we will pay regardless of the number of

11 Insureds,

12 Claims made or actions broughi, or

13 Persons or organizations making claims or bringing actions.
The General Aggregate Limit 15 the most we will pay for the sum of

21 Compensatory damages under Coverage A excepl
compensatory damages because of bodily injury or property
damage included in the products-completed operations hazard;

22 Compensatory damagss under Coverage B, and
23 Medical expenses under Coverage C

The Producis-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit ts the most we will
pay under Coverage A for compensatory damages because of bodily
injury and property damage included in the products-completed
operations hazard.

Subjectto 2 or 3 above, whichever applies, the Each Qccurrence Limit 1s
the most we will pay for the sum of

41 Compensatory damages under Coverage A, and
42 Medicai expenses under Coverage C

because of all bodily injury and property damage ansing out of any one
occurrence.

Subject to 2. above, the Personal and Adverusing Inury Limit 1s the most
we will pay under Coverage B for the sum of all compensatory damages
because of all personal and advertising injury sustained by any one
person or arganization
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The Tenanis' Legal Liability Limit is the most we will pay under Coverage
D for compensatory damages because of property damage fo any
one premises

Subject 10 4 above. the Medical Expense Limit 1s the most we will pay
under Coverage C for all medical expenses because of bodily injury
sustained by any one person.

The Limits of Insurance of this policy apply separately to each consecutwve
annual penod and o any remaining penod of less than 12 months, starting
with the beginning of the palicy period shown in the Declarations, unless the
policy penod i1s exiended after issuance for an additional penod of less than
12 months In that case. the additicnal period will be deemed part of the last
preceding penod for purposes of determining the Limits of Insurance

“Policy penod” means each consecutive period of 12 manths included n the
pohicy penod shown on the Declaration The first twelve-month period stans
on the inception date of the policy and the subsequent pencd starts at the
expiry of the first twelve-month penod

DEDUCTIBLES

81 Our abligation under Property Damage Liabihity and Tenants' Legat
Liabiity to pay compensatory damages on your behalf applies only to
the amount of compensatory damages in excess of any deductble
amounts stated in the Declarations as applicable to such coverages
and the imits of insurance applicable to each occurrence for Property
Damage Liability and any one premises for Tenants' Legal Liability will
be reduced by the amount of such deductible
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82 The deductble amount apphes as follows

82 1. Under Coverage A, o all compensatory damages because of
property damage as the result of any one occurrence,
regardiess of the number of persons or orgamizations who
sustain compensatory damages because of that occurmrence.

822 Under Coverage D, to all compensatory d ges because
of property damage as the result of any one occurrence,
regardless of the number of persons or orgamizations who

sustain compensatory damages because of that
occurrence.

83 Theterms of this insurance, including those in respect to

B31 our right and duty to defend any action seeking those
compensatory damages; and
832 your duties in the event of an occurrence, claim or action;
apply irrespective of the application of the deductible amount
84 We may pay any part or all of the deductible amount to effect
settlement of any claim or action and, upon notfication of the action

taken, you shall promptly reimburse us for such past of the
deductible amount as has been paid by us

SECTION IV — DEFINITIONS

Abuse means any act or threat involving molestauon, harassment, corporal
punishrment or any cther form of physical, sexual or mental abuse

Action means a cwil proceeding in which compensatory damages
because of bodily injury, property damage or personal and advertising
injury to which this nsurance apphes are alleged Action includes

21 An arbitration proceeding in which such compensatory damages
are claimed and to which the Insured must submi or does subma
vath our consent, or

22 Any other alternative dispute resolution proceeding in which such
compensatory damages are claimed and to which the lnasured
subrmits with our consent

Advertisement means a notice that 1s broadcast or published to the
general public or specific marke! segments about your goods, products or
services for the purpose of attractng customers or supporiers For the
purposes of this definition

3.1 Notices that are published include materal placed on the Internet ot
on similar etectronic means of communication, and

32 Regarding web-sites, only that part of a web-site that 1s about your
goods, products or services for the purposes of attracting customers
or supporters is considered an advertisement

Automobile means a land motor vehicle, trailer or semurailer that s
required by law 10 be insured under a contract evidenced by a motor
vehicle hability policy, or any vehicle insured under such a contract,
ncluding any attached machinery or equipment

Bodily injury means bodily injury, sickness or disease sustained by a
person, including death resulting from any of these at any tme

Compensatory damages means damages due ar awarded m payment
for actual injury or economic loss Compensatory damages does not
include punitive or exemplary damages or the multiple poron of any
multiplied damage award

Coverage territory means

71 Canada and the United States of Amenca (including its terntones
and possessions)

72 International waters or aispace, but only if the injury or damage
eccursg in the course of travel or transportation between any places
included in 7 1 above. or

7.3 All other parts of the world if the injury or damage anses out of

7.31 Goods or products made or sold by you in-the terntory
describedin 7.1 above

7 32 The activities of an insured person whose home 1s n the
terntory described in 7 1. above, but is away for a short time
on your business. of

733 Personal and advertising injury offenses that take place
through the Internet or smilar electronic means of communicaton
provided the Insured’s responsibility to pay compensatory d ges is

determined in an action on the merits, in the termtory descnbed in 7 1
above or in a settlement we agree to

Employee includes a leased worker and a temporary worker.

Executive officer means a person hoiding any of the officer positions
created by your charter, constitution, by-laws or any other similar
goveming document i

Fissionable substance means any prescribed substance that is. or from
which can be obtained, a substance capable of releasing atomic energy
by nuclear fission

11, Fungi includes. but is not imuted to, any form or type of mould yeast
mushroom or mildew whether or not allergenic. pathogeruc or toxigenic, and
any substance, vapour or gas produced by, emitted from or ansing out of any
fungi or spores or resultant mycotoxins, allergens or pathogens

12. Hostile fire means one which becornes uncontroliable or breaks out fram
where it was intended to be

10-11

13.

14.

15.
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Impaired property means tangible property, other than your product or
your work, that cannot be used or is less usefu! because

13 1 Itincorporates your product of your work that is known or thought
to be defective, deficient, inadequate or dangerous, or

13 2 You have tailed to {ulfill the terms of a contract or agreement,
if such property can be restored to use by’

- The repair, replacement, adjusiment or removal of your product or
your work; or

- Your fulfilling the terms of the contract or agreement

Incidental medical malpractice injury means bodily injury ansing out
of the rendering of or failure to render, durnng the policy pencd, the
{ollowing services:

14 1 medical, surgical, dental, x-ray or nursing services or treatment or
the furnishing of food or beverages in connection therevath, or

14 2 the furnishing or dispensing of drugs or medical, dental or surgical
supplies or appliances;

by any Insured or any indemnitee causing the incidental medical
malpractice injury who is not engaged in the business or occupation of
providing any of the services described in 14.1 and 14 2 above

Insured contract means:

151 A contract for a lease of premises. However. that portion of the
contract for a lease of premises that indemnifies any person or
organization for damage to premises while rented to you or
ternporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner s not an
insured contract;

152 A sidetrack agreement;

153 An easement or license agreement in connection with vehicle or
pedestrian private railroad crossings at grade

154 Any other easement agreement;

155 An oblgation, as required by ordinance or bylaw, to indemnify a
municipality. except in connection with work for a municipality,

156 An elevalor maintenance agreement,
157 a declaration of co-ownership

158 That part of any other contract or agreement pertaning o your
business (including an indemnification of a municipality n
connection vath work performed for a municipality) unders which you
assume the tort liabiity of another party to pay for compensatory
damages because of bodily Injury or property damage to a third
person or organization, provided the bodily injury or property
damage 15 caused, in whole or in part. by you or by those acting on
your behalf Tort liability means a bability that would be imposed by
law in the absence of any contract or agreement

Paragraph 15 8 coes not include that parn of any contract or agreement

15 8 1 That indemnifies an architect. engineer or surveyar for injury
or ¢amage arising out of

15811 Prepanng, approving, or failing 10 prepare or
approve. maps, shop drawings. opinions regorts
surveys, field orders, change orders or drawings
and specifications; or

158 1.2 Giving directions or instructians, or faiing lo give
them, if that is the pnmary cause of the inury or
damage or

1582 Under which the insured, if an architect, engineer or
surveyor, assumes liability for an injury or damage arising cut
of the insured's rendenng or fallure to render professional
services, mncluding those listed n 1581 above and
supervisory, inspechon, architectural or engineenng activities
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Leased worker means a person leased 1o you by a labour leasing firm
under an agreement between you and the iabour leasing firm, to perform
duties related to the conduct of your business Leased worker does not
include a temporary worker.

Loading or unloading means the handhng of properly

17 1 After it is moved from the place where it i1s accepted tor movement
into or onlo an awcraft or watercraft,

17 2 White it 1s 1n or on an aircraft or watercraft, or

17 3 While 1t is being moved from an aitcraft or watercrafl {0 the place
where 1t 1s finally delivered,

but loading or unloading does not include the movement of property by
means of a mechanical device that 1s not attached {o the aircrait or
watercraft

Nuclear energy hazard means the radioactive, toxic, explosive, or other
hazardous properties of radicactive matenal

Nuclear facility means

19 1 any apparatus designed or used to sustain nuclear fission in a self-
supporting chain reaction or to contain a critical mass of plutonium,
thonum and uranium or any one of more of them,

19 2 any equipment or device designed or used for

18 2 1 separating the 1sotopes of plutonium, thosium and uranium or
any one or more of them

19 2 2 processing or packaging waste,

193 any equipment or device used for the processing fabricating or
alloying of plutomum, thonum or wranium ennched in the isotope
uranium 233 or i the 1solope uranium 235, or any one or more of
them if at any time the total amount of such matena! in the custody
of the Insured at the premises where such equipment or device is
focated consists of or contains more than 25 grams of plutenium or
uranum 233 or any combination thereof, or more than 250 grams of
uranium 235,

154 any structure, basin, excavation, premises or place prepared or used
for the starage or disposal of waste radioactive matenal,

and wncludes the site on which any of the foregoix{g 1s located. fogether
with all operations conducted thereon and all premuses used for
such operations

Occurrence means an accident, ncluding conbinuous or repeated
exposure to substantially the same general harmful conditions

Personal and advertsing injury means injury, including consequential
bodily injury, arising out of one or more of the following 9ﬂenses

211 False arrest, detenlion or imprisonment;
21 2 Malicious prosecution,

213 The wrongful eviction from, wrongful entry into, or invasion of the nght
of prvate occupancy of a room, dwelling or premises that a person
occupies, commitied by or on behalf of its owner, landiord or lessor.

214 Oral or written publicatton, in any manner, of matenal that slanders
or libels a person or organization or disparages a person’s or
arganization's goods, products or services,

215 Oral or written publication, in any manner, of matenal that violates a
person's right of privacy,

216 The use of anothers adverusing idea in your advertisement; or

217 Infringing upon anothers copyfight, trade dress or slogan n
your advertisement.

Pollutants mean any solid, hquid, gaseous or thermal wuntant or

contaminant, including smoke. odour, vapour, soot, fumes, acids, alkals,

chemicals and waste. Waste includes matenals to be recycled,

reconditioned or reclaimed

Products-completed operations hazard:

23 1 Includes all bodily injury and property damage occurning away
from premises you own or rent and ansing out of your product or
your work except

23 1.1 Products that are stilt in your phys:ical possession, of

2312 Work that has not yel been completed or abandoned
However, your work will be deemed completed at the
earliest of the following times

23121 When all of the work called for in your contract has
been completed

23,122 When all of the work to be done at the job site has
been completed f your contract calls for work at
more than one job site

24

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

.
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23123 When that part of the work done at a job site has
been put to ils intended use by any person or
organizalion other than another contractor or
subcantractor working on the same project

Work that may need service, maintenance. correction repar
or replacement bul which s otherwise complete will be
treated as completed

23 2 Does nol include bodily injury or property damage ansing out of
the existence of tools, uninstalled equipment or abandoned or
unused materials

Professional services shall include but not be hmited to

24 1 Medical, surgical, dental. x-ray Of nursing sefvice or treatiment. or
the furnishing of food or beverages in connection therewitn,

24 2 Any professional service or treatment conducive to health
24 3 Prolessional services of a pharmacist

24 4 The furnishing or dispensing of drugs or medical. dental or surgical
supplies or appliances

245 The handhing or treatment ol deceased human bodies including
autopsies, organ donations or other pracedures,

24 6 Any cosmetic, body piercing, tonsonal or hairdressing. massage
physiotherapy. chiropody. hearing aid, optical or optometrnical
services or treatments,

247 The preparahon or approval of maps, shop drawings. opinions, reporls
surveys, field orders, change orders or drawings and specifications,

24 8 Supervisory, inspection, architectural, design or engineering services

24 9 Accountants, advertisers, nofary's (Quebec), public notary's
paralegal's, lawyers, real estate brokers or agents insurance
brokers or agent's, ftravel agent’s, financial institution’s or
consultant’s professional advices or activities,

24 10 Any compuler programming ofr
advisory or related services, or

24 11 Claim, investigation, adjustment. appraisal, survey or audit services
Property damage means.

25 1 Physical injury 1o tangible property, including all resulling loss of use
of that property Al such joss of use shall be deemed 1o occur at the
time of the physcal injury that caused it, or

252 Loss of use of tangible property that is nol physically injurec Al
such 1055 of use shall be deemed to occur al the time of the
occurrence that caused it

For the purposes of this insurance, electronic data i1s not tangibte property

As used in this defimilion, electronic data means information, facts or
programs stored as or on, created or used on, or transmitted to or from
camputer software, including systems and apphcations software, hard or
floppy disks, CD-ROMS, tapes, drives, cells, data processing davices or
any other media which are used with electronically controlled equipment

Radioactive materlal means uranium, thonum. plutonium, neptunium
their respective derivabves and compounds, radioactive isotopes of other
elements and any other substances which may be designated by any
nuclear hability act, law or statute, or any law amendatory thereof. as
being prescribed substances capable of releasing atomic energy. ofr as
being requisite for the production, use or application of atomic energy

Spores includes, but is not limited to, any reproductve paricle or
microscopic fragment produced by, emitted from or arising out of any fungi.

Temporary worker means a person who is furmished to you to substitute
for a permanent employee on leave or to meet seasonal or short-lerm
workload condiions

Terrarism means an ideologically motivated unlawful act or acls
including but not limited to the use of violence or force or threat of violence
or force. commitied by or on behall of any group{s) organization(s) or
government(s) for the purpose of influencing any government andior
instiling fear in the public or a section of the public
Volunteer worker means a person who is not your employee, and who
donates his or her work and acts at the direction of and withun the scope of
duties determined by you, and is not paid a fee, salary or cther
compensation by you or anyone else for their work performed for you
Your product:
311 Means
3111 Any goods or products, other than real property
manufactured, sold, handled, distributed or gisposed of by
- You,
- QOthers trading under your name or

~ A person or organization whose business or assets ycu
have acquired, and

fe-programming. consuiing
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31 12 Containers (other than vehicles). materials, parts or equipment 32

fumished tn connection with such goods or products.
31 2 Includes

312 1 Wartanties or representations made at any time with respect
to the fitness, quality, durability, performance or use of your

product; and

31 2 2 The providing of or falure to provide warmings or instructions
31 3 Does not include vending machines or other propenty rented to or

tocated for the use of others but not sold
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Your work:
32 1 Means
32 1 1 Work or operations performed by you or on your behalf, and

32 1.2 Matenals, parts or equipment furnished 1n connectien with
such work or operatians

32 2 Includes

32 2 1 Warranties or represenlations made at any tme with respect
to the fitness, quality durability, performance or use of your
work; and

32 2 2 The providing of or failure to provide warnings or instructions
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Q.P.F. No. 6

QUEBEC AUTOMOBILE INSURANCE POLICY
NON-OWNED FORM

Words and phrases in bold have special meaning as defined in Definiions Section

INSURING AGREEMENT

Now, therefore subject to the imits terms and condiions, provisions defindions and exclus ons herein stated

SECTION A — CIVIL LIABILITY

The Insurer agrees to indemnufy the fnsured, the Insured’'s succession or legal
representatives against the pecuniary consequences of civil hability the Insured
may incur for oss or damage ansing from the use or operation in the business
descnbed in the Declarations of any automobile not owned (in whole or in part)
by or reg stered in the name of the Insured, and resuiting from bodly injury to or
death of others or damage to property of others not in the care cuslody or
control of the Insured.  However, where the loss exceeds the amounts of
insurance the indemnity shall be applied first to the pecumiary consequences of
civit liabil ty incurred by the Named Insured

EXCLUSIONS
The Insurer shall not be liable under this section:

(1) except where the Automobile Insurance Act does not apply, for bodily injury
or death covered under the said Act, the Ac! respecting industrial accidents
and occupational disesses or the Crime Victims Compensation Act,

(2) for any liability which arises from the use or operation of any automobile
while personally driven by the Insured If the insured Is an individual,

(3) for any Hability imposed by any workmen's compensation law upon any
person insured by this section;

(4) for loss or damage sustained by the Insured  any employee, shareholder,
officer, member pariner or mandatary of the Insured while engaged in the
business ofthel u , except as provided under a Direct Compensation
Agreement established in accordance with the afc tioned Automobil
Insurance

(5) for any liability assumed voluntarily by any person insured by this section
under any contract or agreement except for private passenger vehicules
rented or leased by an Insured for a period of less than thirty (30) days;

{8) forlo or damage to propesty carried inoruponana personally
driven by any person insured by this section or to any properly owned or
rented by, or in the care, custody or control of any such person;

{7) for any sum in excess of the amount stated in the Declarations, and
expenditures provided for In the Additional Agreements of this section,
irespective of the number of persons or interests insured;

{8) for any loss or damage resulting from bociiy injuty to or death of any person
or damage to property arising out of a nuclear energy hazard and in
excess of the compulsory amount of liability insurance prescribed by the
Automobile Insurance Act or the Act respecting off-highway vehicles,
depending on the type of vehicle involved.

Sec also General Provisians, Definitions, Exclusions and Conditions.

ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS
Where indemn ty s prov ded by th s sect on the Insurer further agrees

(a) immediately upon rece pt of notice of loss 10 serve any person msured by
this section by such invest:gation thereof or by such transactions with the
claimant or by such settlement of any resulting claims as may be deemed
expedient by the Insurer

(b} 1o take up the mterest of any person entd ed to the beneft of the insurance
and assume his defense in any action which may be brought against him,

(c) bear, over and above the proceeds of the insurance costs and expenses
resulling from actions against the Insured, including those of the defense
and interest on the proceeds of the insurance

(d) f the injury 1S to a person to resmburse any person insured by this section
for expenses mcurred for such medca ad as may be immediately
necessary at the t me of such injury

(e) tobe liable up to the miumum amaunl(s) of kab Iity insurance prescnbed by
any legslation respecting Automolile Insurance and applying in that
province or terntory of Canada or in that State of the Uniled States of
Amenca in which the accident occurred if that amounti(s) s higher than the
amount(s) stated \n the Declarations

() not to set up any delense to a claim that m ght not be set up  the pobcy
wviere a motor vehicle hability policy 1ssued in the provirce or terniory of
Canada or in the state of the United States of Ame ca in which the
accident occurred

AGREEMENTS OF INSURED

Where indemnity 1s provided by this section, every person insured

(8) empowers the Insurer as their representative to appear and defend in any
province or temtory of Canada or in any State of the United States of
America in which action is brought against the Insured arising out of the
use or operation of an automobile with respect 1o which jnsurance 15
provided hereunder,

(b) renounces his nght to unilaterally revoke such mandate,

(c) shall reimburse the Insurer, upon demand in the amount which the Insurer
has paid by reason of the provisions of any statute relaling to automabile
insurance and which the Insurer would not otherwise be hable to pay under
this section.
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GENERAL PROVISIONS, DEFINITIONS AND EXCLUSIONS

TERRITORY

Unless extended by endorsement insurance provided by this contract
apphes only witin Canada the United States of America and upon a
vessel andfor aircralt serving ports of airponts of those countries

PERSONNEL OF OTHER GARAGES EXCLUDED

No person who is engaged in a garage business, shall be enttled to
indemnity or payment under this coniract for any loss, damage, injury or
death sustained while using, operating or working upon the automobile in
the course of that business or while so engaged is an occupant of or enters
or gets onto or alights from such automobie, unless the person is the
Insured or the Insured's employee, shareholder, member, partner or
mandatary or is actually driving the automobile in Québec

DEFINITIONS
In this policy”
{a) The term garage business ncludes any business invoiving the

custody, selling. equipping, repaning. maintaining, stonng. parking,
moving or servicing of automobiles,

(b) The term hired automobiles means automohiles hired or leased
from others with or without drivers, used under the control of the
Insured in the business stated in the Declarations but shall not
include any automobile owned in whole or in par by or registered in
the name of the Named Insured or any employee, shareholder,
officer, member, partner or mandatary of the Insured

(c) The temn automobiles operated under contract shall mean
automobiles operated in the business of the Insured stated in the
Declarations where the complete supervision, direction and conirol of
such automobiles remain with the owner thereof. but shall not include
any automobile owned in whole or in part by or registered in the
name of the Named Insured or any employee shareholder, officer,
member, pariner or mandatary of the Insured,

(d) The words nuclear energy hazard mean the radioactive, toxic
explosive or other hazardous properties of prescrnbed substances
under the Atomic Energy Controf Act {Canada)

TWO OR MORE AUTOMOBILES

(3a) When two or more aulomobiies are insured hereunder the terms of
this contract shall apply separalely to each, but a motor vehicle and
one or more trailer or trailers or semi-trailers attached thereto shall be
held to be one automobile with respect to the amounts of insurance
under Section A Where two or more automobiles are insured under
one or more contracts 1ssued by the same insurer. only one amount
of insurance, the highest, shall apply in the event of loss under
section A

(b) i section B is included n thus policy through endorsement Q EF. Na
6.94, Cwil Lisbity for damage to hired auwtomobiles andlor
automobiles operated under contract, such automobiles shall be held
to be separate automobiles with respect 1o the amount(s) of
insurance, including any deductible provisions, under section B,

{c) Section A shalt apply to the Insured's hiabihly for damage caused to a
non-owned trailer, other than a trailer designed or used to cary
passengers of for demonstration, sale, office or dwelling purposes
while

- attached to an automobile of the private passenger type
insured under said section,

- not attached lo any other vehicle, provided such traier i1s
generally attached o an automoblie of the private passenger
type nsured under said section

Automoblle of the private passenger type commercial vehucles of
4 500 kg (10 000 Ib) gross vehicle weight or less while used for
private or pleasure purpose shall be deemed to be af the pnvate
passenger type
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5. ADDITIONAL INSUREDS

Thts conlract also Insures every employee. shareholder, officer. member
partner or mandatary of the Named Insured. who. with the consent of the
owner of the automobile involved

{a) and in the business of the Named Insured stated in the Declarations
personally drives any automobile not owned in whole or in part by or
registered 1n the name of (1) the Named Insured, or (2) such
additional insured person, or {3) any person having the same
domicile as the Named Insured or such additional insured person

(b) any automobile rented or hired in the name of the Named Insured
and not owned in whole or in part by or registered in the name aof
such additional insured person

PREMIUM ADJUSTMENT

The advance premiums stated in the Declaratons andinQE F No 6-94, «
applicable, are computed on the estimated tolal "cost of hire™ or “contract
cost”, as the case may be, for the contract period The words “cost for hire”
as used herein mean the entire amount incurred for hired automobiles
and drivers when such automobiles are hired with dnivers or the amount
incusred for hired automablles and the wages paid to dnvers when such
dnvers are employees of the Insured The words “contract cost” as used
herein mean the entire amount paid by the Insured for automobiles
operated under contract to the owners thereof

The advance premiums are subject to adjusiment at the end of the conlract
period when the Insured shall deliver to the Insurer a written stalement of
the total amounts expended for “cost of hire" and “contract cost” during the
contract period based on the provisions contained in QE F No 6-100

Final adjustment of premium compulation statement

AUDIT

Provided the Insured has authonzed the Insurer in wnting, the insurer may
at any time during regular business hours and upon fourteen (14) days’
prior notice examine the books and records of the Insured insofar as they
relate to the subject matter of the contract

CROSS LIABILITY
Every Named Insured sustamning loss or damage because of another
Named Insured shall. in respect of such loss or damage. be deemed 1o be

a third party under this contract, provided that this prowision shall not
operate to increase the hmit of the Insurer's liability

EXCLUDED USES

Unless coverage is Indicated in the Declarations or expressly given by an
endorsement, the Insurer shall pot be liable under this contract while:'

(a) the automobile is rented or leased to ancther;

(b} the automobile is used {o cany ives, o to camny radicactive

material for research, education, development or industrial purposes,
or for purposes incidental thereto;

{c} the automoblle is used as 2 taxicab, bus, livery or sighiseeing
conveyance
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CONDITIONS

This contract 15 subject to the Casl Code of Québec, the Code of Canf Procedure of
Québec, the Automobile Insurance Act and its regulations and the Act respecting off-
hghway vehcles if apphcable ’

1.

10-

REPRESENTATION OF RISK

The client and the Insured i the Insurer requires it, is bound to represent
all the facts known to him which are hkely to materally influence an insurer
in the setuing of the premium, the appraisal of the risk or the decision to
cover it. but he is not bound to represent facts known to the Insurer or
which from ther notoriety he is presumed to know, except :n answer
to Ingquines .

The chent means the person submitting an insurance application
MATERIAL CHANGE IN RISK

The Insured shall promptly notify the Insurer of any change that increases
the nsks stpulated in the policy and that results from events within his
control if it is hikely to matenally influence an insurer in setting the rate of
the premium, appraising the nsk or deciding to continue to insure it

On being notfied of any matenal change in the risk, the Insurer may. under
Condition 21, cancel the contract or propose. in wriling @ new rate of
premium Unless the new premium 1s accepled and paid by the Insured
within thurty {30) days of the proposal, the policy ceases to be in force

If the Insurer continues to accepl the premiums or if he pays an indemnity
after a loss, he 1S deemed 1o have acquiesced in the change notfied
to him

MISREPRESENTATIONS OR CONCEALMENT

Section A of the policy may be nullified at the instance of the Insurer where
the Insured or the chent has misrepresented or concealed relevant facts
mentioned in Conditon 1. and in the first paragraph of Condition 2 which
are hkely to malenally influence a reasonable insurer in the decision to
cover the nsk Unless such musrepresentation or cancealment s
estabhished, the Insurer remains liable towards the insured for such
proportion of the indemnily as the premium he callected bears ta the
premium he should have collecled

Sections B of endorsement Q E F No 6-94 may be nullfied at the instance
of the Insurer where the Insured or the cliemt has misrepresented or
concealed relevant facts mentoned in Condiion 1 and in the fust
paragraph of Condition 2 which are lkely to materially influence a
reasonable surer, even in respect of losses not connected with the nsk so
misrepresented or concealed Uniess the bad faith of the Insured or the
chient 1s estabhished or unless 1f 1s established {hat the Insurer would not
have covered the nsk if he had known the true facts, the Insurer remains
hable towards the Insured for such proporion of the indemnity as the
premium he collected bears to the premium he should have collected

BREACH OF WARRANTY
A breach of waranty aggravatng the risk suspends the coverage The

suspension ceases upon the acquiescence of the Insurer or the remedy of
the breach,

PROHIBITED USE

The Insured shall not drive or operate the autormobile nor permit the use of
the automobile by others

(a8) unless the dnver s for the ime being authonzed by law or qualified to
dnve or operate the automobile or while he s under sixteen (16)
years of age or under such other age as Is prescribed by law to dnve
an automobile

(b) for any licit trade or transportation;

(c) n any race or speed test

INSPECTION OF AUTOMOBILE

The Insurer shall be pernutied at all reascnable tmes 1o inspect the
automobite and its equipment

NOTICE OF LOSS

The Insured shall notfy the Insurer of any loss which may give nse 1o an
indemnity, as soon as he becomes aware of it Any interested person may
give such notice

The failure to fulfil the obhgation set out in the preceding paragraph entails
forfeture of the nght to indemnity where such faillure has caused prejudice
to the Insurer
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8.

10.

11.

12.

INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED

At request of the Insurer, the Insured shall inform the Insuter as soon as
possible of ali the circumstances surrgunding the loss, including its
probable cause, the nature and extent of the damage, the location of the
insured property, the rights of third parties, and any concurrent insurance
he shall atso furnish him with vouchers and swear or warrant to the truth of
the mformation,

Where, for a serious reason, the Insured is unable to fulfil such cbligation
he is entitled to a reasonable time in which to do so If the insured fails to
fulfil his obligation. any interested person may do so on his behaif

In addition, the Insured shall forthwith send to the Insurer a copy of any
notice, letter, summons or proceeding received in connection with a clam

DECEITFUL REPRESENTATION

Any decestful representation relating to a loss entails the loss of the nght of
the person making it to any indemnity in respect of the nsk to which the
representation relates

Howevet, it the occurrence of the event insured against entails the loss of
both property for occupaticnal use and personal property forleiiure Is
incurred only with respect (o the class of property to which the
representation relates

ABANDONMENT, SAFEGUARDING AND EXAMINATION OF
PROPERTY

The Insured may not abandon the damaged property if there s no
agreement o that effect with the Insurer

The Insured shall facilitate the salvage and inspection of the insured
property by the Insurer. He shall, in paruicular, permit the Insurer and his
representatives to visit the premises and examine the insured automobile
and its equipment

In addition, the Insured shall at the expense of the Insurer, and as far as
reasonably possible, protect the automobile from further loss or damage
and any such further loss or damage accruing diectly or indirectly from a
failure 10 protect shall not be recoverable hereunder. No repairs shalt be
undentaken or any physical evidence of the loss or damage removed
without the wrtten consent of the Insurer, except such repars as are
immedialely necessary for the protection of the automobile from further loss
or damage, or untl the Insuref has had a reasanable time to make the
examination provided for in Condition 6

ADMISSION OF LIABILITY AND COOPERATION

No transacton made without the consent of the Insurer may be set up
against him

The insured shall not admit any liability nor settle or attempt to settle any
claim, except at his own cost.

The Insured shall cocperate with the Insurer in the processing of all claims
VALUATION AND MANNER OF PAYMENT

The Insurer shall not be liable beyond the actual cash value of the
automobile at the time any loss or damage occurs, and the loss or damage
shall be ascertained or estimated with proper deduction for depreciation
however caused, and shall in no event exceed what it would cost to repair
or teplace the automobile or any part thereo! with material of like kind and
quality provided that in the event of any part of the automobile being
obsolete and out of stock, the liability of the insurer in respect theteof shall
be limited to the vaiue of original equipment manufacturer pars at the time
of loss or damage not exceeding the manufacturér's latest list price

For the purpose of the above toverage, the value of damages caused to
the automaobile shall be based on original equipment manufacturer pars
where the age of the automobile and mileage are less than two (2) years
and forty thousand (40 000) kilometres or less than one (1) year in the
case of an automobile used for commercial purposes. Where the age and
mieage are greater, such value may be based on similar automobile parts
However, the Insured may opt for onginal equipment manufacturer, if
available, by communicating such aption to the Insurer at the time of the
notice of loss The Insurer shall then specify the applicable conditions and
addisona!l costs that the Insured shall assume as a result of such option

In the event of a total or constructive total loss, the Insurer agrees. at the
option of the Insured and subject i0 supporting ewidence. to cover
reasonable expenses incured to resfore the automobile to the same
condition as it was before the loss
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10-11

Except where an arbitration has been made and subject to the rights of
preferred and hypothecary creditors, the insurer, instead to making
payment may. within a reasonable time, repair, rebulld or replace the
property damaged or lost vath other of ike kind and quality, giving wntten
notice of its intention so to do within seven (7) days after the receipt of the
proofs of loss

In all cases. the salvage. if any, shall revert to the insurer
ARBITRATION

Arbitration may take place in the event of a disagreement as 10 the nature,
extent or amount of the loss or damage, or the adequacy of the repairs or
the replacement and mdependently of all other quesuons respacting the
validity of the contract

The party seeking arbitration must nolfy the other party of his intention in
wnung. specifying the matter in dispule The Insured's request for
arbitration must be granted The Insurer's request for arbiration may be
granted subject to the Insured's consent

If the Insured requests arbitration, the Insurer must send the Insured an
acknowledgement of receipt no Iater than filteen (15) clear days afer
receipt of this notice If the Insurer so requests, the Insured must confirm
acceptance or refusal within the same amount of time

Each party shall name an expert and the two (2} expers shall work jointly
to estimate damage (estabhshing the actual cash vaiue and the damage
separately) or to assess the adequacy of the repairs or the replacement
Failing to agree. they shall submit their differences 1o a disinterested
arbitrator they have appointed

If either party fails 10 appoint an expert within thirty (30) clear days of the
date of the nolice or if the experts fail to agree upon an arbitrator within
fiteen (15) days of theiwr appomniment, or if an expert or the arbitrator
refuses to act or is unavaiable, the vacancy thus created must be filled, on
the request of one of the parties, by a court with junsdiction in the place of
the arbitration.

Notwithstanding the asbitration procedure and «f {he validity or application of
the contract is not being contested, the insurer shall pay the uncontested
portion of the damage amount This payment must be made not later than
sixty (80) days afler receipt of notice of loss or receipt of the information or
supporting documents required by the Insurer

Subject to this clause, the arbitration shall foliow the procedure in sections
940 to 951.2 of the Code of Civil Procedure of Québec taking into account
any required modifications In accordance with section 944 1 of this Code
the arbitration may proceed according 10 a procedure determined by the
arbitrator, insofar as this procedure does not contravene the above
sections. The arbitralion proceedings shall be held at a place in
accordance with the domicile of the Insured.

The arbitrator shall settle the dispute in accordance with the applicatle
laws in the province of Québec. The arbitratar and the parties may use the
language of their choice dunng the arbitration proceedings Measures must
be taken 1o ensure that all the participants understand the language used

The arbitration award shall be made in writing by the arbitrator It must
indicate the date and place where it has been made It must state the
reasans on which it is based and be signed by the arbitrator, then sent to
the parties within thirty (30) days of the date on which it has been made

Each party shall pay the expenses and fees of its expert and half the fees
and expenses of the arbitration proceedings. The arbitrator is authonzed to
award the fees and expenses of the arbitration if he deems that the sharing
method established by this clause is not justified or fair for each of the
parties in the circumstances.

NON-WAIVER
Neither the Insurer nor the Insured shall be deemed to have waived any
term or condition of this contract by any act relating 1o arbitration or to the

delivery and completion of proofs of loss, or to the investigation or
adjustment of the claim.

TIME OF PAYMENT

Claims under Section B shall be paid within sixty (60) days after receipt of
notice of loss or of information or proof of loss required by the Insurer or,
where an arbitration is held, within fifteen (15) days after award is accepted
by the Insured

CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE
Coverage 1s maintained after a loss
PRESCRIPTION

Every action against the Insurer unders this contract is perscribed by three
(3) years from the date the right of action has ansen

18.

19.

20,

21,

22.
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SUBROGATION

The Insurer shall be subrogated to the extent of the amount paid under this
ceniract o the nghts of the Insured against persons responsible for the (oss
except when they are members of the Insured's household

The Insurer may be fully or parly released from his obligation towards the
Insured where owing to any act of the Insured. he cannot be so
subrogaled

OTHER LIABILITY INSURANCE

insurance under a contract evidenced by a valid owner's policy is. in
respect of labilly ansing from or occurnng in connection with the
ownershup, use or operation of an automobile owned by the Insured named
in the policy and within the description or definition thereof in the policy. a
first loss insurance, and insurance attaching under any other vaiid motor
vehicle hability policy is excess insurance only

However, insurance evidenced by a valid garage policy, not descnbing the
specific automobile(s) insured. shall in respect to non-owned or customers’
automobiles while being used, operated or worked upon in the course of
the policyholder's business as a garage be a first loss nsurance and
msurance attaching under any other valid motor vehicle policy shall be
excess msurance only

RENEWAL OF CONTRACT

This caniract shall be renewed of nght, for the same premium and for the
same penod, at expiry, unless natice to the contrary 1s given by the Insurer
or the Insured, if gven by the Insurer, the notice of non-renewal or of a
change n the premium must be sent 1o the Insured, at his [ast known
address, not later than the thity (30) days preceding the date of expiry
caounting that date

Where the insured deals through a broker, the nolice provided for in the
first paragraph is sent by the insurer to the broker, the latter being entrusted
to remit it to the Insured

CANCELLATION
This contract may be cancelled at any time;

(3) by each of the Named Insureds giving mere woiten notice to the
Insurer. Cancellabion takes effect upon receipt of the notice by the
Insurer and the Insured shall therefore be entitied to a refund of the
excess of the premium actually paid over the premium earned for
the tme the confract has been in force, on the basis of the
Cancellaton Table heren,

(b)  within sixty (60) days afier its coming into force, by the Insurer gwing
wiitten nctice to each Named Insured. Cancellalion takes effect
fitteen (15) days following receipt of such notice by the Named
Insured at his last known address

At the expiry of such penod of sixty (60) days. the contract shall not
be cancelled by the Insurer except in the case of an aggravation of
risk which 1s likely to materially influence a reasonable insurer in the
decision to continue to insure, or when the premium has not been
paid The Insurer so wishing to cancel the contract shall notify each
Named Insured in wnting, cancellation takes effect thirty (30} days
following recetpt of such nolice by the Named Insured at his last
known address or, If the Described Automobile, with the exception of
a school bus, 1s an automobie contemplated in Title VIIL.1 of the
Highway Safety Code, fifteen (15) days after receipt of the nolice.

The Insurer shall refund the excess of the premium actually paid
over the eamed premium computed an a day o day basis

Whnere one or moare of the Named Insureds have been mandated to receive
or send the notices provided for under paragraph (a) or (b) above, notices
sent or received by them shall be deemed to have been sent or recewved by
all Named Insureds

In this Condition, the words premium actually paid mean the prermium
actually paid by the Insured to the Insurer or its agent, but do not include
any prermism or part thereof paid to the Insurer by an agent uniess actually
paid to the agent by the insured

NOTICE

Any notice to the Insurer may be sent by any recognized means of
communicathon to the Insurer or its authorized representative Notice may be
qwven to the Named Insured by letter parsonally delivered to him or by mail
addressed to him at his last known address
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EXTENSIONS OF COVERAGE - CIVICA SUPERIOR
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY POLICY

It 15 agreed that the following extensions of coverage are added to form 081 Oe,
- Commercial Genera! Liability Policy

1. AMENDMENT TO THE POLICY

Mental injury

It is agreed that (s insurance is extended to cover mental injury and
theretore, form 091 Oe 15 amended by substituting the expression “bodily
injury” by the expression “bodily injury or mental Injury”, except as
otherwise provided herein

For purposes of this endorsement, mental injury means shock, frnght
anguish and any other mental injury,

AMENDMENTS TO SECTION | - COVERAGES

COVERAGE A - BODILY iINJURY, MENTAL INJURY AND PROPERTY
DAMAGE LIABILITY

Tho following exclusions under tem 2. EXCLUSIONS of COVERAGE
A are amended as follows:

21 Expected or Intended Injury

It is agreed that this exclusion is deleted and replaced by the
fallowing

Bodily Injury, mental Injury or property damage expected or
intended from the standpoint of the Insured. This exclusion does not
apply to bodily Injury, mental injury or property damage resulting
from the use of reasonabie force to protect persons or property.

24 Employer's Liability

15 agreed that the last sub-paragraph of this exclusion s deleted
andg replaced by the foliowing

A claim made or an action brought by a Canadian resdent
employee, because of bodily injury sustained in Canada or while
he is temporanly out of the country, in the course of performing
dulies on your behalf and on whose behalf contnbutions are made
by or required 1o be made by you under the provisions of any
Canadian provincial or terntonal warker's compensation faw

25 Aircraft or Watercraft

It 15 agreed thal the last paragraph of this exclusion is deleted and
replaced by the following

This exclusian does not apply to
253 A watercral while ashore on premises you own or rent,

254 A watercraft you do not own that 1s less than eigh! metres
long and not being used to carry persons or propery for a
charge

255 A watercraft owned by the Insured that s less than eight
metres long and where the total maximum engine power
does not exceed 38 Kw (50 HP),

256 Bodily injury to an employee of the Insured on whose
behalf cantributions are made by or required to be made by
the insured under the provisions of any Canadian provinc:al
or terntonal workers' compensation law. if the bodily injury
results from an occurrence involving watercraft

26 Automobile

It 1s agreed that the second paragraph of this exclusion 1s deleted
and replaced by the following

This exclusion applies lo any motorized snow vehicle or its trailers,
except when being used by an Insured in his operations, and to any
vehicle while being used in any speed or demolition contest or in any
stunting activity or in practice or preparation for any such contest or
activity.

2 14 Professional Services

It 1s agreed that this exclusion is amended by adding the following
paragraph

Paragraphs 247 and 248 of the “professional services™
defintion do not apply where such services performed by an
archistect or an engineer In ther capacity as an employee of the
Named Insured are an inlegral part of your work or your product.
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2 15 Abuse
Itis agreed that this exclusion is deleted
COVERAGE C -~ MEDICAL PAYMENTS

It 1s agreed that Section 1 INSURING AGREEMENT 15 amended as
follows

1. The words “and medical equipment” are added to subparagraph 1 2 2
which now reads

122 Necessary medical, surgical, X-ray and dental services
including prosthetic devices and medical equipment, and
2. Sub-paragraph 1.2 4 is added to paragraph 1 2
12 4 Travel and babysiting expenses.
COVERAGE D ~ TENANTS' LEGAL LIABILITY
It 15 agreed that the coverage also applies 10 fixed structures an premises
rented or occupied by the Insured
COMMON EXCLUSIONS - POLLUTION

It1s agreed that paragraph 42 of Common Exclusion 4 POLLUTION s
deleted and replaced by the following

4.2. Any loss, cost of expense arising out of any claim or action for
compensatory damages because of testing for, monitoring.
Lleaning up, removing, containing, treating, deloxifying or
neutralizing, or in any way responding to, or assessing the eflects
of, poliutants unless such loss, cost or expense arises from an
occurrence covered under this policy.

SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS - COVERAGES A,Band D

It 1s agreed that paragraph 13 of tem 1 is deleted and replaced by the

following

13 All reasonable expenses you incur at our request to assist us in the

investigation of defense of the clam or action, including actual toss of

earmings because of time off from work

AMENDMENTS TO SECTION Il - WHO 1S AN INSURED

It1s agreed that the following paragraph 1 added to ltem 1

16 An assoocation, each member of the association is an Insured but
solely in respect of the kability ansing out of his actions as a member
and his participation in the actvihes of the association This
insurance shail only apply as excess coverage to the extent of any
amount not paid due {o the exhausuon of the personal General
Liabihity policy of a member. This msurance does not apply to loss
damage or injury to a member caused by another member of the
association

it 15 also agreed that the following paragraph is added to tem 2

28 Agents achng on behalf of the Insured but solely in respect of any
hability ansing out of the perfarmance of their duties on behaif of
the Insured

AMENOMENTS TO SECTION lif - LIMITS OF INSURANCE AND

DEDUCTIBLES

1t 1s agreed that Section IIl 1s amended as follows.
41 ltem 2 is deleted.
42 (ltem 4 1s amended as foliows

Subject to 3 above, the Each Occurrence Limit 1s the mast the
Insurer wili pay for the sum of

41 Compensatory damages under Coverage A and
4 2. Medical expenses under Coverage C,

because of all bodily Injury, mental injury and property damage
arising out of any one occurrence.

43 ltem$ is amended as follows

The Personal and Advertsing Injury Limit is the most we will pay
under Coverage B for the sum of all compensatory damages
because of all personal and advertising injury sustained by any
one person or organization
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5. AMENDMENTS TO SECTION IV - DEFINITIONS

§1 ltis agreed that the “coverage territory” defintion 7 1s deleted and
replaced by the following

Coverage territory means any part of the world provided the Insured s
responsibilty to pay compensatory damages s determined i an
action on the merts n Canada or the Unded Stales of Amenca
including their temitones and possessions) of in an oul-oh-court
settiement to wh ch the Insurer has agreed

52 Itis agreed that paragraphs 24 4 and 24 5 under the “professional
services™ definition are deleted It is also agreed that the word
“tonsonal” is deleted from paragraph 246 which now reads as
follows

246 Any cosmetic, body percing, massage, physiotherapy
chiropody, heanng ad, optical or optometrical services or
treatments.

ADDITIONAL COVERAGES

In the event a more specific coverage elsewhere In the policy applies to the risk insured by one of these extensions, only the specific coverage wiil apply.

GOODS IN CUSTOMER'S CARS

The Insurer agrees with the Insured to pay on behalf of the Insured all sums
which the Insured shall become legally obligated to pay for damage (including
burglary and theft) fo property of the Insured's customers whilst contained
within or upon automob les when such automobiles are accepted for servicing
or repair at the premises descnbed in the Declarations

There shall be deducted, from each claim hereunder, the sum of $50

LIABILITY COVERAGE - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PROGRAMS
1. INSURING AGREEMENT

Up 10 §2.000.000 for any one loss and for each policy period we will pay
those sums that the Insured becomes legally obligated to pay as
compensatory damages on account of any claim made against any
Insured because of a wrongful act n the administration of your
employee benefit programs, provided that the claim 1s first made dunng
the policy period within Canada s territones or possessions

A claim by a person or organization seeking compensatory damages will
be deemed to have been made when notice of such claim Is recewved and
recorded by any Insured or by us, whichever comes first.

The amount we will pay for compensatory d ges s mited as
descnbed heremnafter

2. EXCLUSIONS
This insurance does not apply to.
2.1. any claim based upon.
2.1.1. The failure of performance of contract by any insurer;

2.1.2. The Insured’s fall o comply with any law concering
workmen's compensation, unemployment insurance, social
security disa ity benefits or any simflar law;

2.1.3 Fallure of any nvestment plan {o perform as represented by
an Insured;

2.1.4. Advice given by an Insured to an employee to participate or
not to participate in any investment plan;

2.2, Claims made against the Insured for wrongful acts known to any
insured before the effective date of this insurance. If policy is
part of a series of consecutive renewals issued by us, then before
the effective date of the first policy issued by us,

3. EXTENDED REPORTING PERIOD

If this pohicy is cancelled or not renewed for any reason except non-
payment of the premium. we will provide an automatic extended repcrting
period of 60 days

A clam first made dunng the extended reporting perniod will be deemed o
have been made on the last day of the policy period provided that claim
occurred before the end of the policy period of this policy and that we are
notified not later than 60 days after the end of the policy period of this
policy

4. SPECIAL PROVISIONS
41  Limit of insurance

The hmit of insurance stated in the Declarations and the rules below
fix the most we will pay regardiess of the number of Insureds,
clayns made or suis brought, or persons or orgamzations making
claims or bnnging suits

411 The Aggregate Limt is the most we wil pay for all

compensatory damages with respect to all clams covered
by this Insurance and made dunng the policy period;
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412 Subjectio 1.1 above, the Each Loss Limit is the most we will
pay for all compensatory damages ansing out of any loss
Claims based on or arising out of the same act, interrelated
acts, of one or more senes of simifar acts of one or more
Insured shall be considered a single loss

42 Deductible

Our obligation to pay compensatory damages on your behalf
applies only to the amount of compensatory d. ges in excess of
the deductible amount stated in the Declarations

The terms of this insurance, including those with respect to our nght
and duty to defend any suit seeking those damages, and your dulies
in the event of an occurrence, apply irrespective of the applicalion of
the deductible amount

We may pay any part or all of the deduchble amount to effect
settlement of any claim or suit and, upon notfication of the action
taken, you shall promplly reimburse us for such part of the
deductible amount as has been paid by the Insurer

43 Defintions
Wherever used in this form
431 Administration means

4311 Gwing counsel o employees with respect to the
emplayee benefit programs;

4312 Interpreting the employee benefit programs;

4313 Handing of records in connecton with the
employee benefit programs;

4314 Effecting enrollment, termination cr cancellation of
employees under the employee benefit
programs;

provided all such acts are authorized by the named insured;

432 Employee benefit programs means group life insurance
group health insurance, pension plans investment plans
workmen's compensation, unempioyment insurance, socsal
secunty and disability benefits

433 Insured means

4331 It the named Insured is designated in the
Declarations as an indwidual. the person so
designated but only with respect to the conduct of a
business of which he is the sole propnetor;

4332 If the named Insured 15 designated in the
Declarations as a partnership or joint venture, the
partnership or joint venture so designated and any
partner or member thereof but only with respect to
his liability as such,

4333 If the named Insured 15 desgnated in the
Declarations as other than an ndividual
pantnership or joint venture, the organmization so
designated and any execulive officer, director or
stockholder thereof while acting within the scope of
his duties as such,

4334 Anyemployee of the named Insured while acting ¢
the administration of the employee benefit
programs.
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434 Loss means any even! which gives rise 1o tne of more
claims

435 Policy perlod means the perniod of one year following the
effective date of this policy or any anniversary thereof, or (f
the time between the effective date or any anniversary and
the termination of the policy is less that one year. such lesser
penod If the policy period 1s extended after issuance for an
additional period of less than 12 months the additional period
wil be deemed part of the last preceding penod for the
purpose of cetermining the Lumit of insurance

436 Wrongful act means any actual or alleged breach of duty.
neglect emor, misstatement, misleading statement, omission
or other act done or wrongfully attempted by an Insured or
any matter claimad, against an Insured, by reason of or in
connection with the administration of the employee benefit
programs.

EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY INSURANCE

INSURING AGREEMENT

11 Up to $10,000 for any one loss and for each policy pencd, we will
pay those sums that the Insured becomes legally obligated to pay as
compensatory damages further to a loss caused by a wrongful
act related to employment practices commuitted dunng the policy
penod. We will have the right and duty to defend the tnsured
against any action seeking those comp tory d
However, we will have no duty to defend the Insured agams( any
action seeking compensatory damages for a loss to which this
insurance does not apply

We may, at our discretion, investigate any loss and settle any claim
or action that may result But

111 The amount we will pay for compensatory damages is
hmited as descnbed in Section 2 LIMITS OF INSURANCE
AND DEDUCTIBLE; and

112 Our nghtand duty to defend ends when we have used up the

apphcable mit of insurance in the payment of judgments or
settlements

12 For the purpase of determining the applicability of this insurance, all
wrongful acts related to employment practices involving the same
Insured, regardiess of the number of type of wrongful acts, shall be
deemed to have occurred on the date of the first wrongful act.

LIMITS OF INSURANCE AND DEDUCTIBLE

21 The General Aggregate Limit 1s the most we will pay under this
insurance during the policy penod for the sum of compensatory
damages ansing out of any one loss to which this insurance apply

22 The Each Loss Limd is the most we will pay under this insurance for
the sum of compensatory damages ansing out of any one loss.

23 Our obligaton to pay compensatory damages on your behaif
apphes only to the amount of compensatory damages in excess of
any deductible amount stated in the Declarations

24 Claims or actions ansing out of interrelated circumstances shall be
considered a single loss.

EXCLUSIONS
This insurance shall not apply to:
3.1. losses, other than defense costs, which constitute

3.1.1. Benefits due, or to become due, or the equivalent value of

benefits except where such loss is based upon a claim

or action or actual or alieged wrongful dismissal, discharge
ortemni ation of employment;

3.1.2. Salary, wages, benefits or any other cosl or expense you
shafl ncur or be required 1o pay as economic refief if the
Nemed Insu  Is ordered, pursuant to a judgment or final
adjudication, but falls to minstale the claimant as an
employes;

3.1.3. The costs of compliance with or the satisfaction or remedy of
an riaking, a direction, an order, a violation, a
determination or a certificate negotiated, issued, made or
committed v er the Employment Equity Act of Canada, or
any costs with any accommodation or affirmative
action programme required by, pursuant to or ordered under
the Canadian Human Rights Act; or

3.1.4. The costs of compliance with any order for or grant of or
agreement to provide injunctive or non-pecuniary relief,
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32 Ciaims or actions arising out of any violation of an obligation
imposed by any act or reguialion related to pay equity, workers’
compensaton, Industrial accidents and occupational disease,
occupstional hea  and safety, employment insurance, welfare and
social  are, social security or oid age security, retiremant benefils
orpe pian ts, disability benefits, However, this exclusion
shall not apply to any claim or action:

3.2.1. For actual or alleged discrimination or employment-related, or
3.2.2. Arsing out of any actual or alleged retaliatory treatment

aga nst the claimant by you on account of the claimant's
exercise of rights pursuant to any such law,

3.3, Claims or actions asising out of any arrangement or plan related to
the value of the stock, shares or securily of the Insured including any
stock purchase, stock-based awards, stock option plans, phantom
stocK, stock appreciation rights or any stock-based compensation
plan;

3.4. Claims or actions arising out of any act commitied by or at the
direction of an Insured with the Intent of contravening any law or
any governmental or administrative rider or regulation,

3.5. Claims of actlons arising out of the assumption of hability by you in
an oral written ¢o but s exclusion does not apply to
i " that would have in the absence of the contract;

3.8, Claims or actions for bodily injury (except mental anguish and
emotional distress), sickness, disease or death of any person or
damage to or destruction of any tangible property including loss of
use thereof;

3.7. Claims or actions based upon, arising out of any lock-out, strike,
picke line, replacement workers, aclual or alleged unfair practices or
oth similar actions resulting from labour disputes or labour
negoliations;

3.8. Claimsora ons arising out of:

3.8.1. Your insolvency; or
3.8.2. The closure of a business operation or location by you; or

3.8.3. Any re-organization of employees which results, within any
sixty-day period, in ation of the employment of 25%
or maore of your total workforce;

3.9. Claims made or actions brought by relatives of an employee or by
members of the household of an employee;

COVERAGE TERRITORY

This policy shall only cover claims made or actions brought n Canada in
respect of wrongful acts committed 1n Canada and based on Canadian
law

OTHER INSURANCE

Notwithstanding what 1s provided for in Form 240 0 - Genera! Conditions
if the Insured has other valid insurance against compensatory damages
covered by this poiicy, the palicy that applies most specifically to the clam
or the action shall be pnmary and the other insurance shall be excess
DEFINITIONS

Whenever used in this Form

61 Action means a civil proceeding in which damages because of
employment practices to which this insurance applies are aileged
Action includes an arbitration proceeding to which you must submit
or does submit with our consent

62 Benefits means perquisues fnnge benefits payments in connection
with an employee benefit plan and any other payment, other than
salary or wages, {0 or for the benefit of an employee ansmg out of
the employment relationship

63 Employee means an indwidual who was, now is or shall be
employed by you

64 Employee benefit plan means any retrement, pension
supplemental pension, savings, retrement saving profit shanng
deferred compensation, change of control insurance, medical
hospital dental, vision care, drug sick leave, short term or long term
disability, salary continuation vacation pay or othef employee
benefit, plan, program, amangemeni, policy or praclice whether
written or oral, formal or informal, funded or unfunded, registered or
unregistered that is mainlained or otherwise contributed to or
required to be contributed to for the benefit of an employee.

65 Employment practices means
Wrongful dismissal, discharge or termination of employment
Breach of any oral or wnlten employment contract
Violatian of any law concernung discnmination 1n employment
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66

67

68

All other terms and conditions of the policy remain unchanged.

11-12

Employment-related harassment, including sexual harassment
or other harassment in the workplace,
Wrongful deprivation of employment or promotion,

- Wrongful disciphine,
Employment-related invasion of privacy

- Employment-related defamation,

- Employment-related wrongfu! infiction of emotional distress

- Employment-related misrepresentation

Insolvency means

- The financial position of the Insured as a deblor as that term (s
cefined and used vathin the provisions of the Bankrupticy and
insolvency Act, RS (1985), c. B-3 and. without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, shall occur when any receiver,
conservator, liquidatar, trustee, sequestrator, court or similar
provincial or federal official or a creditor takes control of.
supervises, manages o liquidates the insured,

- A reorganization proceeding of the (Insured under the
Compames’ Creditors Arrangement Act, R S (1985). ¢ C-38

Loss means compensatory damages and defense costs which
you become legally obligated to pay on account of any claims made
or actions brought against you for a3 wrongful act.

Wrongful act means any negligent act, error, omission. neghgence,
breach of duty or misleading statement related lo employment
practices actually or allegedly committed or commenced by you

098 9e Version

ELEVATOR COLLISION
1.

INSURING AGREEMENT

The Insurer will pay to the Insured for damages caused to any elevator or
{o property insured carmed thereon caused by an accidenta! collision of
the elevator with another object

LIMIT OF LIABILITY
The maximum amount we will pay for compensatory damages 1s limited to

$50,000 for each coliision and subject to the actual cash value of the
property at the iime any damage occurs

EXCLUSIONS

This insurance does not apply to:

3.1. Loss of use in respect of property owned by the Insured;

3.2. Property damage resulting direclly or indirectly from the breaking,
buming out or disrupting of any electrical machine not located within
the elavator;

3.3. Property damage by fire, however caused.

DEFINITIONS

41 Elevator means

411 Any hoisting or lowering device to connect floors or landings,
whether or not in service, and all appliances thereot including
any car, platform, shafi, hoistway. stairway, runway power
equipment and machinery, but shall not include

4111 Any beanng platform not exceeding mine square
feet used exclustvely for carrying property
Hod or matenal hoists used in connection with
alterations, construction or demolition cperations,
4113 Inclined conveyers used t_axclusively for carrying
property
412 Any howst used for raising or lowering automobites for
lubncating and servicing
42 Property insured means

421 Any elevator owned, rented, occupied or used by the Named
Insured, or in his care, custody of control,

422 Property carned on an elevator, other than any hydraulc or
mechanical hoist used for raising or lowenng automabiles for
lubncating or servicing, being owned, leased or used by or In
the care, custody or control of the Named Insured

4112
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EARTHQUAKE SHOCK ENDORSEMENT

Words and phrases that appear n bold type have special meaning as defined in section 5 Defintions Defintions of centain addiwonal words are found in the General Corditions
{form 240 0)

This endorsement apphes separately 10 each location for which Earthquake Shock is specified on the Declarakions Page

1.

INSURED PERIL

This insurance is extended {0 include earthquake.

DEDUCTIBLE

The Insurer is liabie for the amount by which the loss or damage caused by

earthquake exceeds the amount of the deductible specified on the
Declarations Page for this endorsement in any earthquake accurrence.

If a percentage deductible is specified the amount of the deductible shall be that
percentage of {he amount of insurance for each item separately as specified on
the Declarations Page

This deductible clause supersedes the provisions of any other deductible
clause stated elsewhere in the palicy

EXCLUSIONS
This endorsement does nol cover loss or damage caused directly or

indirectly by any. of the following perils whether or not caused by or
attributable {o earthquake:

3.1. fire, explosion, or smoke;
3.2. leakage from fire protective aquipment;
3.3, theft, or vandalism and malicious acts;

3.4. fiood, including surface water, waves, lides, tidal waves, tsunamis, or
the breaking out or overflow of any natural or artificial body of water,
waterbome objects or ice.

4. EXTENSION OF COVERAGE

The Insurer shall be hiable for loss or damage to the insured property caused
by wind, hail rain or snow entering a building through an opening in the
roof or walls directly resulting from an earthquake.

DEFINITIONS

51 Earthquake: includes snowslide, landshide, or other earth movements
occurning concurrently with and directly resuiting from an earthquake
shock

52 Earthquake occurrence: means all earthquake shocks which cccur
within 168 consecutive hours, commencing dunng the policy perniod on
ot after the effective dale of this endorsement The exptration of this
policy will not reduce the 168 hour period

53 Surface water; means waler or nalural precipitation temporaniy
diffused over the surface of the ground

All other terms and conditions of the policy to which this endorsement applies remain unchanged.

£7-10
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FLOOD INSURANCE

Subject to the imit of hiabiity stated in the Declarations. this insurance is flood shall constitute a single claim hereunder, provided that more than one
hereby extended 1o include loss or damage caused directly by the penl of flaod flood occuring within any penod of 168 consecutive hours dunng the tarm
subject to the foliowing conditions of this policy shall be deemed a single fiood within the meaning hereof
1. FLOOD 2. DEDUCTIBLE
For the purpose of this coverage, flood shall mean the nsing of, the The Insurer Is liable for the amount by wich the loss or damage caused by
breaking out or the overflow of any body of water whether natural or man- flood exceeds the sum stated in the Declarations in any one cccurrence

made ang includes waves, tdes and tida! waves Each loss caused by

All other terms and conditions of the policy remain unchanged.

10-04 159 1e Version 1



Sewers
Sumps,
Septc tanks,
Drains

The Luildings and contents are also insured against direct loss or damage 2.
caused by backing up or escape of water from-

Faor a imit not exceeding the amount stated in the Declarations for thus coverage

All other terms and conditions of the policy remain unchanged.

08-12
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SEWER BACKING UP COVERAGE

DEDUCTIBLE

The Insurer is liable for the amount by wich the loss of damage caused by sevier
backing up exceeds the sum stated in the Declarations in any one occurence

EXCLUSIONS
We do not insure loss or damage:
Caused by continuous or repeated seepage or leakage,;

Caused by backing up or escape of water from a sewer if said backing up
or escape results from the rising of, breaking out or overfiow of any body
of water;

Occuring whife the buildings are under construction or vacant, even if we
have given permission for construction or vacancy



COMMON EXCLUSIONS
APPLICABLE TO ALL COVERAGES

If the exclusions contained in this form are also found elsewhere in this policy, the latter take precedence.

DATA PROBLEM

1. EXCLUSIONS 3. BASIS OF SETTLEMENT

1.1. This policy does not insure data;

1.2. This policy does not insure loss or damage caused directly or
Indirectly by a data problem, notably the business interruption. This
exclusion (1.2) does not apply to loss or damage caused directly by
resuitant re, explosion, smoke or feakage from fire protective
equ pment, unless otherwise excluded elsewhere in this policy.

LIMITATION

For Bustiness Interruption coverages, with respect to loss resulting from
damage to or destruction of media for, or programming records pertaining
to. electronic data processing or electronically controlled equipment
including data thereon, by the penls insured against, the length of time for
which the Insurer shali be hiable hereunder shall not exceed 30 consecutive
calendar days or the length of ime that would be required to rebuild repair
or replace such other property herein specified as has been damaged or
destroyed, whichever in the greater fength of time

The kabity of the Insurer for foss or damage to media data é!orage
devices, and programme devices for electronic and electro-mechanical
data processing or for electronically controlied equipment except in
presence of a specific coverage, shall not exceed the cost of reproducing
such media, data storage devices. and programme devices from
duphicates or from originals of the previous generation of the media, but no
hability 15 assumed hereunder for the cost of gathenng or assembling
information or data for such reproduction

DEFINITIONS

Data means representations of tnformation or concepts, In any torm

Data Problem means.

erasure, destruction, corruption, misappropriation, misinterpretation of
data;

error in crealing, amending. entering, deleting or using data; or
inability 1o receive, transmit or use data.

FUNGI AND SPORES

EXCLUSIONS
This policy does not insure:

1.1, loss or damage conslisting of or caused directly or indirectly, in whole
or in part, by any fungi or spores. This exclusion does riot apply’

111 if the fungt or spores are directly caused by a peril not

2. DEFINITIONS

Fungi includes, but 1s not limited t0. any form or type of mould yeast
mushroom or mildew whether or nat allergenic, pathogenic or toxigenic
and any substance, vapour or gas produced by. emitted from or ansing out
of any fungl or spores or resullant mycotoxins, allergens, or pathogens

otherwise 3 Spores includes, but is not limited to, one or mere reproductive partictes or
excluded by this policy; of microscopic fragments produced by. emitted from or ansing out of any

1.1.2. to boss or damage caused directly by a resultant peril not fungi.

otherwise excluded by this policy:

1.2. the cost or expense for any testing, monitoring, evaluating or

‘assessing of fungl or spores,

TERRORISM

EXCLUSION 2. DEFINITION

This policy does not insure:

logs or damage caused directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by
terrorism by any activity or decision of a govemment agency or other
entity to prevent, respond to or terminate terrorism. This exclusion applies
whether or not there are or more other causes or events (whether
covered or not) that contribute concumently or in any sequence to the
occasioning of the loss or damage If any portion of this exclusion is found
to be invalid, unenforceable or contrary to statute, the remainder shall
remain in full force and effect.

All other terms and conditions of the policy remain unchanged.

003 1e Version &

Terrorism means an ideologically motivated unlawful act or acts including
but not hmited 1o the use of viclence or {orce or threat of violence or force
committed by or on behalf of any group(s). organization(s) or
government(s) for the purpose of influencing any government andior
instdling fear in the public ar a section of the public



DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY ENDORSEMENT
EXTENSION OF TERMINATION OR EXPIRY DATE

The effective date of terrmination of this policy by the Insurer or the expiry date of this pohicy 1s extended, subject o the conditions and definitions set out below, as follows
when an emergency is declarad by a Canadian public authority designated by statute for the purpose of issuing such an order

1.

Tre emergency must have a direct effect or impact on

11 the Insured, the insured sde or insured property located in the
declared emergency area, or

12 the operations of the Insurer or s agent/broker located in the
declared emergency area

Any time himitation described in the Temmination condition of {hus policy,

with respect to termination of this policy by the Insurer, will not continue to

run until the emergency is terrinated plus the lesser of

21 30days, or

22 the number of days equal to the total tme the emergency order was
in effect

Cifthis policy is due to expire dunng an emergency, it will continue in force

until the emergency 15 terminated plus the lesser of
31 30days, or .

32 the number of days equal to the total time the emergency order was
in effect

In no event shall the total term of this extension exceed 120 consecutive days

The Insured agrees to pay the pro rata premium earned for the additional
tme the Insurer remains on risk as a result of the above

DEFINITION

Emergency means the first statutory declaration of an emergency

11

12

with respect to a situation or an impending situation that censtitutes a
danger of major proportions that could result in serious harm to persons
or substantial damage to properly and that 1s caused by the forces of
nature, a8 disease or other health nsk, an accident or an act whether
intentional or othenwise, of

as provided for by the relevant governing legislation if diferent from
11 above

but does not include any subsequent statulory declaration(s} that may be
1ssued relating to the same event

All other terms and conditions of the policy to which this endorsement applies remain unchanged.

07-10
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DIFFERENCE IN COVERAGES

. Except as provided in paragraph 2. and notwithstanding any contrary provision in the renewal documents, the coverage granted
by this policy shall not be more restrictive than the coverage in force at the expiration of the preceding policy period.

2. This coverage does not apply to amendments made 1o this policy:
- at the request! of the Insured;
- required by law;
-  for which specific notice has been given to the Insured.

All other terms and conditions of the policy remain unchanged.

10-11 780 2e Version 1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Directors of
McGill Law Students' Assaciation

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of McGill Law Students' Association, which comprise the
balance sheet as at April 30, 2013, and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
audit opinion.

Place du Canada
1010, rue De La Gauchetidre Ouest, 2¢ étage
Montréal QC Canada H3B 251

membre de /member of T 514.875.2865 « F 514.866.0247
www.leadingedgealliance.com 1.888.355.6697

www.flmontreal.com



Basis for Qualified Opinion

In common with many not-for-profit organizations, the McGill Law Students' Association derives cash from program
revenues, the completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, our verification of
these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the McGill Law Students' Association and we
were not able to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to program revenues, excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses, assets and net asset balances and cash flows for the year ended April 30, 2013 and 2012,
assets as at April 30, 2013 and 2012, and net asset balances as at May | and April 30 for both the 2013 and 2012 years.

Our audit opinion on the financial statements for the year ended April 30, 2012 was modified accordingly because of
the possible effects of this limitation in scope.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of McGill Law Students' Association as

at April 30, 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Comparative Information

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements which describes that McGill
Law Students' Assaciation adopted Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations on May 1, 2012 with
a transition date of May I, 201 1. These standards were applied retrospectively by management to the comparative
information in these financial statements, including the balance sheets as at April 30, 2012 and May 1, 2011, and the
statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year ended April 30, 2012 and related
disclosures. We were not engaged to report on the restated comparative information, and as such, it is unaudited.

(o Landad LU

Montreal, September 8, 2013

' CPA auditor, CA, public accountancy permit No. Al 18902



MCGILL LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT APRIL 30, 2013
Asat May 1,
2013 2012 2011
$ $ $
ASSETS
Current
Cash 98,084 82,144 19,433
Cash held in trust (Note 5) 12,000 - -
Term deposits (Note 4) 60,000 80,000 91,089
Accounts receivable 44,152 28,263 62,865
Prepaid expenses 2,227 2,227 2,227
Current portion of print credit
contribution receivable (Note 5) 12,000 12,000 12,000
225,463 204,634 187,614
Print credit contribution receivable (Note 5) 24,000 36,000 48,000
249,463 240,634 235,614
LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
(Note 6) 51,048 24,848 33,632
Current portion of deferred print credit
contribution (Note 7) 12,000 12,000 12,000
63,048 36,848 45,632
Deferred print credit contribution (Note 7) 24,000 36,000 48,000
87,048 72,848 93,632
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 162,415 167,786 141,982
249,463 240,634 235,614
On behalf of the Board,

_(Q/g‘_,\(/ ( Director T’(C,CS DEN v
%ﬁ/ Director \/ ? t\’\\kﬂ e

)




MCGILL LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

2013 2012
$ $
Revenues
Student fees 66,527 62,568
Print credits contribution (Note 7) 12,000 12,000
Investment income 1,322 283
79,849 74,851
Programs
Sponsorship 91,131 77,404
Revenues (Note 8) 85,941 70,906
Expenses (Note 8) (153,661) (127,059)
23,411 21,251
Net revenues before expenses 103,260 96,102
Expenses
Administrative 27,927 7,028
Clubs (Note 9) 50,469 28,926
Insurance 2,227 2,227
Office and general 5,637 6,499
Student fees 22,371 25,618
108,631 70,298
Excess {deficiency) of revenue over expenses (5,371) 25,804




MCGILL LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

2013 2012

$ $

Balance, beginning of year 167,786 141,982
Deficiency of revenues over expenses (5,371) 25,804

Balance, end of year 162,415 167,786




MCGILL LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

2013 2012
$ $
Operating activities
Excess (deflciency) of revenue over expenses (5.371) 25,804
Net change in non-cash working capital items i,311 25,818
(4,060) 51,622
Investing activities
Proceeds from disposition of term deposits 80,000 91,089
Acquisition of term deposits (60,000) (80,000)
20,000 11,089
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 15,940 62,711
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 82,144 19,433
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 98,084 82,144

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash.



MCGILL LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

1.  Statutes of incorporation and nature of activities

The McGill Law Students' Association is a student-run not-for-profit organization, incorporated under
Part Hl of Quebec Companies' Act. The Association's objective is to promote and represent the welfare
and interests of the students of the faculty of Law at McGill University by providing activities and services
to enhance the educational, cultural, environmental and social conditions of its members.

2.  Impact of the change in the basis of accounting

The Association has elected to apply the standards in Part Ill of the CICA Handbook - Accounting,
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

These financial statements are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, hereafter referred to as "ASNFPO",

The financial statements for the year ended April 30, 2013 were prepared in accordance with the
accounting principles described and the provisions set out in Section 1501, First-time Adoption by not-

for-profit organizations, of CICA Handbook - Accounting for first-time adopters of this basis of
accounting.

The adoption of this new basis of accounting had no impact on the excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenses of the Association for the year ending April 30, 2012, nor the fund balances at the date of
transition being May |, 2011.

3.  Significant accounting policies

The Association has elected to apply Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations in
Part Ill of the CICA Accounting Handbook,

Financial instruments

Measurement of financial instruments

The Association initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value, except for certain
non-arm's length transactions.

The Association subsequently measures all its financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized cost.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash, cash held in trust, term deposits and accounts
receivable.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and accrued liabilities.



MCGILL LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

-3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

McGill Law Students' Association follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.

Restricted print credit contributions are recognized as income in the period where the related expenses
are incurred.

Program revenues are recognized as revenue in the period that the program occurred.

Sponsorship revenue is recognized by the Association when received or when collection is reasonably
assured.

Student fees are collected from students by McGill University and are recognized as revenues by the
Association when the funds are collected by the University.

Investment income is recorded as revenue in the period in which it is earned.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Association's policy is to disclose bank balances under cash and cash equivalents.

Use of estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. These

estimates are reviewed periodically and adjustments are made to income as appropriate in the year they
become known.

Contributed services

Volunteers contribute many hours per year to the Association to ensure service delivery. Because of the

difficulty of determining the fair value of contributed services, they are not recognized in the financial
statements.

The Association receives free rental of office space from McGill University, however, the value of this
rent is difficult to estimate, and is therefore not included in the financial statements.

4. Term deposits

Consists of a $30,000 term deposit bearing interest at 0.95% and maturing September 19, 2013 and a
$30,000 term deposit bearing interest at 1.15% and maturing September 21, 201 5.



MCGILL LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

5. Print credit contribution receivable

The print credit contribution receivable represents restricted contributions to cover the Association's
fixed operating costs and will be received from the McGill Faculty of Law from their Print Credit Fund.
The amount totals $60,000 and an annual disbursement of $12,000 will be made by the McGill Faculty of

Law over the next five years beginning on July |, 201 1.

During the year, the Association requested that the current year disbursement of $12,000 not be
transferred by the McGill Faculty of Law and have the funds held in trust. The Association has the right to
demand the disbursement of the funds held in trust from the McGill Faculty of Law.

2013 2012
$ $
Print credit contribution receivable 36,000 48,000
Less: Current portion of print credit contribution receivable {12,000) (12,000)
24,000 36,000
6.  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
2013 2012
$ $
Trade and accrued liabilities 47,071 20,897
Sales taxes 3,977 3,951
51,048 24,848
7. Deferred print credit contribution
2013 2012
$ $
Beginning balance 48,000 60,000
Amount recognized as income during the year (12,000) (12,000)
36,000 48,000
Less: Current portion of deferred contribution 12,000 12,000
Endins balance 24,000 36,000




MCGILL LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APRIL 30, 2013
8. Programs

Revenues Expenses 2013 Net 2012 Net

$ $ $ $
Academics - 1,040 (1,040) (760)
Agenda - 3,088 (3,088) (4,841)
Class presidents 1,906 4,164 (2,258) (1,445)
Clothing sales 5,490 8,482 (2,992) (3,022)
Coffee house 7,150 19,285 (12,135) (13,803)
Committees and administration - 1Li172 (11,172) (5.175)
Dean's discretionary fund 8,290 1,545 {3,255) 4,215
Fashion show - - - (2,500)
Grad ball 1,485 4,379 (2,894) 978
Law games 24,224 27,828 (3,604) (285)
Malpractice cup 430 737 (307) 79
Orientation 20,617 30,561 (9,944) (3,174)
Other internal 1,155 8,198 (7,043) (5.980)
Other programs 1,268 70 1,198 (2,228)
Public relations - 5,587 (5,587) (3,453)
Quid Novi 6,600 5.619 98l (7,087)
Ski trip 757 4,038 (3,281) (946)
Skit night 5,769 6,952 (1,183) (4.291)

Website . 800 - 800 -

Welcome back party - 916 (916) (2,435)
85,941 153,661 (67,720) (56,153)




MCGILL LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APRIL 30, 2013
9. Clubs

2013 2012
$ $
Aboriginal Law Students' Association 1,275 629
Asia Pacific Law Association 901 1,318
Black Law 2,857 1,383
Criminal Law 2,710 437
Environmental Law McGill 930 1,727
Human Rights Working Croup 9,411 2,533

IPIT 1,167 -
Journal for Sustainable Development Law & Policy 1,275 1,810

MAM 1,656 -
McGill Arbitration Society 3,685 896

McGill Business Law Association 1,058 -
McGill International Foosball Association 1,820 1,232
McGill International Law Society 2,327 1,242
McGill UN Model 3,921 4,752
Outlaw 1,532 118
Radical Law 3,415 38
Other Clubs 10,529 10,811
50,469 28,926

10. Financial instruments
Risks and concentration

The Association is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments, without being exposed to
concentrations of risk. The following analysis provides a measure of the Association's risk exposure at the
balance sheet date of April 30, 2013.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. The Association's main credit risks relate to its trade accounts
receivables. The Association provides credit to its clients in the normal course of its operations.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk. The Association is mainly exposed to interest rate risk.



MCGILL LAW STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

10. Financial instruments (continued)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Association is exposed to interest rate risk on its fixed
interest rate term deposits which subject it to a fair value risk.

11. Comparative figures

Certain figures for 2012 have been reclassified to make their presentation identical to that adopted in
2013,



APPENDIX D

The Association’s approved logo and trademark.

If other trademarks or logos are developed and/or registered, their use and inclusion here is subject to the
prior express approval of the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning).

- _____________________________________________ |
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APPENDIX E

List of On-Campus and of Off-Campus Locations for Distribution of Publications
in accordance with Article 13 of this Agreement

1. List of On-Campus Locations

The Publication, Quid Novi, the Agenda and the Bottin shall be distributed in specified
locations on the Montreal campus in the following buildings:

The Quid Novi:- Chancellor Day Hall Basement and Ground floor
The Agenda and Bottin:- Chancellor Day Hall Basement

2. List of Off-Campus Locations

The Publication will not be distributed off-campus.
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APPENDIX F

University space and/or facilities granted to the Association
in accordance with Article 14 and Article 15
1.  Inaccordance with Article 14
No space has been granted to the Association for revenue-generating activities.
As of June 1, 2003, the Association ceased operation of the LSA bookstore; consequently no space is
designated to the Associations pursuant to Article 14 of this Agreement.
2.  In accordance with Article 15
In accordance with article 15.1, the University grants the Association the following rooms at no charge. The
rooms shall constitute an office from which to conduct its activities and shall constitute the Association's
principal premises.
Room 002, 002A Chancellor Day Hall

In accordance with article 15.2, the University further grants to the Association the use of the following
University space and/or facilities at no charge for the term of this Agreement and for the stated purpose:

Room 003, 004, 005, 005A Chancellor Day Hall

3.  Conditions Governing the Use of University space:

- The Association must receive the University's prior written approval from the Deputy Provost
(Student Life and Learning) for changes in the use of University space.

- The Association shall conform to i) all federal and provincial laws and regulations ii) municipal
rules and regulations, iii) its charter documents, by-laws and constitution, and iv) all applicable
University regulations and policies which apply to the use of the buildings.

- The Association shall undertake no alternation to the premises without the express consent of the
university and shall affix no new signs.

- All costs, taxes and fees associated with the use of the space and/or facilities by the Association
that may become due is the responsibility of the Association.

_______________________________________ ]
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APPENDIX G

List of Association Groups
in accordance with Article 6 of this Agreement

PART 1: RECITALS

A. Definitions:

All groups, clubs, services, activities of the Association granted club or service status by the Association
shall be referred to collectively herein as “Groups”

B. The Association confirms:

1. that the list below represents the full list of the Association Groups as of June 1,
2013;

ii. that names appearing in the first column entitled “Names” are the Names approved
by the Association;

1il. that the Description of Purpose is the purpose approved by the Association for the
stated Group; and

iv. that the dates appearing in the column entitled Year Approved are the dates of the

creation of the Groups by the Association.

C. The Association acknowledges and accepts that going forward (effective June 1, 2013) all new Groups

shall adopt one of the following Approved Forms for Group Names, subject to the category of
activity:

Category I:  For Groups other than those affiliated or affiliating with external organizations
° LSA or McGill (Law) Students [insert e.g. Investment Club), or

LSA or McGill [insert e.g. Pakistani] Students’ Association, or

[insert e.g. Pakistani] Students’ Society, or

LSA [insert], or

[insert e.g. Korean Martial Arts Club} — LSA

Category II:  For Groups affiliated or affiliating with an external organization including
political parties

McGill (Law) Students for [e.g. Make a Wish], or

McGill (Law) Students Supporting [e.g. Make a Wish}, or

McGill Students’ Chapter of [e.g. Make a Wish, or

LSA - [e.g. Make a Wish, Cystic Fibrosis etc.] or

[e.g. Make a Wish, Cystic Fibrosis etc.] - LSA
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Category I  For Sports Clubs or Teams
The Department of Athletics and Recreations shall have exclusive use of the name
"McGill” in relation to any sport or team, except where permission is granted in writing
by the Deputy Provost (Student Life and Learning).

Category IV: For Association Services and Media

° McGill (Law) Students [insert e.g. Marketing Club}, or
° LSA [insert], or
° [insert] — LSA

D. The Association shall ensure that all Clubs, whether or not permission to use the McGill name in their names
has been granted, are made aware of the conditions for the use of the McGill name, word mark, crest and
shield, as outlined in Section 6 and Appendix G and the Association correct any misuse within two (2)
weeks from the Association becoming made aware of the misuse.

Examples of misuse include; but are not limited to: a Club incorporating the McGill name in its name
without permission, incorporating the McGill word mark, crest or shield in its name, logo or website, or on
the club’s sites, materials, or publications.

E. Only one email address for each club may be requested and shall take the form:
[club initials].Isa@mail.mcgill.ca

F. Any changes to the list (including any additions or deletions), to the name of a club, or to its activity shall
be brought to the University's attention and shall be confirmed by the Deputy Provost( Student Life and

Learning). McGill reserves the right to withdraw its permission for any club at any time and for whatever
reason.
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PART II: GROUPS

Category I:

Groups other than those affiliated or affiliating with external organizations

NAME

DATE

DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY

Aboriginal Law Association of
McGill (ALAM)

2009

The Aboriginal Law Association of McGill University,
whose membership includes both native and non-native law
students, seeks to raise awareness of aboriginal issues within
the student population and among the public at large. The
association also seeks to provide a support network for First
Nations, Inuit and Metis students attending the Faculty of
Law.

Asia Pacific Law Association of
McGill

2003

The Asia Pacific Law Association is a club having been
started in 2003 by people who share a common interest in
the Asia-Pacific region and the law.

Arab Law Students Association of
McGill ALSA

2009

The Arab Law Students' Association is a new club founded
in January 2006. We aim to create a space for those at the
faculty who share an interest in the Arab world. We will
work towards promoting consciousness and understanding
about Arab cultural, political and legal issues. We also aim
to provide a link between the faculty and the Arab
communities both in Canada and abroad.

Black Law Students Association of
McGill

2009

The BLSAM is a member group of the Black Law Student’s
Association of Canada (BLSAC). With chapters throughout
Canada and the U.S., the Black Law Students’ Association
is the largest student-run network in North America. The
main goal of the McGill Chapter is to encourage and
support Black law students in the pursuit of academic
excellence. We also work to promote cultural enlightenment
and awareness about the different issues affecting the Black
community. Our recent activities include: holding an area
practice dinner with prominent local Black attorneys and
volunteering at the Black Youth in Action’s Drop-in Clinic.
This coming year we plan on working with the LSA’s
Education and Equity Working Group, expanding our
network of contacts by meeting with students at other
Montreal law faculties and attending the BLSAC National
Conference.

Environmental Law McGill

1989

Founded in 1989, Environmental Law McGill (ELM) is
made up of students with an interest in all aspects of
environmental law and environmental awareness. ELM is a
gathering point for big and little projects that impact the
Faculty and often the wider community:.

Innocence McGill

2009

Innocence McGill is a student-led endeavor centered at the




Faculty of Law of McGill university. It is run under the
supervision of faculty members and prominent criminal
lawyers, and is dedicated to researching and investigating
claims of wrongful conviction in the province of Quebec

Legale McGill Outlaw 2009 OutLaw is the Faculty of Law's queer students group. The
students, ranging from first year to graduate programs,
organize and participate in a number of events throughout
the year. On the social front, it has sponsored films at the
Faculty of Law and held a number of parties or outings in
members' homes and at various locations in the Village. As
part of its efforts to promote continued awareness of queer
students in the Faculty of Law, LEGALE-OutLaw members
write regularly in the Faculty’s internal publications and
newsletters. It is also working with Admissions and the
Administration to ensure that prospective and current queer
students feel welcomed.

McGill Business Law Association 2009 The McGill Business Law Association (MBLA) is
committed to increasing the profile of business law at
McGill. We work to expose law students to opportunities to
develop their business law interests. In particular, the
MBLA organizes educational sessions at members of the
business law community. MBLA events enable students to
learn about relevant areas of law directly from practitioners.
Past events have focused on discussions on mergers and
acquisitions, intellectual property, bankruptcy and
insolvency, competition law, real estate, and securities.

McGill International Law Society 2009 The McGill International Law Society (MILS) aims to
provide a forum for the exchange of ideas of students,
leading practitioners, and scholars of international law. Its
stated purpose is. three-fold: first, to promote the study and
analysis of international law in its various domains (public
and private); second, to facilitate dialogue and debate on
matters of international law; and third, to promote and
advertise the different professional and educational
opportunities that international law affords.

McGill Law Women's Caucus 2009 The Women's Caucus seeks to promote the interests of
women within the legal community. Events sponsored by
the Women's Caucus focus on both women in the legal
profession and on legal issues that affect the interests and
status of women, both locally and internationally. Meetings
and outings are held on a regular basis throughout the
school year.

McGill Radical Law Community 2001 The McGill Radical Law Community exists since 2001. Tt
was originally initiated to support Libertas, a Montreal area
legal collective. Today, members continue to support social
movements and are involved in a variety of projects on and
off campus. We resist liberal legal discourse and challenge
accepted norms in legal theory and practice in so far as they
maintain and re-create relationships of domination and
subordination in society. We embrace modes of social
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organization based on direct and participatory democracy
that provide the means for self-determination and grassroots
empowerment.

McGill Entertainment and Sports
Law Association

2009

The mission of MESLA is to provide a forum for students
exploring career opportunities in entertainment and sports
law. This objective is pursued in two ways. First, MESLA
seeks to cultivate important connections with practitioners
and industry leaders. Second, it seeks to investigate
important developments in the law of music, motion picture,
TV and radio, sports and various intellectual-property-based
fields. By cultivating the viewpoint that entertainment and
sports law comprises a broad array of legal issues, our
members hold a broad array of diverse interests. Such
interests result in a comprehensive approach to
entertainment and sports law. MESLA facilitates a variety of
professional, academic and recreational activities including:
* Guest speaker forums featuring practitioners, industry
representatives, academics, public policy experts and
legislators * Networking events, including area-practice
dinners and alumni outreach program

McGill Muslim Law Students
Association ’

2008

The MLSA provides a forum in which law students can
discuss Islamic issues and also promote Islamic issues to the
greater student body here at the faculty.

McGill Law Students Arbitration
Society

2010

The McGill Arbitration Society is a student organization at
the McGill Faculty of Law. The Society aims at promoting
an interest in, and a better understanding of, alternative
dispute resolution mechanisms, including arbitration and
mediation, that are gaining popularity in the private and
public sectors around the world. Please contact us to find
out how you can get involved.

Club de botanique

2012

Le Club de Botanique vise a faire fleurir la vie festive estudiantine
en regroupant des épicuriens de divers horizons. C’est en cultivant
les jardins de notre faculté que tous sont invités a s’évader du
coquillage qui nous cloitre au haut de la colline mcgilloise. Prenant
exemple sur un de nos alumni, Wilfrid Laurier, nous nous
intéresserons autant  la croissance politique de notre monde qu’aux
romances que nous apportent les aléas de la vie. The Botanical Club
of the Faculty of Law welcomes anyone who shares the joy of
gardening. Help us grow the young shoots of student life in law
school.

Droits linguistiques McGill

2011

Linguistic Rights McGill is a Faculty of Law student-
operated working group whose primary aim is to promote,
study, and advance the rights and freedoms of Canada's
linguistic minority communities. The group's primary
emphasis is on Francophone linguistic minorities outside the
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province of Quebec, with an attentive eye to issues such as
access to justice, the enforcement of the federal Official
Languages Act and of provincial French Services Acts,
bilingualism requirements for certain positions, as well as
emerging issues affecting Canada's Francophone linguistic
minority communities. McGill Law students will surely
come across some of these issues as future lawyers,
especially if they choose to practice law outside the province
of Quebec, where the number of Francophones and
Francophiles is increasing at impressive rates. The needs
and profile of these communities must be closely monitored,
considering the assimilative forces, cuts in services and the
constant injustices they face.

LSA Mediation at McGill 2012 Mediation at McGill promotes the use of conflict coaching
and peer mediation to help individuals resolve their
conflicts. Le club offre aux étudiants de I’Université McGill
des services gratuits et confidentiels de médiation et des
séances de « conflict coaching ». It also seeks to promote
and prepare McGill Law students to perform these services.

Trassymphonics 2010 Considérant que les étudiants de tous niveaux de la Faculté

de droit de 1’Université McGill ont exprimé leur désir de
contracter une Union Fédérale pour ne former qu’une seule
et méme puissance vocale, avec une constitution reposant
sur les mémes principes que celle de 1’illustre ceuvre
télévisuelle «Glee», nous vous présentons les
Transsymphoniques, la toute premiére chorale de la Faculté.
Exploding onto the law student club scene in early 2011
with a hit Grease-inspired musical and thrilling the Law Skit
Nite crowd with the 2013 hit musical “Chancellor Day
Hall”, the Transsymphonics are looking to continue their
pulmonary expansion into 2013-2014.

Actus Reus 2009 Groupe d’étudiants organisant une piéce de théitre au mois
de février de chaque année.

Human Rights Working Group 2009 Le Groupe d’action en matiére de droits de la personne | The
Human Rights Working Group (HRWG) est un collectif
éclectique de militants étudiants qui a pour objectif
d’éduquer et de sensibiliser la population étudiante de la
Faculté de droit et de I’Université McGill aux enjeux liés
aux droits humains, de contribuer a réduire les violations
des droits humains et de soutenir les étudiants désirant
poursuivre une carriére dans le domaine des droits de la
personne et de la justice sociale.The Human Rights Working
Group is divided into a number of portfolios and also
includes court accompaniment and bursary programs. The
portfolios are run collectively by the student members of the
portfolio. New members are always welcome. For more
information, please visit hrwg-mcgill.com.

e ]
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McGill South Asian Law Students
Association

2012

Student club composed of students with south Asian roots.

Intellectual Property, Information
Technology and Policy Club

2009

IPITPOL, McGill’s Intellectual Property, Information
Technology and Policy Club, aims to enhance familiarity
with, and promote discussion about, innovations and
challenges in technology and law. IPITPOL’s mandate is to
focus on intellectual property and information technology
law, the relationship between these two areas, as well as
current policy initiatives. Through collaboration with
McGill Law Faculty members, the Centre for Intellectual
Property Policy (CIPP), other faculties, universities and
legal professionals in the field, we have established a nexus
between current law students interested in IP and/or IT and
the exigencies of this growing legal industry.

Christian Law Students Association

2009

Group of students gathering for discussion on the Christian
faith.

McGill Law Model United Nations
Club

2011

Group of students participating to various simulations of the
United Nations general assembly.

Student Animal Legal Defense Eund
Club

2010

Group of students interested in advocating for the protection
of animal rights.

Criminal Law McGill

2011

Group of students interested in criminal law and organising
events to promote careers in the field.

Feminist Collective

2013

The Feminist Collective at McGill Law will see its first year
of activities in 2013-2014! We are a non-hierarchical group
that envisions a world without patriarchy, sexism, violence,
and the continued oppression, domination and devaluation
of women. Through education and activism both within our
faculty and in the greater community, we will empower
ourselves and others to resist these things in all their forms.

Nous allons également continuer ’excellent travail du «
Women’s Caucus » en créant pour les étudiantes en droit
des possibilités d’apprentissage, un réseau de connaissances
ainsi que des possibilités de formation, le tout axé sur la
femme. Dans le passé, les activités ont inclus un « speed-
meet » avec des femmes qui travaillent dans le domaine du
droit ainsi que I’envoi d’une délégation d’étudiants 4 New
York afin d’assister a la conférence mondiale sur les
femmes des Nations Unies.

McGill Women Students and the
Criminal Law

2013

To be inserted

Women of Colour Collective

LSA MOA June 1 2014- May 31 2019

2013

The Women of Color Collective (WOCC) provides a
supportive space for women from racialized backgrounds,
Indigenous women, and trans people of color at McGill’s
Faculty of Law. By providing cultural, social, professional,
educational, and community service programs, the WOCC
advances the needs of women and trans people of color,

: thereby enriching the educational experience at McGill
______________—— ]
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Law. Le but de ce réseau est aussi de favoriser les échanges
a la Faculté de droit de McGill entre les femmes au sujet
d’enjeux qui concernent des femmes issues de minorités.

McGill Law Students Cares

2013

McGill Law Cares is a new initiative at the Faculty to
promote community outreach involvement locally, and in
the broader global community. Nous allons soutenir
beaucoup de programmes, de partenaires et d’initiatives au
long de 'année scolaire. Some of our events this year will
include volunteering at soup kitchens, after-school tutoring,
and hosting charity dinner events.

Law and Popular Culture

2013

Group of students interested in discussing the interelations
of law and popular culture.

Comité souverainiste des étudiants en
droit de McGill

2013

Group of students interested in advancing the separatist
cause and to discuss its impacts.

Association of Students for Children
Rights

2013

Group of students interested in advocating for the defense
of children’s rights and organizing activities to the benefit
of charitable organizations.

McGill International Foosball
Association Club

2009

The McGill International Foosball Club Association
(MIFA) seeks to foster a positive and collegial learning
environment in the Law Faculty by enabling ALL law
students to participate in a fun, social and stress-relieving
activity regardless of skill, experience or coordination.
Venez jouer sur I’une de nos tables de baby-foot dans le
cadre des tournois continus en simple et en double pour
tous les niveaux, lors du tournoi bénéfice au profit de Right
To Play ou encore juste pour le plaisir, entre deux
jugements de la Cour Supréme!

0Old Chancellor Football Club

2012

McGill Law’s Soccer Clubs, representing the Faculty of
Law at McGill’s Athletics intramural competitions.

McGill Law Squash Club

2013

The McGill Law Squash Club is dedicated to assisting
students find opportunities to play against partners of
various skill levels and to meeting others with a passion or
burgeoning interest in the sport. The Club provides an
ongoing ladder and organizes tournaments for students,
faculty members and alumni. Nous prévoyons également
d'accueillir plusieurs cliniques de compétences et
d'organiser des rencontres sociales tout au long de I'année.
Nous invitons débutants et experts a se joindre a nous.

Yoga club

2013

The McGill Law Students’ Yoga Club seeks to bring the
fantastic yoga instructors of Montreal to the rooms of New
Chancellor Day Hall to teach us some funky and fun poses
that will help us improve our balance and bring joy within
ourselves.Qu’importe votre niveau, le Club de yoga des
étudiant(e)s en droit de McGill est pour tous ceux et celles
qui souhaitent faire du yoga en toute simplicité et dans le
respect mutuel. Namaste!

McGill Law Games Club

LSA MOA June 1 2014- May 31 2019

2013

Every year, 30 students from McGill’s Faculty of Law
participate to Law Games, a 4 day sports competition
against law faculties from across Canada.
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Category II:  For Groups affiliated or affiliating with an external organization including
political parties

NAME DATE DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY

Probono Students Canada

Canadian Civil Liberties Association 2010

Canadian Lawyers Abroad

2010

Iraqi Refugee Assistance Project 2012

- ___
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Category Il For Sports Clubs or Teams

NAME DATE

DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY

McGill Law Games Club 2013

Every year, 30 students from McGill’s Faculty of Law
participate to Law Games, a 4 day sports competition
against law faculties from across Canada.

Category IV: For Association Services and Media

NAME DATE

DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY

Quid Novi 1980

Le Quid Novi est le journal étudiant de la Faculté de
droit de 1'Université McGill. Depuis 1979, il est le théitre
de débats animés sur des sujets d'actualité touchant la vie
facultaire et la société en général. Il est aussi I'hote de
poemes, de caricatures, d'oeuvres d'art, de textes
d'opinion, de conseils, d'humour et de réconfort pour les
étudiants et le personnel de la Faculté.

Contours Magazine 2013

Feminist publication written by a student club and
distributed once a year at the Faculty of Law.

Forum 2013

Critical thinking publication written by a student club
and distributed once a year at the Faculty of Law.

Point de fuite 2012

Point de fuite is an online journal encouraging the
exchange of political ideas among Québec’s youth. A
good debate is characterized by solid arguments upheld
through a nuanced standard of thought. The sources are
cited, the writing is clear, stripped of deceptive qualities,
and rid of fallacies that only weaken the discussion. Point
de fuite distinguishes itself from other blogs and social
networks because it exercises an intellectual rigour and
approach to publishing its articles. Consequently, each
text is revised by a team of editors who work in
conjunction with the author of the text. The comments
allow the writer the opportunity to hone their writing
skills and refine their argument.
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PART III: LSA EXECUTIVE EMAILS

President: president.lsa@mail.mcgill.ca

LSA MOA June | 2014- May 31 2019 Page 10



